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WHO WE ARE

Rohas Tecnic Berhad and its subsidiaries (RTB Group) is a Malaysia-based
group involved in regional utility infrastructure markets primarily in the Power
& Energy, Telecommunication and Water & Sewage. RTB Group is the
market leader in the manufacturing of steel lattice towers and monopoles
for power transmission and telecommunications in Malaysia as well as in the
provision of full turnkey solutions in Engineering, Procurement, Construction
and Commissioning (EPCC) projects both in Malaysia and other countries
in the region.

The strength of RTB Group is supported by its in-house
design and engineering capabilities in the field of electrical,
structural and civil works. RTB Group has a strong
foundation and track record in delivering EPCC projects
in a cost effective manner and high quality standards. Its
EPCC offerings cover turnkey solutions for High Voltage
Transmission lines & substations, Telecommunication
towers network roll-out and Mechanical and Electrical
(M&E) works for water and sewage treatment plants.
With more than 4 decades of industry knowledge and
design experience gained over the years, RTB Group will
continuously seek new opportunities and to transform it
into a leading regional utility infrastructure company.

4
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TWENTY-SIXTH (26th) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

TWENTY-SIXTH (26TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT’D)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty-Sixth (26th) Annual General Meeting of Rohas
Tecnic Berhad will be held on a fully virtual basis at the broadcast venue at Board Room,
15th Floor, East Wing, Rohas PureCircle, 9, Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, on
Thursday, 9 July 2020 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:
8. To transact any other business of the Company of which due notice shall have been given.

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS :
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
2. To approve the payment of a final single-tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

(Please refer
Explanatory Note on
Ordinary Business 1)
(Ordinary Resolution 1)

3. To re-elect the following Directors, each of whom retires in accordance with Clause 139 of
the Company’s Constitution and being eligible, offers himself for re-election: Sia Bun Chun
Wong Mun Keong
Leong Wai Yuan
4. To re-elect Wan Afzal-Aris Bin Wan Azmi who retires in accordance with Clause 144 of the
Company’s Constitution and being eligible, offers him for re-election.

(Ordinary Resolution 2)
(Ordinary Resolution 3)
(Ordinary Resolution 4)
(Ordinary Resolution 5)

5. To approve the Directors’ fees and benefits payable to the Non-Executive Directors up to
RM650,000.00 from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

(Ordinary Resolution 6)

6. To re-appoint Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT as Auditors of the Company for
the financial year ending 31 December 2020 and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

(Ordinary Resolution 7)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution :7.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT 2016
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the
Company and the approvals of the relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities, if
applicable, the Directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to the Act, to issue and
allot shares in capital of the Company from time to time and upon such terms and conditions
and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided
that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed
20% of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being (herein after
referred to as “20% General Mandate”);
AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing
of and quotation for the additional shares so issued pursuant to the 20% General Mandate
from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of
this Resolution and shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company after the approval was given or at the expiry of the period within
which the next Annual General Meeting is required to be held after the approval was given
or 31 December 2021, as empowered by Bursa Malaysia Berhad pursuant to their letter
dated 16 April 2020 to grant additional temporary relief measures to listed corporations,
whichever is earlier unless revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the Company at a
general meeting (hereinafter referred to as “Expiry Date”).”
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(Ordinary Resolution 8)

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
LAANG JHE HOW
MIA 25193
SSM PC No.:201908002558
Company Secretary
11 June 2020
Notes :
(1) In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 2 July 2020 shall be eligible to
attend (virtually) and vote at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), or appoint a proxy to attend (virtually) and vote on his behalf. A proxy
may but need not be a member of the Company.
(2) A member who is an authorised nominee may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account he holds
with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account. A member other than an authorised nominee
shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend (virtually) and vote at the same meeting. A member who is an exempt
authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus
account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account he holds.
As guided by the Securities Commission’s Guidance and FAQs on the Conduct of General Meetings for Listed Issuers that was issued
on 18 April 2020 and subsequently revised on 14 May 2020, the right to speak is not limited to verbal communication only but includes
other modes of expression. Therefore, all shareholders and proxies shall communicate with the main venue of the Meeting via real time
submission of typed texts through a text box within Securities Services e-Portal’s platform during the live streaming of the Meeting as the
primary mode of communication. In the event of any technical glitch in this primary mode of communication, shareholders and proxies
may email their questions to eservices@sshsb.com.my during the Meeting. The questions and/or remarks submitted by the shareholders
and/or proxies will be broadcasted and responded by the Chairman/Board/relevant advisers during the Meeting. In the event of any
unattended questions and/or remarks submitted, the Company will respond to the said unattended questions and/or remarks after the
Meeting via email.
(3) Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportions of the
member’s shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
(4) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the
appointor is a corporation either under Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
(5) Appointment of proxy and registration for remote participation and voting
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at SS E Solutions Sdn Bhd. of Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat
Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time
for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. The proxy appointment may also be lodged electronically via Securities Services
e-Portal at https://www.sshsb.net.my/. All resolutions set out in this notice of meeting are to be voted by poll.
Should you wish to personally participate at the Meeting remotely, please register electronically via Securities Services e-Portal at https://
www.sshsb.net.my/ by the registration cut-off date and time. Please refer to the Administrative Guide on the Conduct of a Fully Virtual
General Meeting for further details.
The Administrative Guide on the Conduct of a Fully Virtual General Meeting is available for download at rohastecnic.com.
(6) The Board wishes to highlight that the Meeting may be re-scheduled and/or postponed in view of the current COVID-19 outbreak and
Malaysia Government’s announcements or guidelines made from time to time. Please rest assured that all members/proxies including
attendees shall be kept informed in the event of any unexpected changes.
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TWENTY-SIXTH (26TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT’D)

TWENTY-SIXTH (26TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT’D)

Explanatory notes on Ordinary Businesses: -

The 20% General Mandate will expire on the Expire Date as stipulated in the Ordinary Resolution 8 above. After having
considered all aspects of the 20% General Mandate, the Board is of the opinion that the adoption of the 20% General
Mandate would be in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders, on the following basis: -

Item 1 - Audited Financial Statements
The Audited Financial Statements laid at this meeting pursuant to Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 are meant for
discussion only. It does not require shareholders’ approval, and therefore, shall not be put forward for voting.
Ordinary Resolution 6 – Directors’ Fees and Benefits
Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016, fees and benefits payable (“Remuneration”) to the Directors of
the Company shall be approved by the shareholders at a general meeting. The Company is requesting shareholders’
approval for the payment of Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) for the period from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting up until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Remuneration
comprises Directors’ fees, meeting attendance allowances and other emoluments.
The total Remuneration paid to the NEDs for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 was RM538,000.00 and the details
of which are published in the Corporate Governance Report on the Company’s website at rohastecnic.com.

•

The interest of the Company as well as its long-term shareholders should be in congruence on the issue of long term
sustainability of the Company as only a business operation with healthy and sufficient working capital could generate
positive returns to the Company and its shareholders.

•

Given the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic and the subsequent imposition of the Movement
Control Order by the Malaysian Government to contain the COVID-19, the additional fund raising flexibility through the
20% General Mandate will enable the Company, should it require to do so, to meet its funding requirements for working
capital and operational expenditure, expeditiously and efficiently, without burdening the shareholders with a separate
general meeting during this challenging period.

•

The 20% General Mandate accorded by Bursa Malaysia Berhad has provided flexibility to the cash flow planning of the
Company should the Company requires additional funding for the business contingency plans to mitigate the financial
impact of COVID-19, if any.

The Remuneration payable for the NEDs for the period from the conclusion of this AGM until the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company (“Mandate Period”) are estimated not to exceed RM650,000.00. The calculation is based on the estimated
Directors’ fees, the size of the Board and Board Committees and the number of meetings estimated to be held during the
Mandate Period and possible travelling allowances required. The Board will seek shareholders’ approval at the next AGM in
the event the proposed Remuneration is insufficient.
Ordinary Resolution 8 – Authority to issue shares pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”)
The Company wishes to renew the mandate on the authority to issue shares pursuant to the Act at the 26th AGM of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the “General Mandate”).
The Company had been granted a general mandate by its shareholders at the 25th AGM of the Company held on 29 May
2019 (hereinafter referred to as the “Previous Mandate”).
As at to-date, the Previous Mandate has not been utilised by the Company and therefore no proceeds have been raised
therefrom.
Bursa Malaysia Berhad has via their letter dated 16 April 2020 granted several additional temporary relief measures to listed
corporations, amongst others, an increase in general mandate limit (hereinafter referred to as “the increased General
Mandate”) for new issues of securities to not more than 20% of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time
being (hereinafter referred to as the “20% General Mandate”). In addition, Bursa Malaysia Berhad has also accorded in its
abovementioned letter that the increased General Mandate may be utilised by a listed corporation to issue new securities
until 31 December 2021.
The Board would like to procure approval of its shareholders at the 26th AGM for the 20% General Mandate.
The purpose to seek the 20% General Mandate is to enable the Directors of the Company to issue and allot shares at any
time to such persons in their absolute discretion without convening a general meeting as it would be both time and costconsuming to organise a general meeting merely for such purpose. The 20% General Mandate will provide flexibility to the
Company for any possible fund-raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding
its business plans, future investment project(s), working capital and/or acquisitions.
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MISSION STATEMENTS

GROUP CORPORATE STRUCTURE
as at 13 May 2020

100%

78.1%

ROHAS-EUCO INDUSTRIES BHD

HG POWER TRANSMISSION SDN BHD

100%

100%

GALVANISING ENGINEERING
AND SERVICES SDN BHD

IAC ELECTRICALS
(M) SDN BHD

100%

100%

RT TELECOM SDN BHD

HG POWER TRANSMISSION
(PNG) LIMITED

100%
40%

RBC WATER SDN BHD

MISSION

We aim to maintain our leadership in tower
construction and deepen our involvement in
EPCC opportunities

100%
99%

REI INTERNATIONAL (HK) LIMITED

We shall do better because we can

10
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PT REI ABADI INDONESIA

100%

49%

HYDRO HAVEN SDN BHD
1%
100%

MOTTO

PHU MY VINH CONSTRUCTION
AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION

PT CENTURY ABADI PERKASA

PT REI INTERNATIONAL

Note :
Please refer to Note 6 and 7 to the Financial Statements of
this Annual Report for the complete list of companies and
shareholdings.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

5 YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

Board of Directors
Sia Bun Chun
Chee Suan Lye
Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail
Amirul Azhar Baharom
Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy
Khor Yu Leng
Wan Afzal-Aris Wan Azmi (appointed on
13 January 2020)
Leong Wai Yuan
Wong Mun Keong
Shahrulanuar Ishak
Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri (resigned on
1 January 2020)
Wan Afzal-Aris Wan Azmi (Alternate to Wan
Azmi bin Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri) (resigned on
1 January 2020)

Head Office
15th Floor, East Wing, Rohas PureCircle
No. 9, Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel
: 603 - 2163 3900
Fax
: 603 -2164 5900
Email
: rtb@rohastecnic.com
Website : www.rohastecnic.com

Audit and Risk Management Committee
Chee Suan Lye
Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail
Amirul Azhar Baharom
Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy

Stock Exchange Listing
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Main Market
Stock Code : 9741

Remuneration Committee
Sia Bun Chun (appointed on 13 January 2020)
Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail
Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy
Khor Yu Leng
Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri (resigned on
1 January 2020)
Nomination committee
Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail
Chee Suan Lye
Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy
Company Secretary
Laang Jhe How
(MIA 25193)
(SSM PC No.:201908002558)
Registered Office
149-A, Jalan Aminuddin Baki
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel
: 603 - 7729 1519
Fax
: 603 - 7728 5948
Email
: edzonems@gmail.com

Share Registrar
Insurban Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
149, Jalan Aminuddin Baki
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel
: 603 - 7729 5529
Fax
: 603 - 7728 5948
Email
: insurban@gmail.com

Auditors
Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT
Level 11, Sheraton Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel
: 603 - 2692 4022
Fax
: 603 - 2732 5119
Website : www.grantthornton.com.my
Solicitors
Mah-Kamariyah & Philip Koh
3A07, Block B, Phileo Damansara II
15 Jalan 16/11, Off Jalan Damansara
46350 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia
Tel
: 603 - 7956 8686
Fax
: 603 - 7956 2208
Messrs Govindasamy & Pek
Advocates & Solicitors
Suite 3.04, 3rd Floor Wisma E & C
No. 2 Lorong Dungun Kiri
Damansara Heights
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
Tel : 603 - 2093 1299
Fax: 603 - 2093 6299
Principal Bankers
Maybank Islamic Berhad
AmBank (M) Berhad
Standard Chartered Saadiq Berhad
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad
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REI (1)
Group
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

2015
RM’000

RTB
Group

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2018
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Operating results					
Revenue

155,233

189,123

310,879

404,187

474,236

Operating profit

31,313

35,951

45,677

29,549

33,453

EBITDA

34,644

39,350

22,855

32,186

41,990

25,029

25,353

4,571

15,262

18,320

22,865

25,353

3,059

16,030

17,280

Profit after tax

(2)

Profit after tax and minority interest

					
Key statement of financial position data
Cash and cash equivalents

			
24,090

44,794

104,685

60,626

65,365

Total assets

270,306

288,220

697,271

689,019

588,926

Borrowings

40,904

38,706

125,838

92,948

114,526

Total liabilities

94,624

94,692

353,744

342,391

234,649

175,682

193,528

343,528

346,627

354,277

(sen)

33.44

37.08

0.88

3.39

3.66

Net assets per share (RM)

2.57

2.83

0.66

0.67

0.69

Net debt to equity (times)

0.25

0.20

0.40

0.29

0.35

Shareholders' fund
Earnings per share

(3)

Note :
1. The audited numbers of Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd and its subsidiaries (“REI Group”) as at the respective year
end has been presented as the comparative following the Regularisation Plan of RTB as explained in the financial
statements included in the 2017 Annual Report.
2. RTB Group had to charge a one-off Regularisation Plan expense in 2017 of RM4.0 million and share based payment
expense of RM21.4 million.
3. The Earnings per share for RTB Group are computed based on 472,657,651 weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue.
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5 YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT (CONT’D)

REVENUE
(RM’000)

5 YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT (CONT’D)

OPERATING PROFIT
(RM’000)

TOTAL ASSETS
(RM’000)

354,277
343,528 346,627

474,236

45,677

697,271 689,019

404,187
35,951

588,926

33,453

31,313

310,879

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND
(RM’000)

29,549
175,682

189,123

270,306 288,220

155,233

2015

2016

2017

2018

EBITDA
(RM’000)

2019

41,990

39,350

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

PROFIT AFTER TAX
AND MINORITY INTEREST
(RM’000)

2015

2016

2017

2015

2019

2.57

17,280

0.88
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2018

22,865

16,030

2018

2017

2.83

3,059

2017

2016

NET ASSETS PER SHARE
(RM)

33.44

22,855

14

2019

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(sen)

25,353

32,186

2016

2018

37.08

34,644

2015

193,528

2019

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2015

2016

2017

3.39

3.66

2018

2019

2015

2016

0.66

0.67

0.69

2017

2018

2019
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KEY MILESTONES

2018
6 February
REI
commenced
expansion and
upgrade of
lattice tower
manufacturing
plant at
Lot 5, Bentong

2 May
Rollout
of a new
Enterprise
Resource
Planning
System

8 May
24th AGM
and proposed
final dividend
of 1.5 sen per
share to
shareholders

2020

15 May
REI commenced
expansion and
upgrade of
monopole
manufacturing
plant at Lot 18,
Bentong

2019
20 May
RBC Water Sdn
Bhd completed
the 40% share
acquisition of
Phu My Vinh
Construction
and Investment
Corporation

2017
8 March
Completion of the
regularisation plan
through 100%
acquisition of
Rohas-Euco
Industries Bhd via
issuance of 317.4
mil shares and
public issue of 42
mil shares.

31 October
Acquired 75% of
HG Power
Transmission Sdn
Bhd via issuance
of 72.8 mil shares
and RM22.5 mil
in cash

26 December
Paid out interim
dividend 1 sen per
share to
shareholders

29 May
25th Annual
General Meeting
and proposed final
dividend of 1.0
sen per share to
shareholders

21 June
RTB has entered
into Share
Purchase
Agreement to
acquire 75% of
Global Tower
Corporation
(Cambodia) Pty.
Ltd.

8 November
REI and GES
accredited with
ISO 45000 (Safety
and Health)
certification

20 November
Completion of REI
Monopole
Manufacturing
facilities and
relocation of
related equipment

31 January
Paid out interim
dividend 0.5 sen
per share to
shareholders

25 May
Inclusion
in the list of
shariah-compliant
securities

Change of name
from Tecnic Group
Berhad to Rohas
Tecnic Berhad

16
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CHAIRMAN’S INTERVIEW

CHAIRMAN’S INTERVIEW (CONT’D)

Q Speaking of your predecessor, did he have any words
of wisdom to leave you?

Q Has COVID-19 permanently changed the way the
Group works?

A Tan Sri Azmi and I have been partners almost 30 years!
He kept telling me it was time for me to helm the Board as I
would be the “safest pair of hands”, having been Managing
Director for most of the past 30 years. Very kind words indeed.

A Certainly, until an effective vaccine has been found we
will need to implement safe working practices at our factories,
work sites and offices. More than that, we need to instill these
principles in our people in all aspects of their life - the “new
normal” as they say.

In the end he was quite firm in sticking to his decision to stand
down at the end of 2019, saying he had only intended to be
Chairman for a year to begin with! We are lucky we had him
for three!
Of course, we will miss his guidance and advice, particularly
on long term strategy for the Group. Nevertheless, I for one
continue to speak regularly with him and will not hesitate to
seek his opinion if the need arises.

Q Any further words for your Shareholders?

GEORGE SIA BUN CHUN
Chairman

Q And what were the low points … ?

A Like most years it had its share of highlights and low
points. I would say, coming out of 2018 which had been
affected by the change in Government and subsequent
review of infrastructure projects, 2019 was a year of missed
opportunities because the pick up in activity was slower than
expected. It was only in the second half of last year that we
saw a return to more normal levels.

A Apart from the slow ramp up in Government-related
projects? It was foreseen by my predecessor in his statement
to shareholders last year, where he noted the first half of 2019
would be “a continuation of the transitory phase of new
government, where new policies and directions require to be
bedded down first”. How prescient he was!

A Well, I must say our initiatives to diversify overseas have
begun to bear fruit. Our EPCC division saw a 44% jump in
revenue, aided mostly by HGPT’s projects in Bangladesh
and REI’s transmission project in Laos. During the year we
also completed the acquisition of a 40% stake in Phu My
Vinh Construction & Investment Corporation and initiated
a move to buy a 75% stake in an independent licensed
tower company in Cambodia. We are confident these
investments will bear fruit in the near future.

18

Q Going forward, will the Group stick to the strategy
outlined last year?

Q What are your thoughts when you look back at 2019?

Q What were some of the highlights?
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I am pleased to say Management has implemented a set
of comprehensive measures to ensure the safety of
our people, which is always the top priority. We had
successfully applied to the health authorities to restart our
work earlier than most during the lockdown, mainly because
of these efforts, and also because we are working in essential
service sectors.

As well, in 2018 our accounts were negatively affected by
provisions and write-offs relating mostly to legacy issues in
HGPT. These had been cleaned up and the company is
growing from strength to strength. However, we had to take
another hit in 2019 due to a separate “legacy” issue, this time
relating to an investment in a China-located infrastructure
project made by REI from pre-listing times.
We certainly hope the impairment of around RM7 million,
which the Board decided to take in full, will be the last nonoperating issue we see for a long while. Without this
impairment, we would have had shown better results last
year.

A Yes, we will continue to build on our core competence in
the fabrication and installation of towers while expanding our
businesses in water and telecommunications. Prudence and
caution were two keywords used by Tan Sri last year.
This year, with the full impact of COVID-19 yet to be felt, all the
more we will need to embark on our plans with an eye firmly
fixed on cashflow.

A I mentioned the need to watch cashflow in these trying
times. Nevertheless, the Board has decided to propose a
dividend of 0.5 sen as a signal that we are still optimistic
that the Group will ride through this storm and emerge
stronger.
I would also like to record the Board’s appreciation to Tan Sri
Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah for his service as Chairman for the
past 3 years and we wish him well for the future.
I am indeed honoured to step in his shoes.

It is an unprecedented event, where we have had such
disruption to supply of goods and services because of the
near-global lockdown measures for a few months, to now
emerge and be greeted by a painfully slow and uncertain
recovery in demand.

George Sia

It is fortunate our Group is engaged in the provision of
services to essential sectors in power, water and
telecommunications where we are more likely to see delays
(again!) in projects rather than outright cancellation.
To a certain extent, it will depend on how fast and effective
the promised reflationary pump-priming measures are
implemented by the new (again!) Government.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Sia Bun Chun

Chee Suan Lye

Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Singaporean 72
Male
• 8 March 2017

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
65
Female • 8 March 2017

Sia Bun Chun completed his Matriculation program in St
Stephen’s College, New Zealand and undertook parttime studies program in engineering at the Wellington
Polytechnic, New Zealand.

Chee Suan Lye qualified as a Certified Public Accountants
(Malaysia) and was admitted as a member of the Malaysian
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1978.

After several engineering related working stints in New
Zealand and Indonesia, he returned to Malaysia in 1974
where he joined REI, which was then known as Crittal
Euco Sdn Bhd and was subsequently promoted as its
Managing Director in 1976. Sia Bun Chun was the Managing
Director of RTB Group until his retirement in 2017, after
which he was appointed as the Deputy Chairman until he
assumed the position as Chairman of RTB on 1 January
2020.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :

She started her career with Price Waterhouse in 1974
and over the years had served in various capacities in
other corporations as well as The Association of Banks
in Malaysia and had served on the boards of several
companies and organisations namely the Banking Mediation
Bureau, the Financial Mediation Bureau and Bolton
Properties Bhd.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• Chairman, Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
• Member, Board Nomination Committee

• Chairman, Board Remuneration Committee
DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :
DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :

• None

• None
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail

Amirul Azhar Baharom

Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
59
Male
• 8 March 2017

Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
46
Male
• 15 March 2013

Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail graduated with a Bachelor of Arts
in Sociology from the State University of New York, USA in
1984.

Amirul Azhar Baharom graduated with a LLB Hons from
Staffordshire University, United Kingdom in 1996.

He began his career in Bank Negara Malaysia and
subsequently joined D&C Sakura Merchant Bankers Sdn
Bhd. After a decade in financial services, Tarmizi joined
Land & General Berhad in 1995 prior to pursuing his own
business interest. Currently, he is the Managing Partner
of Tarmizi Tun Dr Ismail & Partners Sdn Bhd, his own
executive search firm which he established in 2002.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• Chairman, Board Nomination Committee
• Member, Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
• Member, Board Remuneration Committee

He began his career as a Research Analyst with Cazenove
& Co and had been in the financial services industry for
a number of years where he was amongst others, with the
Securities Commission, BDO Capital Consultants Sdn
Bhd and KAF Fund Management Sdn Bhd. He had also
previously served as the Group Managing Director and
CEO of Vastalux Energy Berhad and as the Acting
Group Chief Executive Officer of Avillion Berhad. He
had also previously been a member of the Board of
Directors of Vastalux Energy Berhad, Reliance Pacific
Berhad, Admiral Marina Berhad and Spring Gallery
Berhad.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• Member, Board Audit and Risk Management Committee

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :
• None

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :
• Chairman, UMS-Neiken Group Berhad
• Director, Scomi Group Bhd
• Director, Scomi Energy Services Bhd
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy

Khor Yu Leng

Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
37
Female • 23 August 2017

Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
49
Female • 13 November 2018

Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy graduated with a Bachelor of
Petroleum Engineering from the University of Technology,
Malaysia in 2006. Later on, she continued her Master in
Petroleum Technology with Curtin University of Technology
and graduated with distinction in 2012 and subsequently
completed her Industrial PhD on Subsea Engineering with
University of Technology, Malaysia in 2016.

Khor Yu Leng graduated with an honours degree in
Philosophy, Politics & Economics from the Oxford University,
UK in 1992 and a masters degree in Economics from the
London School of Economics, UK in 1993.

She has served in the oil and gas industry since 2006, in
between her subsequent academic pursuits. She is a
Professional Engineer with practicing certificate (Petroleum)
with Board of Engineers Malaysia; Senior Member of The
Institute of Engineers Malaysia (IEM); Treasurer of Society of
Underwater Technology and Life Member of Women’s
Institute of Management.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• Member, Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
• Member, Board Remuneration Committee
• Member, Board Nomination Committee

She is a research specialist in both the quantitative and
qualitative aspects of economics and has vast experience
in international economic consultation, having served a
number of Fortune 500 companies, other corporations,
government agencies and NGOs in over 150 studies
throughout the span of her career. She is currently the
Owner and Director of Segi Enam Advisors Pte Ltd in
Singapore, a firm specialising in economics research and
business intelligence; Council Member of the Malaysian
Oil Scientists and Technologists Association; Associate
Fellow at the Singapore Institute of International Affairs
and Advisor at Jane Goodall's Roots & Shoots Program
(Malaysia).

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• Member, Board Remuneration Committee

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :

• None
• None
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Wan Afzal-Aris Wan Azmi

Leong Wai Yuan

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
36
Male
• 13 January 2020

Non-Independent Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
44
Male
• 8 March 2017

Wan Afzal Aris graduated with a Bachelor of Arts majoring
in International Business and Marketing from the European
Business School, UK in 2008.

Leong Wai Yuan is an Honours graduate from the University
of Malaya in Materials Engineering with a Master of Business
Administration specialising in Finance with Charles Sturt
University, Australia; and a member of Malaysia Institute of
Management (MIM).

He started his career in 2008 at Halfmoon Bay Capital Sdn
Bhd, assisting its Director to coordinate and supervise
the firm’s daily operations. In 2010, he joined Riverlee
Australia Pty Ltd, a company primarily engaged in property
investment and development, subsequently becoming its
Asset Manager, handling the company’s oversight on
the assigned portfolio. Currently, Wan Afzal Aris is the
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Rohas Sdn Bhd,
appointed to the position in 2014.
Wan Afzal Aris was appointed as alternate director to
Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri on 13 November 2018
and ceased as alternate director when Wan Azmi Wan
Hamzah, Tan Sri resigned as director of the Company. He
was then appointed as director of the Company on 13
January 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
•

He joined REI Group as Group Chief Operating Officer
in 2013 before being promoted as the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer. He was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of REI Group in 2017 and subsequently as a board
member and Group CEO of the RTB Group. Prior to this,
Leong Wai Yuan was General Manager for a leading
Australian manufacturer and supplier of steel products and
solutions worldwide. He brings experience in production,
construction, product development, strategic & corporate
planning, supply chain and people management from his
various capacities of nearly 20 years.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• None

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :

None
• Director, Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :
•
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Wong Mun Keong

Shahrulanuar Ishak

Non-Independent Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
58
Male
• 8 March 2017

Non-Independent Executive Director
Nationality
Age Gender Date of Appointment
Malaysian
44
Male
• 9 March 2018

Wong Mun Keong holds a Bachelor of Commerce in
Accounting, Finance and Systems (Honours) from the
University of New South Wales, Australia since 1986.

Shahrulanuar graduated with a Bachelor of Accounting and
Finance from De Montfort University, Leicester, UK in 1998.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2005 and a member of Malaysia Institute
of Accountants since 2007. He also did his Post-Graduate
Diploma in Islamic Banking and Insurance with The Institute
of Islamic Banking and Insurance, London, UK in 2006.

From 1987 to 2006, he was working in various capacities
related to finance and investment, in Malaysia and
Australia. He then joined REI Group in 2007 and is
currently the Chief Investment Officer of RTB.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• None

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :

He started his career in 1999 with KPMG Malaysia and
after several stints with other corporations, joined RohasEuco Industries Bhd in 2016. Currently, Shahrulanuar is
the Chief Financial Officer of Rohas Tecnic Berhad,
appointed to the position in 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS :
• None

• Director,
Syarikat Pengeluar Air Selangor Holdings Berhad
• Director, Scomi Energy Services Bhd
• Director, Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC
COMPANIES AND LISTED ISSUERS :
• None

Notes :
1. Directors’ attendance at Board and Board Committee
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the Statement on Corporate
Governance and Audit and Risk Management Committee
Report.
2. The above Directors have no family relationship with any
Director and/or major shareholder of Rohas Tecnic Berhad
(RTB), except for Wan Afzal Aris who is the son of Tan Sri
Wan Azmi bin Wan Hamzah and Puan Sri Nik Anida Binti
Nik Manshor both of whom are major shareholders of
RTB, and Sia Bun Chun who is the spouse of Chan Liew
Hoon, who is also a major shareholder of RTB.
3. The above Directors have no conflict of interest with RTB,
have not been convicted of any offence within the past
five (5) years, and have not been imposed any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies
during the financial year 2019.
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KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RAMLAN SAFRI
Chief Operating Officer
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

RISHABH DEV KHAITAN
Chief Operating Officer
HG Power Transmission Sdn Bhd (“HGPT”)

AHMAD LATIFI SUPIAN
General Manager - Supply Chain
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

HARIANTO TARUNA
President
PT REI Abadi Indonesia (“PTRAI”)

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 60 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 1 March 2015

Nationality / Age / Gender • Indian / 36 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 1 November 2017

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 54 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 1 March 2014

Nationality / Age / Gender • Indonesia / 50 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 7 September 2016

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Master of Science (Electrical Engineering), UCLA USA
• PhD (Electrical Science) Fort Jones Open University,
USA

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Science in Finance,
University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Diploma in Electrical Engineering,
University Technology of Malaysia
• Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA),
University Technology of Malaysia

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from ATMI,
Surakarta, Indonesia
• Bachelor of Economic Science in Finance,
University of Indonesia
• Master of Economic Science in Finance,
University of Indonesia
• Licensed of Indonesian Capital Market Fund Manager
• Licensed of Indonesian Capital Market Underwriter

Working Experience
Ramlan joined REI in 2015 as Chief Project Management
Officer. In 2017 he was assigned to Chief Manufacturing
Officer and subsequently promoted as Chief Operating
Officer of REI in 2018.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies

Working Experience
Rishabh joined HGPT in May 2017 as Vice President
Projects and was promoted to Chief Operating Officer
from 1 November 2017.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity			
(ii) Other Public Companies

: Nil
: Nil

Working Experience
Joined REI with the current position.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies

: Nil
: Nil

: Nil
: Nil

Working Experience
Joined PTRAI with the current position. Harianto has more
than 14 years working on Japanese Venture Capital in
Indonesia and Global Private Equity Fund in Indonesia.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies

CHAI KAM CHEONG
Chief Operating Officer
RBC Water Sdn Bhd

SUBHASH DEVAN
Chief Operating Officer
RT Telecom Sdn Bhd (“RTT”)

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 57 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 1 January 2018

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 33 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 2 April 2018

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor Degree from University of Tasmania
• Post-graduate from Australian National University
•  Master of Science (Water and Environmental
Management) from the Water, Engineering and
Development Centre (WEDC), Loughborough
University, United Kingdom
• Member of the Chartered Institute of Water and
Management (MCIWEM) and Society of the
Environment (CEnv) United Kingdom

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• ACCA, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
• B.SC (Hons) Degree in Applied Accounting,
Oxford Brooks University, United Kingdom

Working Experience
Joined RBC Water with the current position.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies
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Working Experience
Joined RTT with the current position.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity			
(ii) Other Public Companies

: Nil
: Nil

: Nil
: Nil

TEOH ENG BEE
General Manager - Engineering
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

VIVIAN LEE POH CHENG
General Manager – Human Resource
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 45 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 10 September 1997

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 44 / Female
Date of Appointment
• 1 March 2018

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Diploma in Civil Engineering,
University Teknologi Malaysia
• Bachelor of Civil Engineering,
University Teknologi Malaysia
• Member of Board of Engineers Malaysia

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resource
Management in association with Glasgow Caledonian
University Scotland, United Kingdom

Working Experience
Joined REI in 1997 as Assistant Engineer and has held
various position, the last being Manager in the design
division.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies

Working Experience
Joined REI with the current position. Vivian has
approximately 19 years of experience in Human Resource.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity 			
(ii) Other Public Companies

: Nil
: Nil

: Nil
: Nil

: Nil
: Nil
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KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

WAN FARHAH WAN HAMZAH
General Manager - Legal and Secretarial
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

SARAVANAN MANY
General Manager – Internal Audit
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”)

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 57 / Female
Date of Appointment
• 19 August 2019

Nationality / Age / Gender • Malaysian / 41 / Male
Date of Appointment
• 1 August 2019

Academic / Professional Qualifications
• LLB (Hons)

Academic / Professional Qualifications
•  MBA – Risk Management, Asia E- University, Malaysia
•  BBA(Hons) – Major in Finance and Accounting,
University Tun Abdul Razak, Malaysia
•  Diploma in Management,
KLC School of Business, Malaysia
•  Associate Member of Institute of Internal Auditors
Malaysia (IIAM)

Working Experience
Wan Farhah was called to the Malaysian Bar in 1988 and
was in professional legal practice for over 10 years before
joining the in-house legal counsel community where
she has served in several organisations involved in the
information and communications technology sector as
well as the oil and gas industry. She joined REI with the
current position.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity			:
(ii) Other Public Companies
:

Nil
Nil

Working Experience
Joined REI with the current position. Saravanan has
approximately 15 years of experience in Internal Audit.
Present Directorship
(i) Listed Entity			:
(ii) Other Public Companies
:

Nil
Nil

The above Key Senior Management members have no family relationship with any Director and/
or major shareholder of RTB, except for Wan Farhah Wan Hamzah who is sister to Tan Sri Wan
Azmi Wan Hamzah, a major shareholder of RTB, have no conflict of interest with RTB, have
not been convicted of any offence within the past five (5) years and have not been imposed any
public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

The Group continues to focus on growing its presence within the power
transmission, telecommunication and water industry through organic and
acquisition as part of its strategy to grow its asset base and improve profitability.

Revenue growth

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
RTB and its subsidiaries (“RTB Group” or “the Group”) core
businesses remains in the fabrication of steel towers used
for power transmission and telecommunication, and
involvement in Engineering, Procurement, Construction and
Commissioning (“EPCC”) contracts.
FYE 2019 showed Group revenue grew by 17.3% and in
profit after tax by 20.0%. On the towers fabrication side, few
of our order books for fabricated tower did not materialise
or were not converted to work order as planned, due to
delays in our customers projects. It is noted that none of the
confirmed order books are cancelled during this time.
EPCC showed good progress from our current ongoing
projects, especially from our project in Laos. We also
succeeded in being awarded new EPCC contracts in
Bangladesh and Vietnam.
During the year, Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”), a
subsidiary, had to make an impairment for losses on an
advances given for an equity portion for a project in Zhuhai
China. The advances was made by REI prior to RTB’s
acquisition of the company. The project was in relation to a
project management contract for earthworks pertaining
to a mixed industrial and commercial development.
After assessing the duration of the project take-off,
Management had decided to impair in full the advances.
Management will still be assessing the viability of the project.
Renovation to upgrade our fabrication facility in Bentong,
Pahang as part of RTB Group’s future plans to cater for
business expansion and growth is on going. The upgrading
process was expected to be completed by end Q3 2019 but
was delayed and is expected to complete in 2H 2020.

Construction and Provision of Telecommunication Tower
and Related Infrastructure Services within the Kingdom
of Cambodia. The period of the license is 30 years. As at the
end of May 2020, the status of the Conditions Precedent of
the Completion as referred to in the SSPA has yet to be fully
satisfied by the Sellers.
We continue with our strategy to grow the Group through
organic and acquisition to position ourselves better in
Malaysia and regionally. Focus on nurturing our newly
acquired companies and ensure its dynamic growth in order
to achieve the full benefits and value realisation for our
shareholders in the long term. The Group is now poised to
capitalise on the opportunities ahead and establish RTB
Group as an EPCC player in the region.

Financial Performance
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, RTB
Group achieved revenue of RM474.2 million, recorded
operating profit of RM33.5 million and profit after taxation of
RM18.3 million.

Key Ratios
The following table sets forth the key financial ratios based
on RTB Group’s financial statements:

In FYE 2019, as part of our strategy to expand overseas,
on 21 June 2019 we entered into a Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement (“SSPA”) to acquire 75% interest in Global
Tower Corporation (Cambodia) Pty Ltd (“GTC”) for a
purchase consideration of USD1.05 million (equivalent
to approximately RM4.37 million as at the date of
announcement of the transaction). GTC is the fourth
independent company to obtain the license for the
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Operating profit margin
Operating profit margin for the year was 7.1% in 2019
compared to 7.3% in 2018, mainly due to a larger contribution
of revenue from the EPCC segment that accounts for a lower
margin as compared to the Fabrication segment. The EPCC
segment recorded a higher contribution of 72.2% to RTB
Group’s revenue for FYE 2019 as compared to 58.8% for
FYE 2018.

In relation to the expansion and upgrading of REI’s
operational facilities in Bentong, as at 31 December
2019, the Group has a remaining capital commitment
for renovation works of RM1.4 million that has been
authorised and contracted for. RTB Group incurred a total
cost of RM2.0 million on renovation works for FYE 2019.
The Board has approved, as part of the FY 2020 budget, a
total of RM7.4 million for capital expenditure, mainly for
machineries and equipment, being part of expanding the
capabilities of the existing facilities.

Current ratio
As at 31 December 2019, RTB Group’s current ratio was
2.32 times, which was higher compared to 1.82 times as at
31 December 2018. This was mainly due to the decrease in
trade payables as at year end.

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2019, RTB Group’s gearing ratio was
0.32 times. RTB Group’s total borrowings, inclusive of
lease liabilities/finance lease liabilities, increased from
RM92.95 million as at 31 December 2018 to RM114.53
million as at 31 December 2019. This was mainly due to
borrowings taken from a local bank to part finance the
acquisition of PMV during the year.

PERFORMANCE BY CORPORATE BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

1. Fabrication of Towers
The first corporate business segment is the fabrication of
power transmission and telecommunications towers, both
lattice towers and monopoles. The power transmission
towers, contributes to 90.5% of the total revenue of the
segment, are generally designed to carry transmission lines
with operating voltages ranging from 33kV to 500kV. RTB’s
subsidiary, REI is registered as a supplier and design
contractor with Tenaga Nasional Berhad (“TNB”) for the
supply of products and provision of works and services.

Performance Highlights
				
Revenue growth

We have completed the acquisition of a 40% stake in Phu
My Vinh Construction and Investment Corporation (“PMV”).
With this completion, RTB Group will be able to expand and
grow its water business in Vietnam and regionally.

For FYE 2019, RTB Group’s revenue grew by 17.3% in 2019
from RM404.2 million in FYE 2018 to RM474.2 million
for FYE 2019 due to the RM104.8 million increase in
revenue from EPCC segment, mainly from the Power
Transmission sector.

The Directors of RTB is of the opinion that, after taking
into consideration the cash and cash equivalents, the
expected funds to be generated from operating activities
and the amount unused under the existing banking facilities,
RTB Group would have adequate working capital to meet
their present and foreseeable requirements for a period of
12 months from the date of this Annual Report.

FYE 2019

FYE 2018

17.3%

30.0%

Operating profit margin

7.1%

7.3%

Current ratio (times)

2.32

1.82

Gearing ratio (times)¹

0.32

0.27

Notes:
¹ Based on total borrowings over total equity.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
RTB Group’s business has been financed via a combination
of internal and external sources of funds. The internal
sources comprise shareholders’ equity and cash generated
from the business operations while external sources are
from various credit facilities extended to RTB Group by
financial institutions. RTB Group’s principal utilisation of
funds has been for its business growth and operations.
As at 31 December 2019, RTB Group had cash and bank
balances of RM65.37 million and total borrowings of
RM114.53 million, gearing ratio was 0.32 times, and current
ratio was 2.32 times.

				
FYE 2019
FYE 2018
				RM’000		RM’000
Revenue		

127,558		

153,292

The revenue from the fabrication segment contributes
26.9% to the total revenue for FYE 2019. It decreased by
RM25.7 million or 16.8%, mainly due to the reduction
of 4,122 MT or 17.2% in deliveries of lattice towers totalling
19,829 MT in FYE 2019 as compared to 23,951 MT for FYE
2018. Revenue from deliveries of power transmission and
telecommunications towers decreased by RM10.6 million or
8.4% and RM15.2 million or 55.5%, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

Revenue from EPCC increased by RM104.8 million or 44.1%,
which was mainly attributed to:

Operational Highlights
The customer base comprised predominantly the local
Malaysian EPCC contractors, as our key focus has always
been to serve the Malaysia market first. They include
electrification contractors responsible for installing the
power line networks as well as telecommunications
infrastructure contractors and network facility providers. The
segment also serves other customers namely civil and
infrastructure contractors, as well as public and private
utility organisations.

•

•
•

Revenue from EPCC works contributed by HGPT,
for works done in Bangladesh and Malaysia, that
contributed 52.0% to the total revenue of the segment;
EPCC works awarded in Laos contributed 40.5% to the
segment’s revenue; and
Telecommunication contributed 7.5% to the segment’s
revenue.

Operational Highlights
Looking Ahead
EPCC for Power Transmission
REI’s business operations are currently supported by its
fabrication and galvanising facility in Bentong, Pahang. To
cater for business expansion and growth, its existing
operational facilities are being upgraded while new facilities
constructed. The renovation and extension has been
completed and we are now awaiting for the delivery of new
equipment’s and completion of its installation. Once
completed in 2H 2020, this facility should be able to
contribute positively to the Group’s operations.

Revenue from the EPCC Power Transmission for FYE 2019
was from HG Power Transmission Sdn Bhd (“HGPT”)
projects in Malaysia and Bangladesh and also from REI’s
EPCC project in Laos. Both project contributes to 92.5% of
the EPCC segment revenue. HGPT’s split of revenue
between the two regions for the year are 53% in Malaysia
and 47% in Bangladesh.

The Group is looking at expanding its customer base for the
fabricated towers by entering into new overseas market.
We have started to look at countries such as Pakistan,
Cambodia and also Australia, as we see great potential in
those countries with new tenders for supply of towers are
starting to open up.

In relation to the EPPC works in Laos, as highlighted
previously, the project was awarded by Electricite du Laos
(EDL) to supply and construct transmission lines,
substations and distribution lines in the Laos People’s
Democratic Republic. The works recommenced in end
of 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the project is 66%
completed and is expected to be completed fully before the
end of FY 2020.

We are also in the midst of developing a new tower design
specifically for the telecommunication industry to target
the role out of 5G in Malaysia. The design has been
completed and we are at the testing stage and will start to
market the towers.

EPCC for Telecommunication

2. Engineering, Procurement,
Commissioning (“EPCC”)

Construction

and

The second corporate business unit is the EPCC which
are currently mainly for telecommunication towers and
power transmission lines.

Performance Highlights

For FYE 2019, revenue from this EPCC segment was from
works done as part of Malaysian Communications and
Multimedia Commission (“MCMC”) Time 3 extension Phase 3 programme and also other telecommunication
regulators infrastructure projects. The Time 3 extension
programme is part of the Malaysian Government’s initiative
under Malaysian Communications and Multimedia
Commission (“MCMC”) to construct telecommunications
towers in areas that nationwide. As at the end of 2019,
we have completed 72% of our works for the Time 3
extension - Phase 3 programme that was awarded to us,
with the remaining to be completed in FY 2020 due to delays
in site identification.

				
FYE 2019
FYE 2018
				RM’000		RM’000
Looking Ahead
Revenue		

342,535		

237,701
On HGPT, its order book currently exceeds RM400 million,
of which 22% comprises domestic orders and 78%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

foreign orders, with the on-going projects expected to
continue into the first half of FY 2020. HGPT is also bidding
for additional projects in Malaysia, Bangladesh and
Australia, and is confident of securing additional projects
with its track record and expertise.

These growth initiatives are expected to be funded from
internally-generated funds.

As announce on 20th February 2020, on 18th February
2020, HGPT has accepted two letters of award from
Power Grid Company of Bangladesh Ltd. (“PGCB”) for
design, supply, installation, testing & commissioning of
230 kilowatt (“kV”) and 132 kV Transmission Lines on
Turnkey Basis worth RM192 million. Works is expected to
commence in 2H 2020 and tenor to be between 24 – 30
months.

The third corporate business segment includes revenue
from external galvanising and fabrication of substation
structures.

For the telecommunication segment, our current strategy
to focus on Malaysia infrastructure projects continues
and we are also expending overseas, specifically in
Cambodia.
In Malaysia, on 27 February 2020, MCMC has announce
the implementation of six National Fiberisation and
Connectivity Plan (“NFCP”) projects. The NFCP projects
encompass the provisioning of public cellular and fixed
broadband services across the country. As a Group we are
excited as this provides opportunity for us to be involved
with the roll out. Similar to the MCMC Time 3 projects in
the past, although we were not directly awarded the
contracts, but we were indirectly involve either from supply
of fabricated towers and/or EPCC works.
As highlighted earlier, we have entered into a SSPA
to acquire 75% interest in GTC. GTC is the fourth
independent company to obtain the license for the
Construction and Provision of Telecommunication Tower
and Related Infrastructure Services within the Kingdom of
Cambodia. The period of the license is 30 years.
Other than the segments above for EPCC works, on 20
January 2020, RTB Group have been awarded from our
newly
acquired associate company, Phu My Vinh
Construction and Investment Corporation (“PMV”), the
EPCC works for Hoa Khanh Tay Water Supply System –
Phase 2. The value of the Contract is VND332,000,000,000
or approximately RM58.4 million and the duration of the
Contract is expected to be 24 months. The Contract consists
of the design and installation of transmission main and
secondary pipelines to Duc Hoa and north of Ben Luc
districts; and the expansion of Hoa Khanh Tay (“HKT”) water
treatment plant capacity from 40 Million Litres Per Day
(“MLD”) to 80MLD.
It is the intention of the Group to grow the EPCC segment,
especially in overseas markets in neighbouring countries for
it to become a regional player within the next 5 years.
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Both investments are expected to contribute positively to RTB Group’s PAT for FY 2020.

BUSINESS RISKS
3. Other business activities
Risk management is embedded in our day-to-day operations. Governance policies and procedures are developed with clear
accountabilities for senior management to effectively identify, assess, prevent, record and mitigate all material risks for the
Group.
In pushing forward with our strategy and execution plans, key risks have been identified and continuous monitoring undertaken
to ensure our exposure to all anticipated risks stays within the Group’s overall risk appetite.
Performance Highlights
				
FYE 2019
FYE 2018
				RM’000		RM’000
Revenue		

4,143		

13,193

Revenue from this segment decreased by RM9.1 million or
68.6%. This is mainly attributed to lower revenue from
fabrication of electrical substation structure, which
contributed 54.8% to total revenue of the segment. External
galvanising work contributed 45.2% to total revenue of the
segment.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
RTB Group has two (2) associate companies for the FYE
2019, namely PT Century Abadi Perkasa (“PTCAP”) and
PMV.
PTCAP is involved in the construction of the Mini
hydropower plant located in Lawe Sikap, Indonesia. The
Mini hydropower plant is designed with a power generation
capacity of 7 MW and PTCAP holds a 20-year concession
for the supply of its power to PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara
(“PLN”), an Indonesian state owned corporation with a
monopoly on the distribution of electricity in Indonesia.
Commercial operations are expected to commence by 2H
2020.
On 20th May 2019, the Group completed its acquisition of
a 40% stake in PMV valued at VND232 billion. PMV is
the owner and operator of Phu My Vinh Water Supply
Factory and Hoa Khanh Tay Water Supply Plant, two water
treatment plants in Long An Province, Vietnam. The supply
of clean water is mainly for the critical economic areas in
the Long An province. The total combined water supply
capacity is expected to achieve 95,000 m³/day from the
current 55,000 m³/day from the capacity expansion in Hoa
Khanh Tay Water Supply Plant. The capacity expansion
work has been awarded to RTB Group.
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Key Group Risks

Description

Over reliance on
key customer

•
•

Business
Expansion and
Growth

•
•

Dependency on the performance of TNB (42.7%
of revenue).
For FYE 2019, 91.1% of RTB Group’s total revenue
is from power transmission.
Dependent on business growth and expansion in
Malaysia and selected foreign countries.
Subject to the risk of any adverse industry
performance and/or regulatory changes and
developments in the power transmission and
telecommunications tower industries in Malaysia.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

Key Mitigation Steps
•

•

•

•

•

Fluctuations in
Prices of Steel as
Raw Materials

•

Risks relating to the fluctuations in prices of steel.

•

•

Financial Risks of
RTB Group

•

•
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Working capital and capital expenditure
requirements for their business operations
are funded by internally generated funds and
external financing in the form of borrowings and
trade facilities from financial institutions and
credit arrangements with suppliers.
RTB Group is subjected to financial risks including
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and equity price risk.

•

•

•

Intensify sales & marketing efforts
with Sarawak Electricity Board and
Sabah Electricity Board.
Investing in regional markets and
increasing business development
capability with establishment of
overseas offices.
Initial stage for expansion is into
East Malaysia and continues into
overseas market.
Exploring other segments, such
as water treatment, as part of
diversifying revenue streams but
still within engineering experience
and capabilities.
Constantly endeavour to develop
new markets in different regions like
Africa and Asia.
Staggered purchase of steel
materials upon obtaining confirmed
orders from customers.
Up to date marked to market pricing
based on raw material pricesestablish mechanism to discipline
price offer.
Ensuring there is sufficient facility
available to meet the Group’s
financial requirements.
Continuous monitoring of cash flow
needs of the Group and available
funds.
Put in place proper credit control to
assess customer and having a debt
monitoring mechanism to monitor
and follow up on outstanding
debtors.

Impact of Inflation

•

Risk of inflation on the financial performance.

•

Monitor key cost items and react to
changes.

Government /
Economic/ Fiscal/
Monetary Policies

•

Risks relating to Government, economic, fiscal or
monetary policies, or changes in import tariffs and
related duties for steel materials. Unfavourable
changes in the Government’s policies, changes
in the economic conditions or fiscal or monetary
policies may materially affect its operations in
Malaysia and abroad.

•

Creation of new revenue channels
as part of the Group long term plan.
Enhance current manufacturing
processes to improve on efficiency
and cost to maximise returns.
Formation of an industry group to
assist in bringing forward issues
faced in by the industry players.
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•

•

Foreign exchange
fluctuations

Project
Management

•

•

•

•

For FYE 2019, 41.5% and 6.3% of RTB Group’s
total revenue were transacted in USD and BDT
respectively whilst 57.0% and 5.0% of total
purchases of materials was transacted in USD
and EUR respectively. RTB Group’s is subjected
to the risks relating to any unfavourable foreign
exchange fluctuations which may materially
impact its business and financial performance.

•

Failure to deliver project on time could result in
financial cost arising from liquidated ascertain
damage (“LAD”) and fixed costs.
Ineffective cost control procedures may lead
to project cost overrun resulting in lower profit
margins.
Inability to meet manpower requirements (foreign
workers) will severely impact the timeline and
progress of projects.

•

•

•

Matching the payment for foreign
currency
payables
against
receivables denominated in the
same currency.
To fixed the prices of raw material
purchased in RM from overseas
suppliers to mitigate the risk of
fluctuating in exchange rates.
Improve timely reporting of project
progress.
Recruit qualified Quantity Surveyor
for better monitoring of Actual costs
incurred vs Budget.

DIVIDEND POLICY
RTB does not have a formal dividend policy but is committed in rewarding shareholders through annual dividends.
In respect of FYE 2019, the Board of Directors has declared an interim single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share totalling
RM2,363,288 and was paid on 31 January 2020, and the Board is also recommending a final interim single tier dividend of
0.5 sen per share totalling RM2,363,288 for the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of RTB.

LOOKING FORWARD
The Group is operating in a competitive and uncertain global economic environment. However, with the expansion to other
regional markets, it is believe that the Group will be able to be consistently record growth.
The current order book of RTB Group, as at the date of this report, stands at almost RM750 million of which 28% is for
fabrication of towers and 72% is for EPCC works. This is expected to provide a steady earnings going forward.
The recent acquisitions will contribute new revenue channels to the Group. Apart from our towers supply business and EPCC
capabilities, we endeavour to grow our business in the water and telecommunication sector with new products.
On the Movement Control Order in Malaysia and lock-down in other countries which RTB Group operates in due to the recent
outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”), the current situation is still fluid and the Management is unable to
reliably estimate the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial results for the FY 2020. RTB Group shall continually
assess the impact of COVID-19 on its operations as well as the financial position for the FY 2020.
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OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY

Our Sustainability Agenda

RTB recognises the importance of sustainability not only for our business, but also in meeting stakeholder needs and
expectations as well as to preserve the environment. As a responsible corporate citizen, we integrate sustainable
development into the planning and measurement systems of our daily business operations.

As an enterprise that has supported national growth initiatives, we are focused on realising our ambition of creating a better
nation by bringing power and connectivity to all corners of the country.
Our sustainability agenda is anchored on four key focus areas:

In taking into account our impact to all our stakeholders and the environment, we categorise our sustainability activities
according to the Economic, Environmental and Social (EES) areas as follows:

ECONOMIC

•
•
•
•

Our accountability to our customers
Cost efficiency
Safety
Our communities

2019 HIGHLIGHTS
Sustainability Governance

•
•

Direct economic impacts
Indirect economic impacts

•
•

Revenue: RM474.2 million
Economic value distributed: RM462.9 million

•

Compliance to standards including ISO 14001, British
Standards and Malaysian Standards
Stable electricity and water consumption at 73-76Kwh/
tonne and 0.85-0.90 m3/tonne, respectively

ENVIRONMENTAL
•
•
•

Standards compliance
Energy & resource management
Materials & waste management

•

Our sustainability agenda is governed by our Board of Directors and overseen by our Sustainability Committee, which ensures
initiatives are adopted throughout our operations. The Committee is also responsible for conducting the Company’s materiality
assessment as well as identifying, implementing and monitoring sustainability initiatives.
The Sustainability Committee reports to the Executive Committee (EXCO), which reviews and monitors the effectiveness of
our sustainability initiatives. The EXCO also provides recommendations to the Board on managing our sustainability matters.
The Board of Directors is responsible for aligning our corporate and division priorities, tolerance and strategies in line with
principles of corporate governance.

SOCIAL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

•
•
•

Our People
Commitment to Health & Safety
Our Communities

•
•
•
•

Total headcount of 821 in 2019
Women in leadership positions: 15% (2018: 3%)
Reduction of total number of accident cases by more
than 50%
Participation in rural electrification programmes in
Malaysia, Bangladesh and Laos

Executive Committee (“EXCO”)
• Group Chief Executive Officer
• Chief Financial Officer
• Chief Investment Officer

Risk Officer

Scope of Sustainability Statement
Reporting in this sustainability statement covers our material entities in Malaysia, namely Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd (“REI”),
Galvanising Engineering and Services Sdn Bhd (“GES”) and HG Power Transmission Sdn. Bhd (“HGPT”). All matters that are
material to RTB Group and this statement should be read together with the remaining sections of this Annual Report 2019.
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SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Engineering

Galvanising

Fabrication

Preparation of this sustainability statement was guided by Bursa Malaysia’s Sustainability Reporting Guide and the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards for Sustainability Reporting.

Health, Safety & Environment

Human Resource

Order Processing

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting period for this sustainability statement is 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. Where
possible, we have included more than one year of data for comparison.

Quality Assurance / Quality Conformance

Finance

Project Management
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NO.

KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

AREAS OF
INTEREST

3

Regulatory Bodies

•
•

Materiality Assessment
Our first materiality assessment was conducted under the guidance of independent sustainability consultants with participation
and contributions from our key personnel from respective departments. While the materiality assessment did not involve any
external stakeholders, key personnel took into consideration both internal and external perspectives during the material
matters prioritisation process.
4

The materiality assessment process followed a four-step approach as outlined below:

DETERMINE
SUSTAINABILITY
ISSUES

STAKEHOLDER
IDENTIFICATION
• Identify the
Group’s key
stakeholders

• Stakeholder
Engagement
• Determine material
sustainability
concerns for each
stakeholder

•

CATEGORISATION
AND
PRIORITISATION

Financial
Institutions,
Shareholders and
Investors

•
•
•

PROCESS
REVIEW

•

• Categorise and
prioritise key
sustainability issues

• Review
materiality
assessment
process

5

• Action planning
and reporting of
key sustainability
issues

Neighbouring
Businesses
and Surrounding
Communities

•

•

•

6

Stakeholder Engagement
Our stakeholders play a key role in contributing to the value we deliver. We regularly conduct formal and informal engagements
with six key internal and external stakeholder groups. These engagements are held through various channels and provide
valuable insights into their needs and expectations.
The following illustrates our key stakeholder groups, the way and frequency in which we engage with them, their areas of
interest and how we respond.
NO.

1

KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

AREAS OF
INTEREST

TNB, Main
contractors,
Foreign power
utilities companies,
Independent
Power Producers

•
•

Safety and
health
Quality of
products

METHODS OF
ENGAGEMENT

•
•
•
•

Tender briefings
Progress meetings
Exhibitions &
sponsorship
Proposals

FREQUENCY OF
ENGAGEMENT

On project
basis
When
required
On case-tocase basis
When
required

•

•
•

Daily
Yearly

•

•

Yearly

•

•

When
required

•

Yearly

•

Yearly

•
•
•
•

2

Employees
(Local & Foreign)

•
•
•
•

Equal
opportunities
Diversity &
inclusivity
Career
progression
Benefits and
rewards

•
•
•

•

•
•
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Town hall sessions
Employee
satisfaction survey
Employee
engagement
programmes
Internal
communications
such as
newsletters and
intranet updates
Events and
functions
CSR programmes

OBJECTIVE

Commitment
to quality and
innovation
in tower
construction
and in EPCC

OUR
RESPONSES

•

Sourcing the
best quality
materials toward
production
output

Vendors (Raw
Material &
Manpower
Suppliers) / Value
Chain Partners

•

METHODS OF
ENGAGEMENT

FREQUENCY OF
ENGAGEMENT

•

•

Transparent,
open and
consistent
approach to
appraisals
Trainings and
team building

•

To engage
existing and
potential
shareholders

•

Robust
corporate
governance
procedures in
place

Annually

•

To give
back to the
community
in which we
operate and
improve the
welfare of
families in
need

•

Alignment of
sustainability
goals with our
CSR objectives

When
required
When
required
When
required

•

To ensure fair,
proper and
transparent
dealings with
suppliers

•

Professional
approach
in reviewing
proposals from
vendors

Annually

•

Monthly

•

When
required

•
•
•
•

AGM
EGM
Financial results
Investor Relations
Initiatives

•
•
•

Annual
Quarterly &
Annually
Annually

Social and
economic
development
contribution
Socioeconomic
impacts
Pollution and
cleanliness

•

Volunteerism

•

Fair
procurement

•
•
•

Email updates
Site visits
Direct contact

•

Long-term
profitability
Sustainability
matters
Company’s
performance
and targets
Compliance

•
•

•
•

•

•

Improved
responsiveness
towards queries
and feedback
Adherence to
legislations and
guidelines

ECONOMIC
We measure our Economic impact on the direct and indirect value we contribute.
In 2019, we recorded revenue of RM474.24 million against RM404.19 million in 2018. Of this revenue generated, we returned
RM7.94 million in tax to the government and RM7.09 million in dividends to our shareholders. We also distributed RM37.34
million in remuneration to our employees.

DIRECT ECONOMIC REVENUE GENERATED
Revenues
To provide
fair and equal
opportunities
To ensure
employee
development
and
progression

•

•

•

OUR
RESPONSES

To ensure
proper
compliance
and proper
administration
of regulations
to the industry
operations

Regular
communication
Reports and
compliance
Periodical
meetings

Compliance
Reducing
environmental
footprint
Safety and
health

OBJECTIVE

ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED			
Operating Cost (Excluding employee remuneration)
Employee Remuneration (Salaries, wages and other emoluments)
Payments to capital providers
		 Dividends
		
Finance cost
Payments to the Government			
		
Current Tax expense
ECONOMIC VALUE RETAINED

Audited

Audited

Audited

2017

2018

2019

RM'000

RM'000

RM'000

310,879

404,187

474,236

		
235,504
29,698

		
337,487
37,151

		
403,448
37,336

4,727
4,382

7,090
7,977

7,090
7,087

12,005

9,200

7,944

24,563

5,282

11,331
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Indirect economic impacts

In addition to standards compliance, we have put in place a rigorous process for constructing our towers. This includes hot
dip galvanisation to strengthen the towers’ durability and prolong its lifespan. Before a tower is sent for mass production, a
prototype is built and tested for durability and strength.

We are currently in the midst of tracking and monitoring our indirect economic impact to enable measurement of outcomes.
Among areas we are monitoring include our supply chain, through which we work with over 30 vendors who are mostly local.
While we mainly procure imported goods to operate our business due to limited local supply, these goods are sourced from
domestic suppliers. In addition to procurement, we also provide training at our facility to our contractors and vendors.
Among areas we are contributing indirect economic impacts are rural electrification, where we support governments in
Malaysia, Bangladesh and Laos in putting up electricity transmission lines focused on clean energy.
In addition to increasing basic comfort and quality of life, rural electrification creates a myriad of benefits for local communities
and businesses, such as enabling education opportunities, night-time operations of essential services such as healthcare
and facilitating business activity. For more information on our involvement in this initiative, please refer to the ‘Our Community’
section in this Sustainability Statement.

As a regional utility infrastructure company, we see opportunities to contribute to sustainable development through responsible
environmental practices and natural resource management.
In addition to strict adherence to internal policy and guidelines on environmental protection and conservation, our projects
are also undertaken in accordance with the requirements of relevant authorities such as the Department of Environment of
the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment.

•
•
•
•
•

Ensures good project planning;
Controls workmanship in all aspects of works;
Provides a safe and efficient working environment;
Ensures quality and safety throughout construction; and
Enforces good engineering practice and judgment.

Moving forward, environmental impact assessments will be carried out at all sites.

Energy and Resource Management
As part of our compliance to ISO standards, we collect and monitor data on our energy and resource usage with a view on
targets for reduction. This also ensures a holistic approach to energy management in our offices and workplace, from building
infrastructure to the way our people use the building.

Standards Compliance

This means, for example, optimising our use of space, deploying smart management of lighting and cooling systems, as well
as promoting behavioural change initiatives to encourage our people to save energy on site.

Towers
The industry we operate in requires us to strictly conform to environmental laws, standards and other conditions of approval.
These standards include ISO 14001, which sets certifiable criteria for an environmental management system and maps a
framework that the Group can follow to set up an effective environmental management system.
We also benchmark the construction of our towers against the British Standard (BS) or Malaysian Standard (MS). Furthermore,
our towers are built according to our clients’ stringent specifications and requirements for design, detailing, fabrication,
testing, supply, and delivery.
The following table details the standards we comply to for environmental and building management:
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All projects executed by HGPT at the sites are bound to client specifications as well as statutory and regulatory requirements.
Additionally, HGPT uses the Quality System and Safety & Health Manual, which:

We also strive to minimise environmental impact by recommending methods to prevent landslide damage (using leg
extensions or concrete chimney) as opposed to cut and fill methods which may lead to soil erosion. For towers erected at
areas susceptible to high corrosion (e.g. coastal areas) our galvanising thickness is increased to ensure durability.

ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT			

BUILDING MANAGEMENT

The ISO 14001 standard covers: 			

BS and MS ensure:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Sites

Energy conservation 				
•
General waste						
Contaminated waste management			
•
Water pollution control and monitoring		
Scheduled waste management
Chemical storage
Overhead crane
Chemical spill response and clean-up
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Manufacture of towers with precision and
resistance to weathering and corrosion
A lifespan of at least 50 years for our towers

We also implement a formal standard operating procedure which stipulates best practices on energy usage, which includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Use of ‘power saving’ options on computers and copiers;
Purchase of energy efficient equipment and high-powered factor monitor;
Proper maintenance of equipment/machinery;
Use of natural light whenever possible;
Replacement of flickering lights;
Control of outdoor lighting time via timer;
Ensuring all doors, windows and entrances are closed to prevent cool air draughts from escaping;
Air-conditioning set to a comfortable temperature;
Avoidance of leakage of fuel during topping;
Recording of fuel consumption and taking necessary action for over consumption; and
Use of fuel saving equipment, where practicable.

For the ISO review period during the year, we recorded the following electricity and resource consumption for Rohas-Euco
Industries Bhd and its subsidiaries:
•
•

Relative to production, electricity consumption remained stable at around 73-76Kwh/tonne
Similarly, water consumption was also stable at 0.85-0.90 m3/tonne
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Waste management

When all spilled chemicals have been absorbed, the waste materials are placed in appropriate containers for disposal.

We recognise that waste disposal issues hinge on changing patterns of consumption, industrial development and urbanisation.
Our approach to this area involves technical, organisational and financial strategies for sustainable waste management
incorporated into our daily operations. We strive to efficiently treat solid wastes and conclude solutions to recycle items that
were originally intended for the landfill.
We ensure our waste is disposed of in the appropriate manner to minimise environmental pollution and the outbreak of
vector-borne diseases from unhygienic conditions. While our waste management practices have always complied with the
Environmental Quality Act, 1974, over the past years, we have transitioned to an improved, sustainable waste management
system.

Contaminated waste
Our policy on contaminated waste ensures such waste, which includes rags, gloves, plastics and paper are disposed of in
specified drums. Sawdust/soil is used to clean up the spills of chemicals or scheduled waste. Following the cleaning of
spills, the person in charge or supervisor ensures the contaminated sawdust/soil is collected into the specified drum.
We also maintain up-to-date inventory of contaminated wastes and ensure that they are collected by licenced contractors
who are registered with the Department of Environment.

Steel

Wastewater

Scraps percentage depends on the type of projects and volume we secure. We have a small ratio of off-cut steel which is
sold to registered recycling trading companies involved in processing both ferrous and non-ferrous scrap materials for the
steel manufacturing industry. All steel scraps do not present a threat to the environment and its sale as scrap metal also
contributes some income to our business.

We implement appropriate procedures for treatment of water used in our activities. Where applicable, we provide spill control
kits to control oil/chemical spillage to drains. We also provide secondary containment for any chemical liquids/oil stored
outside, with the ability to contain at least 110% of the capacity. Additionally, used oil from our machinery is collected in a
proper container for disposal while oil traps prevent oil from entering the public drains.

In addition to our existing waste management practices, we are currently completing renovation and upgrading of our
fabrication facility. This is aimed at improving our environmental impact as well as raising efficiency, including cost effectiveness,
of our fabrication process and reducing our reliance on manual labour, especially foreign labour.

We also conduct periodic desludging of septic tanks to ensure that the discharge of sewage complies with the relevant
legislation. We exercise great care when transferring waste from the production area to the waste bin to avoid spillage of
waste into open drains.

We are also considering the use of technology to automate our process, with new machines providing opportunities for cost
reduction and further efficiency. This is also in light of existing machines which are due for replacement as a result of aging
in spite of regular maintenance.

SOCIAL
At RTB Group, we are committed to delivering value to society as much as we are to the growth of our business. We monitor
and act on our Social impact in the following areas:

Chemical waste
We carry out monthly inspections on chemical storage which includes signage, spillage/leakage/decomposition/misplaced
chemicals, signs of corrosion/cracks/rust/spotted surfaces on shelves/cabinet and dryness and ventilation of the store.
We also inspect the crowdedness of the storage area, availability of extinguishers and ensure passageways remain
unobstructed.

•
•
•

Our People
Occupational Safety, Health and Environment
Our Communities

Our People
The appearance, arrangement and condition of chemical containers are also inspected. This includes:
•
•
•
•

Labelling;
Damage/residue/corrosion of containers;
Capping; and
Storage of chemicals according to type, hazard class and compatibility.

Our workforce totalled 821 people in 2019, a reduction of 27% from 1,125 in the previous year. The reduction was mainly due
to the departure of foreign workers involved in EPCC works which were completed, hence did not create a significant impact
on our operations. Our site-based workforce fluctuates based on project needs, while headcount at our headquarters and
factory has remained at 420 stable for the past two years.

Workforce diversity
Chemical spill response and clean-up
To mitigate environmental impact from our operations, we implement strict procedures to respond to and clean any chemical
spill. Immediately upon notification of any chemical spill, the ERT leader or production leader/supervisor will assess the spill
situation and decide on the appropriate action.
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The principles of diversity and inclusion are embedded in our staffing strategy, which focuses on hiring, developing and
retaining the best talent. We actively monitor diversity on an organisational level, measuring representation of women and
local nationals in senior positions, and have processes in place to identify and mitigate any biases.

If a volatile, flammable material is spilled, immediate warning is issued to everyone. At the same time sources of ignition will
be controlled. Measures are also taken to prevent the spread and entry of spilled chemicals into the drainage system by
closing all potential discharge points and using sandbags to block drains, among others.

At the end of 2019, the percentage of women in senior positions was 15% compared with 3% at the end of 2018. We continue
to measure and improve our gender balance by making female leaders more visible and accessible as role models, providing
leadership programmes for women and embedding diversity and inclusiveness in our policies and processes. Of our total
workforce, women accounted for 10% in 2019 from 8% in 2018.

The measures also include placing appropriate and sufficient absorbents into the spill area to absorb the spilled chemical.

By age group, 65% of our workforce were aged 18-38, followed by 33% of workers aged 39-58 and 2% aged over 59.
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Foreign labour

•
•
•

In 2019, 41% of our staff comprised foreigners, with the breakdown of our workforce by nationality as follows:

During the year, our subsidiaries contributed the following to the Human Resource Development Fund (HRDF):

Employee Breakdown By Nationality 2019
Malaysia

India

Bangladesh

Nepal

Team Building Programme 2019
Safe Chemical Handling
EHS Awareness Briefing & Safe Operation of Manual Handling

Philippines

286
369
89
76
1
Our process for hiring foreign workers and receiving them is conducted in accordance with government requirements.
We appoint foreign workers under the General Worker category through an appointed agent who liaises with relevant
government bodies such as the Ministry of Home Affairs, which determines the quota for foreign workers, as well as the
Department of Labour and Immigration.
All our staff, including foreign workers, are offered standard contracts of employment. For the recruitment of foreign workers,
we use local agents in the workers’ country of origin and are not directly involved in passport and document arrangements.
We have worked with these agents for several years and have not received any complaints with regard to unethical, harsh or
unfair treatment of the workers.

SUBSIDIARY

TOTAL HRDF CONTRIBUTED
(RM) FY2019

AMOUNT HRDF CLAIMED (RM)
FY2019

HRDF BALANCE
(RM) FY2019

REI

141,802

53,305

88,497

HGPT

3,931

-

3,931

GES

8,582

4,000

4,582

TOTAL

154,315

57,305

97,010

Occupational Safety, Health and Environment
The nature of our operations and employment of a large number of manual labour call for the most effective safety and health
measures. Throughout our operations, robust policies and practices are in place to ensure a safe working environment.

Health and Safety Committee
The Safety and Health Committee is represented by middle and senior management as well as operations staff, who work
together to set working policies.
CHAIRMAN OF
SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE

To ensure fair representation, foreign worker representatives are included on our working committees. These committees
meet every quarter. At the site level, we intend to conduct more engagement with foreign workers to provide a platform for
them to voice their needs.

SECRETARY TO THE
SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE

We do not engage labour contractors at the factory or site. We also continuously ensure compliance with housing standards,
which are a requirement for job approval.
SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE

Workforce development
Our Human Resources department works with our other departments to evaluate the competencies of our workforce in line
with our business needs and annual strategic plans. This information is to formulate the short- and long-term human resource
development plan to support business expansion and to enhance the capabilities of employees to enable them to grow in
their career path.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
• Representatives of Employer

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
• Representatives of Employee

The safety structure has been implemented in our active operating locations such as:
Among efforts to enhance workforce competencies is through regular training and education programmes. In 2019, we
invested RM120,000 towards increasing employee knowledge, skills and alignment with the corporate culture. 75.8% of staff
received training, with an average of 23.6 hours per employee over the year.
All local and foreign workers are also given training based on their job requirements. Training conducted for the employees
throughout the year included:
•
•
•
•
•
52

Safe Handling Overhead Crane
Forklift Truck Handling and Proficiency at Workplace
ISO 45001:2018 Awareness Training
ISO 45001 Hirac Training
ISO 45001 Legal Requirement Training
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•
•
•
•
•
•

REI;
GES;
HGPT Jimah Project;
HGPT Slim River Project;
HGPT Pasir Gudang Project; and
HGPT Semenyih Project

To further our commitment to safety and health, we have employed a NIOSH-certified safety officer in REI and GES. The
registered safety officer maintains a valid license at all times. Within each HGPT project, we also station registered competent
health and safety officers on-site, who act as the secretary to the Safety and Health Committee.
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The responsibilities of the Safety and Health Committee are guided by the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 1994,
specifically to:
•
•
•

Number of accident cases 2018 - 2019

12

2019

Identify and evaluate potential hazards;
Recommend corrective actions; and
Follow up on the recommendations to be implemented.

26

2018

Additionally, we have implemented policies and controls to manage the safety standards in RTB Group which include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Induction for new employees and contractors;
Periodic refresher for current employees;
Weekly toolbox meetings on safety awareness and incidences;
Enhancements to machinery safety features (sensors, safety guard, 2-hand safety button);
Safety handling and disciplinary policies and procedures;
Demarcation of hazardous and flammable items;
Monthly inspections by Health Safety Committee and Health Safety Officer; and
Usage of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE).

Compliance to health and safety standards
Our health and safety standards comply with the following local and international requirements:
STANDARDS/REGULATIONS/CERTIFICATIONS

APPLICATIONS

OHSAS 45001 for health and safety

Implemented throughout our operations network, we
have also used this standard to establish our own OHS
system to monitor work-related health and safety
incidents closely.
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Our Community
We strive to provide our communities with opportunities to improve their lives and livelihoods. In recent years, our community
efforts have been focused on our involvement in governments’ rural electrification programmes in Malaysia, Bangladesh and
Laos.
From 2016 to 2019, we have participated in local EPCC projects with transmission lines covering from Hulu Langat, Selangor,
to Lenggeng, Negeri Sembilan, transmission lines in Pasir Gudang, Johor and projects in various locations in Bangladesh
and Laos, where these lines provide better power connectivity to local communities and businesses. This not only allows
households to improve their quality of life, but also enables income generating opportunities.
The power lines and substations the company has helped to roll out are increasingly using renewable energy sources.
Malaysia, which is traditionally dominated by coal gas projects, is adding more mega solar projects. In Bangladesh, electricity
is now available for 85% of the population. This is an increase from 20% two decades ago. While gas dominates as a power
source, the share of generation from wind, hydropower and solar PV is growing. Laos is dominated by hydropower and in
Indonesia we are building and participating in a mini-hydro project via our associate.

Moving Forward
Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and
Department of Occupational Safety and Health’s
(DOSH) requirements

We actively participate in all programmes arranged by
DOSH Pahang which includes training, seminars and
campaigns.
In 2019 we participated in the following programmes
which DOSH Pahang conducted:
•

•

SOHELP programme on self-audit on working 		
environment and improvement plans; and
Ergonomic correct best practises for steel 		
fabrication industry.

The Group has also received several certifications in the area of safety and health including ISO 9001:2014 (REI),
ISO 9001:2015 (HGPT), and ISO 14001:2015 (REI). In addition to our existing standard of ISO 90001 and 14000, our REI
attain the ISO 45000 certification in 2019.
Additionally, we conduct daily briefings on-site to educate and remind workers on safe work practices and compliance with
regulations regarding safety and health. These briefings are vital to building a strong safety culture and reinforcing the
Group’s commitment to protect our workers.

During the year, we submitted plans for environment preservation to the DOE Pahang. The plans are undergoing studies on
cost effectiveness and will be executed upon approval and comment from the DOE. The plans cover:
1. Recirculation of waste heat from the galvanising furnace to be used for drying up steel materials after treatment for
effective use of heat energy and fuel conservation.
2. Proposal of recirculation of cooling water for galvanising treatment to reduce water consumption and wastewater.
For chemical waste, we are also discussing setting up our own acid recycling facility. Currently, chemical waste is sold to a
licensed waste management company. The acid recycling facility will enable us to increase the reuse of our waste.
We are also in the midst of expanding our Sustainability Unit. We intend to formalise our sustainability agenda by establishing
a mandate at the Board level, chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director who will oversee the Group’s objectives,
policies and practices pertaining to our Economic, Environment and Social pillars. This exercise will include identifying and
setting sustainability-related KPIs.
Additionally, we have completed planning the establishment of a Foundation to oversee and manage our corporate social
responsibility activities. We target to form the Foundation in 2020 to formalise our ongoing efforts, which have included
encouraging our staff and workers to participate in voluntary activities in the community.

During the year in review, we reduced the total number of accident cases by more than 50%. We recorded four major
accidents throughout the year, which was similar to the previous year. We target a zero accident rate within REI.
54
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INTRODUCTION
The Board of RTB believes that good corporate governance is an indication of the commitment by the Board to achieve the
highest standards of professionalism. It strives to ensure that it is practised throughout the Group as a fundamental part of
discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders value and raise the performance of the Group.
This Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“Statement”), which is made pursuant to Paragraph 15.25(1) of the Main
Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), sets out the extent to
which the Group has applied the principles and the recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
(“MCCG 2017”) throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”). This Statement made reference and
provide the details on how the Company applied and upheld the three (3) main principles highlighted in MCCG during the
FY2019, which are:-

PRINCIPLE A :
Board Leadership
and Effectiveness

PRINCIPLE B :
Effective Audit
and Risk Management

PRINCIPLE C :
Integrity in Corporate Reporting
and Meaningful Relationship
with Stakeholders

In addition, the Company’s governance framework are based on the following statutory requirements in building the
sustainability values:-

OVERVIEW
The Board

Main Market
Listing Requirements

Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance 2017

Companies Act
2016

RTB Group's Corporate
Governance Framework
GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board as a whole continues to take ownership of effective leadership and the long-term success of RTB Group. The
diversified skills and leadership experience offered by the Non-Executive Directors enables them to scrutinise performance,
assess RTB Group’s risk management and control processes and to support the Executive Directors. Details for each of the
Directors together with their Board responsibilities are set out on pages 20 to 29.

Practice 1.1 – Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
In discharging its functions and responsibilities, the Board is guided by the Board Charter, as well as matters which have
been delegated to the Board Committees as follows:-

The Corporate Governance framework was established to strengthen the oversight of operations, corporate governance,
compliance, internal control and risk management of RTB Group. The key elements of the framework are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Charter;
Terms of Reference for Board Committees;
Business Code of Conduct;
Whistleblowing Framework; and
Risk Management and Internal Control Framework.

Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Remuneration
Committee

The Group is working on an Anti-Bribery Management System and the establishment of an Anti-Bribery & Corruption policy
applicable throughout the RTB Group in line with Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission (Amendment)
Act 2018.

During the year, the Board had carried out the followings tasks to ensure its obligation to shareholders and other
stakeholders are met:-

Good governance depends on capable and effective leadership, professional behaviour and ethical corporate culture.
Therefore the Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities to inculcate the appropriate culture, values which reinforce
ethical, prudent and professional behaviour throughout the organisation to create a healthy and dynamic corporate culture
within RTB Group.

•
•
•
•
•

PRINCIPLE A : BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
Throughout the year, the Board have continued to maintain constructive discourse to deliberate matters concerning
strategy, governance and value.
56

Nomination
Committee
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•

Setting the objectives, goals and long term strategic plan for RTB Group;
Deliberating, scrutinising and approving RTB Group’s strategy, budgets, plans and policies;
Overseeing RTB Group’s business to evaluate whether the business activities are being properly managed;
Understanding principal and potential commercial risks of RTB Group and ensuring that appropriate systems are
developed and put in place by management to manage and mitigate these risks;
Instituting systems of internal controls and recommending improvements to the Group’s operating policies and procedures
for management’s review and implementation are being documented and developed, where required, to safeguard the
Shareholder’s investment and Group’s assets and to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives
and guidelines; and
Deliberating, scrutinising and deciding on managements proposals on investment initiatives.
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Practice 1.2 - Role of Chairman
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for instilling good corporate governance practices, leadership and effectiveness
of the Board appointed.
Tan Sri Wan Azmi who was the Chairman since 8th March 2017 had decided to retire from the Board with effect from 1st
January 2020 to pursue his personal interests. He had shown leadership, entrepreneurship skills and insight to the
business, and instilled sound corporate governance practices in the best interests of RTB Group. During his tenure as the
Chairman, he communicated regularly with Management and other Board Committee members.
Sia Bun Chun who was the Deputy Chairman, succeeds Tan Sri Wan Azmi as the Chairman of the Board. He was previously
the Managing Director of RTB until his retirement from the position on 31st December 2017.

Practice 1.3 - Separation of role of Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer (“Group CEO”)
The Group CEO, Leong Wai Yuan is assisted by a team of senior management in managing the day to day operations of
RTB Group for the financial year under review.

GROUP CEO
CFO

COO of
REI

COO of
HGPT

CIO

COO of
RTT

COO of
RBC

President
of PTRAI

RTB Group continues to comply with the MCCG 2017 in respect of separation of role between Chairman and Group CEO.

Practice 1.4 - Company Secretary
The Company Secretary function of RTB had been outsourced to ED Zone Management Sdn Bhd. The named Company
Secretary is experienced and qualified to carry out the function. The Company Secretary provides advice and assists the
Board and Committees in achieving good corporate governance by ensuring compliance with statutory laws, legislation,
regulatory requirements and other relevant rules and regulations.
The Company Secretary also maintains proper statutory records, registers, and documents for RTB which are essential to
assist the Board to achieve, meet and discharge their fiduciary responsibilities in accordance with good corporate
governance practices. In addition, the Company Secretary is also responsible in ensuring proper conduct at the Annual
General Meetings, Board Committees’ Meeting and any other meetings and the preparation of minutes thereat.

The deliberations and decisions of the Board are recorded in the minutes of meetings and the process for recording
abstention by Directors on a particular matter is in place. The minutes are circulated to the Board prior to the Board meeting
and are reviewed and deliberated before being approved.
All Directors are entitled to obtain independent professional advice, if necessary, at RTB Group’s expense from time to time
in performing their duties, subject to the approval of the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. All Directors also have
full unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAMME
All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the Board procedures are complied with. The details on Company Secretary are on page 12.

All appointed Directors and Alternate Directors are required to participate in training programmes from time to time to
provide them with necessary up to date information to enable them to participate and contribute effectively and efficiently to
manage and direct RTB Group.

Practice 1.5 – Information and Support for Directors
The Directors are provided with sufficient information for Board discussions and meetings. Management makes all possible
effort and continues to improve itself in providing timely information the Board. Key issues are presented and lengthy
deliberation are held to ensure a thorough understanding.
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The Directors and Alternate Director continue to update their knowledge and enhance their skills through appropriate
continuing education programmes to keep them abreast with the current development of industry as well as any new
statutory and regulatory requirements. This also will enable Directors to effectively discharge duties and sustain active
participation in the Board deliberations.
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Assessment on training needs of each Director and Alternate Director, is carried out annually by the Nomination Committee.
The Directors, individually had participated in various training programmes, seminars and briefings in relation to
governance, industry, finance and regulatory developments based on the training needs and role in the organisation. The
Board members had attended the following training programmes, seminars and briefings in FY2019:

BOARD MEETINGS

DIRECTOR

TOPIC

Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

Sia Bun Chun

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

Chee Suan Lye

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

Amirul Azhar Baharom

•
•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training
Cyber Security in the Boardroom

•
•
•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training
Governance for Directors by Australian Institute of Company Director
Finance for Directors by Australian Institute of Company Director

•
•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Advocacy Programme Recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

•
•
•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
MESI 2.0 Conversation
Session on Corporate Governance & Anti-Corruption
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

•
•

'Let’s Get Real’ on Anti-Bribery
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

•

Focus Group Discussion on the Competency Framework for Finance
Function in Public Interest Entities
CFO Conference 2019 (Leading in the Digital Age)
Bursa Malaysia Sustainability Advocacy Programme Recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
Seminar on Industry4WRD
Malaysia Budget 2020 Forum
21st Century Strategy and Risk Management Oversight Training

Dr Ir Jeyanthi Ramasamy

Khor Yu Leng

Wan Afzal-Aris Wan Azmi

Leong Wai Yuan

Wong Mun Keong

Shahrulanuar Ishak

•
•
•
•
•
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Board meetings for the ensuing financial year are planned and scheduled in advance by the Management before the end
of the financial year to enable all Directors to plan ahead.
All Directors are expected to devote sufficient time for the effective discharge of their functions. None of the Directors
of RTB serve in more than five (5) listed companies and the Group CEO does not serve as a director in other listed
companies. The present directorships in external organisations held by RTB’s Directors do not give rise to any conflict of
interests nor impair their ability to discharge their responsibilities to RTB Group.
The Board recognises the need to spend time with Senior Management to discuss on the business strategies, plans and
performances of RTB Group. All Board members have committed their time to this effect. In preparing the strategies and
budget for RTB Group for 2019, the Executive Directors briefed the Board to obtain their views.
During FY2019, eight (8) Board meetings were held to approve quarterly financial results, statutory financial statements,
the annual report, business plans as well as to review the performance of RTB Group and its operating subsidiaries,
governance matters and other business development matters and one (1) meeting on long term business strategy plan of
the Group. The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by Directors towards fulfilling their roles and
responsibilities as Directors which is evidenced by their attendance at the Board, Board Committee meetings and the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) as follows:

Table of Board Composition and Meeting Attendances in FY2019
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

NAME OF DIRECTOR

BOARD MEETINGS

AGM

A&RMC

NC

RC

Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri

8/8

1/1

-

-

1/1

Sia Bun Chun

8/8

1/1

-

-

-

Wan Afzal-Aris Wan Azmi
(Alternate Director to Wan Azmi Wan Hamzah, Tan Sri)

8/8

1/1

-

-

-

Chee Suan Lye

8/8

1/1

12/12

1/1

-

Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail

8/8

1/1

11/12

1/1

1/1

Amirul Azhar Baharom

8/8

1/1

12/12

-

-

Dr Ir Jeyanthi Ramasamy

8/8

1/1

12/12

1/1

1/1

Khor Yu Leng

8/8

1/1

-

-

1/1

Leong Wai Yuan

8/8

1/1

-

-

-

Wong Mun Keong

7/8

1/1

-

-

-

Shahrulanuar Ishak

8/8

1/1

-

-

-

Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Non-Independent Executive Directors

Note:
The attendance record above reflects the Directors and meetings held for periods applicable from the date when they were
Directors and alternate Director of RTB and members of Board Committees.
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Practice 2.1 - Board Charter

Based on the chronology of the Directors’ appointment to the Board, the following directors shall retire by rotation in
accordance with Clause 139 of the Constitution of the Company:-

The Board has in place a Board Charter which is accessible on RTB Group website. The Board Charter demarcates the
responsibilities between Board, Board Committee, Chairman, Group CEO, individual Directors and Company Secretary.
The Board shall review the said Charter periodically and any amendments or improvements shall be made thereto as and
when the Board deems appropriate and necessary. Any subsequent amendments shall be approved by the Board.

•
•
•

Sia Bun Chun;
Wong Mun Keong; and
Leong Wai Yuan.

All the above Directors concerned, who are required to retire from office pursuant to Clause 139 of the Constitution of the
Company, have consented to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
Practice 3.1 - Code of Conduct
Business Code of Conduct is in place which includes policies and procedures for managing conflicts of interest as well as
preventing abuse of power, corruption, insider trading and money laundering which is accessible from RTB Group’s
website.
All Directors and employees were provided with the Business Code of Conduct. All employees are required to read the
Business Code of Conduct and sign off in acknowledgement.

Practice 4.4 & 4.5 - Diversity on Board and in Senior Management
The Board acknowledges importance of fostering diversity to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and senior
management.
The Board comprises members who have vast experience in the engineering, construction as well as professionals in the
finance, legal and consulting sectors. The Board brings in a wide spectrum of diverse skills and expertise to RTB Group
which allows it to meet its objectives in the competitive business environment.

Practice 3.2 - Establishing and Implementation of Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures
RTB Group has put in place a Whistleblowing Policy with the aim to enable individuals to raise genuine concerns without
fear of retaliation. This policy details the oversight and responsibilities of the whistleblowing process, the reporting process,
protection and confidentiality given to the whistleblowers. An overview of the Whistleblowing Policy is available on RTB’s
website.

The Board composition, excluding the Alternate Director, in terms of gender, age, ethnicity and independence for the
financial year under review is illustrated below:
DIVERSITY
TYPE OF DIRECTORSHIP

Practice 4.1 - Presence of Independent Directors on the Board
The Board for the financial year under review has ten (10) members comprising two (2) Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director, three (3) Non-Independent Executive Directors and five (5) Independent Non-Executive Directors. During the
financial year, the Board also has one (1) Alternate Director. Please refer to Table of Board Composition and Meeting
Attendances in FY 2019 under Practice 1.5. This is in line with MCCG’s practice 4.1.

Independent
Executive
Non-Executive Non Independent

50.00%
30.00%
20.00%

Male
Female

70.00%
30.00%

30 - 39
40 - 49
50 - 59
60 - 69
70 and above

10%
40%
20%
20%
10%

Bumi
Chinese
Indian

40.00%
50.00%
10.00%

GENDER

AGE

Practice 4.2 & 4.3 - Tenure of Independent Directors
All Independent Directors has not exceeded nine (9) years tenure. The Board Charter set out policy to limit the tenure of
Independent Directors to nine (9) years.
In accordance with Article 104 of the previous Company’s Articles of Association or Clause 139 of the Constitution of the
Company and Paragraph 7.26(2) of the MMLR, at least one-third (1/3) of the Board is subject to retirement by rotation at
each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Pursuant to Article 104 of the then Articles of Association of the Company,
Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail, Chee Suan Lye and Amirul Azhar Baharom were re-elected at the 25th AGM held on 29 May
2019.
In accordance with Article 109 of the previous Company’s Articles of Association or Clause 144 of the Constitution of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall only hold office until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. Khor Yu Leng, who was appointed to the Board on 13
November 2018, retired in accordance with Article 109 and was re-elected at the 25th AGM held on 29 May 2019.

COMPOSITION PERCENTAGE

ETHNICITY

Practice 4.6 - Appointment of Directors
The appointment of a new director is for consideration and decision by the full Board upon the recommendation from the
Nomination Committee (“NC”).
In identifying candidates for appointment of directors, the Board does not solely rely on recommendations from existing
board members, management or major shareholders. The Board utilises independent sources, such as 30% Club Malaysia,
to identify suitably qualified candidates.
The Board will take into consideration and review the appropriate skills, independence, experience and knowledge
required of the Board members, in the context of the needs of RTB Group. The Board will also review its composition and
size from time to time to ensure its appropriateness and effectiveness.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEE

Practice 7.1 & 7.2 & 7.3 - Disclosure of Remuneration

Practice 4.7 - Nomination Committee

Details of the quantum of the individual directors’ remuneration on named basis are as set out in the Corporate Governance
(“CG”) Report under Practice 7.1 and for the top five Senior Management for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
under Practice 7.2.

The NC, which comprises three (3) Directors, are exclusively made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mohamed
Tarmizi Ismail is the Chairman of NC.
During the financial year under review, the NC met once to discuss matters within its term of reference. The principal
objectives and role of the NC is available in the Company’s website.

PRINCIPLE B : EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Practice 8.1 - Chairman of Audit Committee

The key activities undertaken by the NC during the year are as follows:
•

Further refining the fit and proper test for appointment of directors and recommending the same assessment to be
applied for appointment of alternate directors;

•

Evaluated and recommended the appointment of Head of Legal and Secretarial and Head of Internal Audit to the Board.

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“A&RMC”) is Madam Chee Suan Lye, a Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director, and she is not the Chairman of the Board. This is in compliance with the Step up recommendation
of MCCG 2017 and MMLR.

Practice 8.2 & 8.3 - Cooling off period for Key Audit Partner and Assessment of External Auditor
Practice 5.1 - Evaluation for Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors
As indicated in the terms of reference (“TOR”) of NC, the Board acknowledges that the NC needs to perform annual
assessment of Board Committees and individual Director’s performances. For the financial year under review, a formal and
objective evaluation has been conducted by the NC to determine the effectiveness of the Board, the Board Committees
and the individual directors.

RTB Group has in place a policy, available in the Company’s website, for former key audit partner of existing external
auditor on observing a cooling-off period if they are to be consider to be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
The policy also assesses the suitability, objectivity and independence of the external auditor.
The A&RMC had undertaken an assessment of the independence, timeliness, competence, audit quality and resource
capacity of the external auditor, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT in relation to the audit, the nature and extent of the non-audit
services rendered and the appropriateness of the level of fees.

Practice 6.1 - Remuneration Policy and Procedures for Directors and Senior Management
Practice 8.4 - Independence of Audit Committee
Directors’ remuneration is formulated by the Remuneration Committee (“RC”) to be competitive and realistic with the aim to
attract, motivate and retain Directors with the relevant experience, expertise and quality needed to assist in managing RTB
Group effectively.

The A&RMC consists of four (4) members of which all are independent non-executive directors. None of them are alternate
directors.

The level of remuneration is linked to their experience and level of responsibilities undertaken for Non-Executive Directors
whilst for the Executive Directors, the remuneration packages link rewards to corporate and individual performance.

Practice 8.5 - Financial Literacy of Audit Committee Member
The A&RMC possess the right mix of skills to discharge its duties effectively.

Practice 6.2 - Remuneration Committee
The RC was chaired by Tan Sri Wan Azmi, comprises of four (4) Directors, who are Non-Executive Directors, and of which
three (3) are Independent Non-Executive Directors. With the retirement of Tan Sri Wan Azmi, Sia Bun Chun was appointed
as a member of the RC and subsequently Chairman of RC.

A&RMC is chaired by Madam Chee Suan Lye who has been a member of, the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1978. Madam Chee possesses sufficient financial knowledge to provide satisfactory input on financial
matters. A&RMC also comprises members with legal, corporate and finance backgrounds which are financially literate and
provide diverse perspectives that strengthen the quality of deliberations.

During the financial year under review the RC met once to discuss matters within its term of reference. The terms of
reference are as follows:

All members receive ongoing training and development as detailed on page 60.

(a)
		

review and recommend the individual remuneration packages for each of the Executive Committee members of
RTB Group; and

Practice 9.1 & 9.2 - Risk Management and Internal Controls

(b)
		
		

ensure that a strong link is maintained between the level of remuneration and individual performance against
agreed targets, the performance-related elements of remuneration forming a significant proportion of the total
remuneration package of the Executive Committee members of RTB Group.

The Board remains committed to ensuring that its communications with shareholders continue to present a fair, balanced
and understandable assessment of RTB Group and its prospects. The Board is responsible for determining the nature and
extent of the significant risks it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
Principal risks and uncertainties associated with RTB Group’s business are summarised on pages 74 to 77 of the Statement
of Risk Management and Internal Control. The A&RMC monitors and reports on RTB Group’s risk management systems,
corporate reporting and internal control principles. A&RMC is also responsible for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with its internal and external auditors. The 2019 A&RMC Report is set out on pages 70 to 73.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont’d)

Practice 9.3 - Establishment of Risk Management Committee
RTB Group had embarked on risk management initiatives by establishing an Enterprise Risk Management Framework
(“ERM”). A Risk Management Working Group (“RMWG”) is in place comprising of the Executive Directors of RTB Group
with Group CEO as the chairman of the RMWG.
Oversight of risk has been delegated by the Board to the A&RMC. The A&RMC has responsibility for regularly reviewing
the risk management framework to ensure it remains sound. The A&RMC is assisted by RMWG which is responsible for
driving and supporting risk management across RTB Group.
The key features of RTB Group’s ERM policy are:
•
•
•
•
•

Sound risk management practice promotes effective governance which is integral to the achievement of business
objectives.
Embedding risk management into day-to-day management processes, decision-making and strategic planning.
Every employee of the organisation is responsible to manage risks within their areas of responsibility.
Periodic reporting and monitoring activities instils accountability and responsibility for managing risks.
The risk management processes applied should aim to take advantage of opportunities, manage uncertainties and
minimise threats.

Practice 10.1 & 10.2 - Effectiveness of Internal Audit Function
RTB Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent internal audit service provider, namely BDO
Governance Advisory Sdn Bhd (“BDO”). During the financial year, RTB Group had recruited a new Head of Internal Audit
who is responsible for the overall internal audit activities of RTB Group, including coordinating with BDO. The primary
function of internal audit is to undertake systematic reviews of the governance, risk and internal control systems within
RTB Group in accordance with an internal audit plan, so as to provide assurance that such systems are adequate and
functioning as proposed. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the A&RMC.
The internal audit function’s responsibilities are to provide independent and objective reports on the state of internal
controls of the various operating units within RTB Group to the A&RMC and provide recommendations for the improvement
of the control procedures, so that corrective actions are taken to mitigate weaknesses noted in the system and controls of
the respective operating units.
Details of the internal audit activities and scope of coverage of the outsourced internal audit function including the cost
incurred are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C : INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Practice 11.1 - Communication with Stakeholders
The Board is committed to ensure that the Group continue to engage effectively with the shareholders to facilitate a mutual
understanding of objectives. RTB Group has a number of formal channels in place to effectively communicate this
information to all the shareholders and stakeholders. The Board primarily achieve this through the following activities; the
annual report, announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, quarterly reports, press releases, Group’s website and
investor relations.
RTB Group also maintains a website which shareholders and other stakeholders can gain access to information about RTB
Group, activities and/or any announcements made by RTB Group. This can all be located at rohastecnic.com.
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Practice 12.1 - Notice of General Meeting

Corporate Governance (“CG”) Report

Notice for the AGM was given to the shareholders at least 28 days prior to the meeting so that shareholders have adequate
time to consider the resolutions that will be discussed at the AGM.

As required under paragraph 15.25 (2) of MMLR, RTB Group’s application of each Practice of the MCCG 2017 during the
financial year, explanations for departure where applicable and the timelines set-out for compliance or the implementation
of alternative practice are set out in the RTB CG Report and can be downloaded at rohastecnic.com.

Practice 12.2 - Attendance of Directors at General Meeting
The Board uses the AGM to communicate with investors and encourages their participation. Shareholders are invited to
attend the AGM each year and to ask questions. The Chairman of the A&RMC, NC and RC are to be present at that
meeting to answer questions on the work of the Committees.

Practice 12.3 – Use of Technology for Shareholders Voting
RTB does not have a large number of shareholders and its 25th AGM was held in Kuala Lumpur, at a strategic and familiar
location with easy accessibility and where most shareholders were able to attend. Hence, the use of technology was not
deemed necessary at the 25th AGM held in the FY2019.
As for voting in absentia and remote shareholders’ participation, the shareholders are allowed to appoint any person(s)
or the Chairman of the meeting as their proxies to attend, participate, speak and vote in his/her stand at the general
meetings.

Compliance with the MCCG 2017
The Board considers that RTB Group has complied with the best practice and applied the main principles of MCCG 2017
with the exception of the following:
EXPLANATION
Practice 6.1

The Board has established a formal process to determine and approve the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management, and it is periodically reviewed.
The process and procedures to determine the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management are not published on the Company’s website due to the highly competitive
industries and might bring disadvantage to the Group.

Practice 7.2 & 7.3

To preserve confidentiality, RTB Group does not comply with recommendation to disclose on
named basis the top five senior management’s remuneration in the bands of RM50,000.

Practice 11.2

Large companies are encouraged to adopt integrated reporting based on a globally
recognised framework. This is not applicable to the Company as the size of the Company does
require such reporting.

Practice 12.3

The use of technology was not necessary as RTB did not have large number of shareholders
and its 25th AGM was held in Kuala Lumpur, at a strategic and familiar location with easy
accessibility and where most shareholders were able to attend.
However, with the COVID-19 outbreak in 2020, the Company has decided to leverage on
available technology and the implementation of electronic voting and remote participation by
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D)

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (the “A&RMC”) plays a key role in assisting the Board to fulfil the Board’s
oversight responsibilities for the Group during FY2019.

e)

The principal objective of A&RMC is to implement and support the oversight function of the Board in the area of governance,
risk management and internal control; the A&RMC reviews RTB Group’s financial data, its internal controls, corporate
code of conduct, the independence of RTB Group’s external auditors, and maintain an open line of communication and
consultation between the Board, the internal auditors, the external auditors and Management.
In FY 2019, the A&RMC were focused principally on assisting the Board to review the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s
financial administration and reporting, internal control and risk management systems for compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.

The A&RMC meeting dates are arranged ahead and communicated to the auditors in advance for them to prepare the
Audit Review Memorandum, Audit Planning Memorandum and Audited Financial Statements for presentation to the
A&RMC in order to meet deadlines.

A&RMC MEETINGS CONDUCTED IN FY 2019
The Group Chief Executive Officer (“GCEO”), the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and the Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”) who
are Executive Directors of the Company (“Executive Directors”) were invited to attend all A&RMC meetings to provide a direct
flow of information to the A&RMC as well as to provide any clarification required under their areas of responsibility in event of
any issues arising. The Executive Directors also tabled proposals and other matters that required the A&RMC’s approval and
the CFO presented the reports on the financial results.

The A&RMC is pleased to present this A&RMC Report for FY 2019, which was approved by the Board.
The Head of Internal Audit, outsourced independent internal auditors and relevant senior personnel were invited to brief the
A&RMC when specific issues involving their respective areas of responsibility arose from risk management and internal audit
reports. The external auditors were also invited to present to the A&RMC the audit plan, the audit findings, the independent
auditors’ report as well as any other matters as they considered were important for the A&RMC’s attention. The A&RMC had
conducted two (2) private sessions with the external auditors without the presence of Executive Directors and Management
at meetings held in 2019, to provide opportunities to the external auditors to raise any matters without the presence of the
Executive Directors and Management.

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE
The members of the A&RMC are as follows:

		
			
		
			
		
			
		
			
		
			

POSITION		NAME				ATTENDANCE
TERM OF REFERENCE
Chairman		

Chee Suan Lye			

12/12

Member			

Mohamed Tarmizi Ismail		

11/12

Member			

Amirul Azhar Baharom		

12/12

Member			

Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi Ramasamy		

12/12

A&RMC primary functions are as follows:
a)

A&RMC consists of four (4) members of which all are independent non-executive directors. None of them are alternate
directors.

b) review the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, focusing on, amongst others,
change in implementation of major accounting policies and practices, significant and unusual events, significant
adjustments arising from the audit, the going concern assumption and compliance with accounting standards and other
regulatory or legal requirements;
c)

Madam Chee Suan Lye, the Chairman of A&RMC is a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director in accordance with
paragraph 15.02(3) of listing requirement. She is not the Chairman of the Board. This is in compliance with the Step up
recommendation of CG Code and MMLR.

MEETINGS

review with the internal and/or external auditors the nature and scope of their audit plans, audit reports, major findings
and evaluations of the internal controls system;

review matter concerning the suitability for appointment or reappointment of external auditors and matters relating to their
resignation;

d) review any related party transactions entered into by RTB Group and any conflict of interest situations that may arise
within RTB Group;
e)

review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the
necessary authority to carry out its work and to report the same to the Board;

f)

perform such other functions as may be requested by the Board;

General conduct of Meetings
a)

A&RMC meets at least four (4) times a year and as many times as the A&RMC deems necessary;

b) The quorum for any meeting of A&RMC shall be at least two (2) Independent Directors members, where more than two
(2) members are present then majority of members present must be Independent Directors;
c)

h)

review the effectiveness of internal control systems deployed by the management to address those risks;

i)

review and recommend corrective measures undertaken to remedy failings and/or weaknesses;

j)

review and further monitor principal risks that may affect RTB Group directly or indirectly that if deemed necessary,
recommend additional course of action to mitigate such risks;

The Secretary to A&RMC shall be the Company Secretary or any other person appointed by the A&RMC;

d) The Secretary is responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing up the Agenda and circulating it to
the A&RMC members prior to each meeting. The Secretary is also responsible for keeping the minutes of the
meeting of A&RMC, and circulating to the A&RMC members and to other members of the Board; and
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g) review the adequacy of RTB Group’s risk management framework and assess the resources and knowledge of the
management and employee involved in the risk management process;
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k)

communication and monitoring of risk assessment results to the Board; and

10. Conducted a review on proposed framework for Evaluation of Investment Opportunities.

l)

actual and potential impact of any failing or weakness, particularly those related to financial performance or conditions
affecting RTB Group.

As highlighted by the A&RMC to the Board, from the review conducted, there were areas that requires improvement to further
strengthen the governance process of the organisation to ensure risk, inherent and new, are adequately identified, addressed
and monitored closely. Management is continuously reviewing its internal processes and documentation to ensure areas for
improvement identified are being addressed and action plans are in place to mitigate risks. Management has also completed
the process of documenting its policies and procedures that are in place to support the governance structure of the Group
and is now going through the next phase of further improving the documentation to achieve effectiveness and efficiency of
its internal control procedures and processes.

AUTHORITY
A&RMC shall have the authority to:1.

Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

2.

Have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

3.

Have full and unrestricted access to any information which it requires in the course of performing its duties;

4.

Have direct communication channels amongst the internal and external auditors;

5.

Obtain independent/external professional or other advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary; and

6.

Convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance of other Directors
and employees of RTB Group, whenever deemed necessary.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

RTB Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent internal audit service provider, namely BDO Governance
Advisory Sdn Bhd (“BDO”). During the financial year, RTB Group had recruited a new Head of Internal Audit who is responsible
for the overall internal audit activities of RTB Group, including coordinating with BDO. The primary function of internal audit
is to undertake systematic reviews of the governance, risk and internal control systems within RTB Group in accordance with
an internal audit plan, so as to provide assurance that such systems are adequate and functioning as proposed. The Head
of Internal Audit reports directly to the A&RMC.
The internal audit function’s responsibilities are to provide independent and objective reports on the state of internal controls
of the various operating units within RTB Group to the A&RMC and provide recommendations for the improvement of the
control procedures, so that corrective actions are taken to mitigate weaknesses noted in the system and controls of the
respective operating units.
Details of the internal audit activities and scope of coverage of the internal audit function including the cost incurred are set
out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in this Annual Report.

The principal activities undertaken by A&RMC during the financial year are summarised as follows:-
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1.

Conducted quarterly and year-end financial review of the unaudited interim financial statements prior to recommending
the same for the Board’s approval, focusing particularly on significant and unusual events and compliance with
accounting standards and other legal requirements;

2.

Conducted a review on the appointment of the external and internal auditors, their independence and effectiveness
including their fees;

3.

Conducted a review of the external auditors’ audit planning memorandum, comprising their scope of audit, key audit
areas, audit approach and timetable;

4.

Engaged with the external auditors twice during the year without the presence of RTB Group’s Management to discuss
relevant issues and obtain feedback;

5.

Conducted a review on the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function,
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

6.

Conducted a review on engagement terms with outsource internal auditors;

7.

Conducted a review on annual internal audit plan for 2019/2020;

8.

Conducted a review on the scope and results of the internal audit procedures as well as Management’s response to
recommendations for improvement, and evaluation of adequacy of the internal control system based on the reports
from the internal auditors;

9.

Reviewed the updates of the key risk management report of RTB Group as presented by the RMWG on the key risks
faced by RTB Group and action plans deployed to manage the risks concerned; and
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INTRODUCTION

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (the “Statement”) is prepared pursuant to the Main Market Listing
Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”) and in accordance with the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, a publication of Bursa.

The Group has an established ERM Framework and has extended this framework to subsidiaries of the Group. The Group
also has a Risk Management Working Group (“RMWG”) which comprises the Executive Directors of the RTB. The Chairman
of the RMWG, the Group CEO, is responsible to present the findings of the RMWG to the A&RMC.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to have oversight over Management, in an ongoing manner, the
adequacy, effectiveness and integrity of the risk management and internal control system. The Board maintains overall
responsibility for risk oversight through its A&RMC.

				

The Board has formalised an Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework” or “framework”) which is based on
International accepted framework. The framework aids to the achievement of Group’s objectives and strategies by instilling
continuous process of identifying, evaluating, profiling, mitigating, reporting and monitoring significant business risks the
Group may face.

NTIFICATION
E
D
I

Risk Management Working Group
Group Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Investment Officer
							

E

IG

Chief Operating Officer of subsidiaries and Head of Departments

A Risk Officer shall consolidate the departmental risk register and prepare a company-wide risk management report. All
new risks and material changes to existing risks shall be highlighted by the Heads of department to the Risk Officer, as and
when they are identified, and changes/updates shall be made to the department’s risk register. The RMWG will review the risk
management report and the updated risk registers prior to presentation to the A&RMC.

AT
IN

G

P

F
RO

IL

Update
Division Risk Register
There are inherent limitations in any system of risk management and internal control (“system”), thus, the system is designed
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business and corporate objectives. The system
is therefore designed to only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against any material misstatement, financial
loss or fraudulent activity.
Management is responsible in developing procedures and processes as well as implement internal controls which will help
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor business risks. Management also takes corrective actions as and when needed in
order to assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities in maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control.
The Board has received assurance from the Group CEO and CFO that the Group has in place a reasonable risk
management and internal control system that are operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the
risk management and internal control system of the Group. The Management has completed the process of documenting
its policies and procedures that are in place to assist with the governance structure of the Group. It is now going through
the next phase of addressing immediate gaps in the process and further improving those documentations to guide the
Group as it grows.
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Conduct Risk Review
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Division Risk Register
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Risk Officer

Review
Risk Management Report
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the A&RMC

Review updated
Risk Register

Risk Management
Working Committee

A&RMC

The RMWG is responsible to promote and ensure that the risk management process and culture are embedded throughout
the Group. During the year, as part of the process of updating the status of the business risk, the Heads of department during
the sessions with the Risk Officer, revisited the business risk identified in the ERM Framework and provided updates.
The key responsibilities of the RMWG are to provide regular reporting and update to the Board on key risk management
issues. The RMWG met twice during the year to update the business risk identified in the ERM and updated the A&RMC
accordingly with regards to status of the risk identified and updates on the mitigating factors.
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The key features of the Group’s ERM policy are:

The internal audit reviews are performed based on an internal audit plan approved by the A&RMC. Internal Audit review
findings together with management’s comments and action plans are presented and reviewed by the A&RMC. Follow-up
reviews will be conducted to report to the A&RMC on the status of implementation of management action plans.

•
Sound risk management practice promotes effective governance which is integral to the achievement of business
		 objectives.
•
Embedding risk management into day-to-day management processes, decision-making and strategic planning.
•
Every employee of the organisation is responsible to manage risks within their areas of responsibility.
•
Periodic reporting and monitoring activities instils accountability and responsibility for managing risks.
•
The risk management processes applied should aim to take advantage of opportunities, manage uncertainties and
		
minimise threats.
The key Business Risks identified are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Over reliance on key customers;
Business Expansion and Growth;
Fluctuations in Prices of Steel as Raw Materials;
Financial Risks of RTB Group;
Impact of Inflation;
Government /Economic/ Fiscal/ Monetary Policies;
Foreign exchange fluctuations; and
Project Management

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the following areas were identified and selected for internal audit with the
A&RMC’s concurrence: •
Procurement Management which cover three (3) areas, mainly the vendor management, procurement process and
		 payables;
•
Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) General Controls Review which looks into the functionality and performance
		
of the ERP, and Segregation of Duties matrix;
•
Project Management looks into claims process, tendering and award procedures, payments, variation orders
		
management and project monitoring;
•
Fixed Asset Management which starts from compliance with written processes, recording, purchase, computation
		
of depreciation, disposal and write-offs, and insurance cover; and
•
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance process.
The total cost incurred for the internal audit function for the financial year under review amounted to approximately RM173,759.

ISO AUDIT FUNCTION
The details of risk description and key mitigation steps are explained in the Management Discussion & Analysis report on
pages 42 and 43.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

As per requirement of the ISO 9001:2015 –QMS & ISO 14001:2015 -EMS certifications, scheduled audits are conducted
internally on yearly basis as well as by the independent certification body, Lloyd’s Register & Bureau Veritas. Management
Review Committee reviews the issues arising from these audits, develop action plans and follow-up reviews are conducted to
ensure all matters have been resolved. Flow charts are used to document the information which describe and maps out the
key processes in the manufacturing business.

Internal control is embedded in the Group’s operations as follows:
•
Clear organizational structure with defined reporting lines;
•
Annual strategic business planning, budgeting and reporting process;
•
Clearly documented ISO procedures for manufacturing operation and clearly defined job description for the
		
purpose of succession planning;
•
Internal audit function provides assurance of the effectiveness of the system of internal control within the Group.
		
Regular internal audit visits are undertaken to review the effectiveness of the control procedures;
•
Review of internal audit reports and follow-up on findings by the A&RMC;
•
Regular Board and A&RMC meetings to assess the Group’s internal controls, performance and risks;
•
Monthly meeting between the EXCO and Senior Management to monitor and get updates on the operations of the
		
operating units; the meeting is chaired by the Group CEO;
•
Review of monthly management reports by the EXCO and Senior Management to deliberate on results and
		
business strategies, which includes review of performance against budgeted numbers;
•
Human Resource function sets out policies for business code of conduct, recruitment and staff appraisal to ensure
		
that staff is competent and adequately trained in carrying out their responsibilities; and
•
Documented policies and procedures that are continuously being reviewed, to identify gaps and enhance the
		 documentation.

CONCLUSION
In assisting the Board to assess the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system, the A&RMC conducted a review of the observations raised by the internal and external auditors. Matters
have been highlighted by the internal and external auditors to the Management and have or are currently being addressed.
Taking into consideration the assurance from the Management and input from the relevant assurance providers, the Board
is satisfied that the risk management and internal control system in place for the year under review and up to the date of
issuance of the financial statements is adequate to safeguard the shareholders’ investment, Group’s assets and the interests
of internal and external stakeholders.
Additionally, the Board regards the risks faced by the Group are within acceptable levels in relation to its business objectives.
There were no material losses or fraud during the year under review as a result of weaknesses in internal control. The
Management is continuously taking necessary measures to improve and strengthening the risk management and internal
control system of the Group.

REVIEW OF STATEMENT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Internal Audit Function (“IAF”) is carried out in accordance with the International Professional Practice Framework
(“IPPF”) by the Head of Internal Audit and assisted by an external independent professional firm, namely BDO Governance
Advisory Sdn Bhd. The profile of the Head of Internal Audit is in the Key Senior Management on page 32. The external IAF
team is headed by a BDO’s Executive Director who possesses the relevant qualification and experience, and is assisted by
a team of three (3) staff including a manager.
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Pursuant to Paragraph 15.23 of Bursa’s Listing Requirements, the external auditors have reviewed this Statement for
incorporation in the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The external auditors have reported to
the Board that, based on their review of the procedures performed and evidence obtained, it can be found that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement intended to be included in the Annual Report is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures required by Paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issues to be set out, nor is the Statement factually
inaccurate. This Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 13 May 2020.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

1.

The Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) Requires The Board Of Directors To Prepare
Financial Statements Which Give A True And Fair View Of The State Of Affairs
Together With The Results And Cash Flows Of The Company And The Group
For Each Financial Year. As Required By The Act And The MMLR, The Financial
Statements For FY2019 Have Been Prepared In Accordance With The Applicable
Approved Financial Reporting Standards Issued By The Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board And Provisions Of The Act.

UTILISATION OF PROCEED
The total proceeds generated from the Issuance of Shares pursuant to private placement had been utilised as follows:-

			
				
Intended			Actual
									Timeframe			Utilisation
									For		Proposed
up to
				Purpose					Utilisation

Utilisation

31/12/2019

										

RM’000		RM’000

i)

Establish new facilities at Lot 5C & 5D in Bentong, Pahang		

12 months

5,700		

5,700

ii)

Project investment for Mini hydropower plant in Indonesia		

12 months

5,000		

5,000

iii) Purchase of machinery and equipment to upgrade existing		
facilities in Bentong, Pahang					

24 months

4,260		

4,260

iv) Working capital

24 months

3,000		

3,000

1 month		

4,200		

4,200

24 months

4,300		

4,300

v)

					

Estimated expenses for the Proposed Regularisation Plan		

vi) Partial funding of the cash consideration for the purchase of HGPT
TOTAL GROSS PROCEEDS

						26,460		26,460

In preparing the financial statements for FY2019 set out on pages 82 to 169 of this Annual Report, the Board considers that the
Company and the Group have adopted appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates. The Board also acknowledges that the Company and the Group have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Board has the responsibility for ensuring that the Company and the Group maintain accounting records that disclose the
financial position of the Company and the Group with reasonable accuracy which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements are in compliance with the Act.
The Board also has the overall responsibility to take such steps that are reasonably available for them to safeguard the assets
of the Company and of the Group as well as to prevent and detect fraud in addition to other irregularities.

2.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING THE INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

This Statement of Directors’ Responsibility is made in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board on 13 May 2020.

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and/or its subsidiaries involving the interests of Directors
and/or chief executive and/or major shareholders, either still subsisting at the end of FY2019 or entered into since the
end of the previous financial year.

3.

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES
The amount of audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the external auditors of the Company and of the Group for
FY2019 are as follows:

								 Group		Company
Details of fees					RM’000		 RM’000
Statutory Audit fees					
Non-audit fees					
								

4.

268		
69		
337		

65
4
69

RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (“RRPT”) OF REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE
The Company and the Group did not enter into any RRPT which requires the shareholders’ mandate during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year except as disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding whilst those of its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial
statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial
year.
RESULTS
Group

Company

RM

RM

Profit after tax for the financial year

18,320,057

6,542,772

Attributable to:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

17,279,828
1,040,229

6,542,772
-

18,320,057

6,542,772

DIRECTORS
The name of the Directors of the Company in office during the financial year and during the period commencing from the end
of the financial year to the date of this report are:Directors of the Company:
Sia Bun Chun
Chee Suan Lye
Mohamed Tarmizi Bin Ismail
Amirul Azhar Bin Baharom
Dr. Ir. Jeyanthi A/P Ramasamy
Khor Yu Leng
Wan Afzal-Aris Bin Wan Azmi (Resigned as alternate for Tan
Sri Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah on 1 January
2020) (Appointed as Director on 13 January 2020)

Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries:
Tan Sri Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah
(Resigned on 1 January 2020)
Leong Wai Yuan
Shahrulanuar Bin Ishak
Wong Mun Keong

The Directors of the subsidiaries since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report, not including those Directors
listed above are:Harianto Taruna
Ramlan Bin Safri
Rishabh Dev Khaitan

DIVIDENDS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Dividends paid since the end of the previous financial year are as follows:-

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016, the
interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations of those who were Directors
as at year end (including the interests of spouses or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company)
are as follows:-

RM
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2018:Final single tier dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share, paid on 28 August 2019

At
1.1.2019

Bought

At
31.12.2019

Sold

Interests in the Company

In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2019:Interim single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share, paid on 31 January 2020

Number of ordinary shares

4,726,577

2,363,288
7,089,865

Direct interests
Tan Sri Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan
Hamzah

63,305,710

Sia Bun Chun

-

-

63,305,710

29,998,109

140,900

-

30,139,009

-

3,500,000

-

3,500,000

139,743,531

-

-

139,743,531

38,412,968

-

-

38,412,968

Leong Wai Yuan
The Directors recommend a final single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share in respect of the current financial year for the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The current financial statements does not reflect this proposed dividend.
Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the
financial year ending 31 December 2020.

Indirect interests
Tan Sri Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan
Hamzah*
Sia Bun Chun*

(*) Indirect interests by virtue of shares held by spouse.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)

By virtue of Tan Sri Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah, Mr. Sia Bun Chun and Mr. Leong Wai Yuan’s interests in the
shares of the Company, they are also deemed interested in the shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent that the Company has
an interest under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:(a)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares
of the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(b)

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading; or

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

(c)

During the financial year, the fees and other benefits received and receivable by the Directors of the Group and of the Company
are as follows:-

which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group
and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

(d)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.

Directors’ fees
Directors’ salaries and other emoluments
Defined contribution plans
Benefits-in-kind

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

Incurred by the
subsidiaries

Incurred by
the Company

Total

RM

RM

RM

-

317,500

317,500

1,801,186

352,000

2,153,186

177,557

-

177,557

1,978,743

669,500

2,648,243

88,970

-

88,970

2,067,713

669,500

2,737,213

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a party, with the object or
objects of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

(a)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liability of any other person; or

(b)

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the Directors:(a)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of
twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company
to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

(b)

the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially affected by
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(c)

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction
or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Group and of the
Company for the current financial year in which this report is made.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
There were no changes in the issued and paid up capital of the Company and no issuance of debentures during the financial
year.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The amount of insurance premium paid for Directors and Officers of the Group and of the Company during the financial year is RM28,000.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

84

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:-

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision
for doubtful debts,and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision
had been made for doubtful debts; and

The significant event and subsequent event to the financial year are disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements.

(b)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business including their
values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company have been written down to an amount
which they might be expected so to realise.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

AUDITORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 92 to 169 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016
in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2019
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

The total amount of fees paid to or receivable by the Auditors, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, as remuneration for their services
as Auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are RM65,000 and RM202,800
respectively.
There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for Auditors of the Company.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Auditors, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

…….........................................................
				
................................................................
SIA BUN CHUN 				
			
LEONG WAI YUAN

............…...........................................….		
)
SIA BUN CHUN			
)
						)
						)
						)
						)
						)
				
)
			
)
				
)
				
)
				
)
						)
............…...........................................….		
)
LEONG WAI YUAN			
)
					
					
Kuala Lumpur
13 May 2020

Kuala Lumpur
13 May 2020

DIRECTORS

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Shahrulanuar Bin Ishak, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Rohas Tecnic Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out on pages 92 to
169 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by 			
)
the abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in 			
)
the Federal Territory this day of			
)
13 May 2020			
)
..............................................................……….....
			
SHAHRULANUAR BIN ISHAK
			
		
(MIA No. 28067)
Before me:

Commissioner for Oaths
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

TO THE MEMBERS OF

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 199401016997 (302675 - A)

Inventories-valuation net

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Refer to Note 13 to the financial statements. The Group holds a significant amount of inventories which are subject to a risk
that the inventories become slow-moving or obsolete, such that they could not be sold or only be sold for selling prices that
are less than the carrying value. There is inherent subjectivity and estimation required in determining the accuracy of inventory
obsolescence provision and in making an assessment of its adequacy due to risks such as inventories prices not valid and
inventories not stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Rohas Tecnic Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at
31 December 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 92
to 169.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Our response
For both finished goods and raw materials, we tested the methodology for calculating the provisions, challenged the
appropriateness and consistency of judgements and assumptions, and considered the nature and suitability of historic data
used in estimating the provisions. In doing so, we obtained understanding on the ageing profile of inventories, the process for
identifying specific problem inventories and historic loss rates.
Revenue recognition

Basis for Opinion

The risk

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Refer to Note 21 to the financial statements. There are significant accounting judgements involved including determining the
stage of completion, the timing of revenue recognition and the calculation under the percentage of completion method made
by management in applying the Group’s revenue recognition policy to construction contracts entered into by the Group. The
nature of these judgements may result in them being susceptible to management override.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

Contract revenue should include the amount agreed in the initial contract, plus revenue from alterations in the original contract
work, plus claims and incentive payments that are expected to be collected and that can be measured reliably.

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgement, were of most significant in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
The risk
Refer to Note 11 and 14 to the financial statements. We focused on this area because the Group has material amounts of trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired and contract assets. Management judgement is required in determining the
completeness of the provision for the trade receivables and contract assets and assessing their adequacy through considering
the expected recoverability.
Our response
We have reviewed the ageing of trade receivables in comparison to previous years, testing the integrity of ageing by calculating
the due date for a sample of invoices and reviewing the level of bad debts written off in the current year against the prior years.
Besides, we have reviewed the ageing of the contract assets in comparison to previous years and reviewing the reversal of
contract assets in the current year and prior years. We also assessed the reasonableness of assumptions and judgements
made by the management regarding the expected credit losses rates through examination of subsequent collections, billings
and tested the operating effectiveness of the relevant control procedures that management has in place.
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Our response
We performed a range of audit procedures which included obtaining a sample of contracts or letter of awards, reviewing for
change orders or variation orders, reviewing estimated profit and costs to complete and enquiry of key personnel regarding
adjustments for job costing and potential contract losses.
There is no key audit matter to be communicated in respect of the audit of the financial statements of the Company.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’
report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:––

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

––

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and of the
Company’s internal control.

––

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

––

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

––

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

––

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determined those matters that were of most significant in the audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
described these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we have
not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act,
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

GRANT THORNTON MALAYSIA PLT
(NO:201906003682 & AF: 0737)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FOO LEE MENG
(NO: 03069/07/2021(J))
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Kuala Lumpur
13 May 2020

We communicated with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December 2019

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates
Other investments
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill on consolidation
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances, deposits and
placements

For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

29,217,255
26,851,927
46,114,009
1,926,340
7,776,000
7,544,540
-

58,694,380
3,190,606
1,732,752
9,649,049
7,544,540
-

295,224,675
28,233,827

291,660,000
-

12

2,066,174

-

-

-

121,496,245

80,811,327

323,458,502

291,660,000

13
11
14

119,379,426
197,155,351
84,208,235
3,388,202

134,652,548
253,358,202
151,002,125
8,567,995

14,969,192
-

35,081,054
93,779

12

63,298,872

60,626,366

2,679,026

174,945

Total current assets

467,430,086

608,207,236

17,648,218

35,349,778

TOTAL ASSETS

588,926,331

689,018,563

341,106,720

327,009,778

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances, deposits and
short-term placements

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company:
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests

15
16

6

Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities/Finance lease liabilities
Retirement benefits

17
9
18
19

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities/Finance lease liabilities
Tax payable

20
14
17
18

299,484,409
(104,131,401)
132,696,020

299,484,409
(104,044,829)
122,466,341

299,484,409
6,926,768

299,484,409
7,473,861

328,049,028
26,227,988

317,905,921
28,721,449

306,411,177
-

306,958,270
-

354,277,016

346,627,370

306,411,177

306,958,270

28,115,098
246,000
1,686,196
2,807,287

2,891,971
142,647
1,918,757
2,689,084

-

-

32,854,581

7,642,459

-

-

75,898,841
40,234,033
83,881,957
842,314
937,589

144,829,363
100,978,411
87,058,628
1,078,798
803,534

16,973,805
17,500,000
221,738

51,508
20,000,000
-

Total current liabilities

201,794,734

334,748,734

34,695,543

20,051,508

Total liabilities

234,649,315

342,391,193

34,695,543

20,051,508

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

588,926,331

689,018,563

341,106,720

327,009,778

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Group

2019
RM

21

474,235,985
(411,757,421)

404,186,530
(348,340,168)

-

15,726,780
-

62,478,564

55,846,362

-

15,726,780

15,276,438
(1,049,745)
(30,064,531)
(13,188,197)

5,905,367
(1,651,840)
(28,733,318)
(1,817,371)

7,482,332
(1,065,404)
-

(1,208,200)
-

33,452,529

29,549,200

6,416,928

14,518,580

Gross profit
Other income
Distribution expenses
Administration expenses
Net impairment losses
Operating profit

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

Note

2018
RM

Provision for liquidated and ascertained damages
Finance incomes
Finance costs
Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted associate

22
23

589,950
(7,086,847)
1,284,533

(4,137,180)
1,624,919
(7,977,373)
(460,578)

1,592,611
(915,462)
-

1,082,350
(1,039,337)
-

Profit before tax
Tax expense

24
25

28,240,165
(9,920,108)

18,598,988
(3,337,209)

7,094,077
(551,305)

14,561,593
-

18,320,057

15,261,779

6,542,772

14,561,593

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation

39,716

-

-

-

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation for foreign operations

(55,587)

(924,748)

-

-

Total other comprehensive loss

(15,871)

(924,748)

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

18,304,186

14,337,031

6,542,772

14,561,593

Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

17,279,828
1,040,229

16,029,532
(767,753)

6,542,772
-

14,561,593
-

18,320,057

15,261,779

6,542,772

14,561,593

17,232,972
1,071,214

15,154,759
(817,728)

6,542,772
-

14,561,593
-

18,304,186

14,337,031

6,542,772

14,561,593

3.66

3.39

Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company (sen):- Basic/Diluted
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to owners the Company
Non-distributable

Note

Distributable

Share capital

Reserve upon
consolidation

Foreign currency
translation reserve

Retained
earnings

Total

Non-controlling
interests

Total equity

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

Group

At 1 January 2018

299,484,409

(104,798,778)

1,628,722

113,526,674

309,841,027

29,539,177

339,380,204

Profit/(Loss) after tax

-

-

-

16,029,532

16,029,532

(767,753)

15,261,779

Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(874,773)

-

(874,773)

(49,975)

(924,748)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the financial

-

-

(874,773)

16,029,532

15,154,759

(817,728)

14,337,031

-

-

-

(7,089,865)

(7,089,865)

-

(7,089,865)

299,484,409

(104,798,778)

753,949

122,466,341

317,905,921

28,721,449

346,627,370

-

-

-

17,279,828

17,279,828

1,040,229

18,320,057

(86,572)

39,716

(46,856)

30,985

(15,871)

year

Transactions with owners:
Dividends

27

At 31 December 2018

Profit after tax
Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the financial year

-

-

(86,572)

17,319,544

17,232,972

1,071,214

18,304,186

-

-

-

(7,089,865)

(7,089,865)

-

(7,089,865)

-

-

-

-

-

(3,564,675)

(3,564,675)

-

-

-

(7,089,865)

(7,089,865)

(3,564,675)

(10,654,540)

299,484,409

(104,798,778)

667,377

132,696,020

328,049,028

26,227,988

354,277,016

Transactions with owners:
Dividends
Changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary

At 31 December 2019
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT’D)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

Group
Note

Distributable
Note

Share capital

Retained earnings

Total equity

RM

RM

RM

Company
At 1 January 2018

299,484,409

2,133

299,486,542

Transactions with owners:
Dividends

27

-

(7,089,865)

(7,089,865)

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year
At 31 December 2018

-

14,561,593

14,561,593

299,484,409

7,473,861

306,958,270

Dividends

Profit before tax

-

(7,089,865)

(7,089,865)

financial year
At 31 December 2019

6,542,772

6,542,772

299,484,409

6,926,768

306,411,177

RM

RM

RM

RM

28,240,165

18,598,988

7,094,077

14,561,593

14,306,492

3,500,517

-

-

Impairment losses no longer required

(1,118,295)

(1,683,146)

-

-

Refund on cost of investment in a subsidiary

(7,482,332)

-

(7,482,332)

-

25,249

-

-

-

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

5,573,313

7,234,571

-

-

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Dividend income
Interest expenses

1,679,375
(47,482)
7,086,847

(41,618)
7,977,373

915,462

(15,726,780)
1,039,337

(589,950)

(1,624,919)

(1,592,611)

(1,082,350)

(132,724)

(132,152)

-

-

(74,897)

-

-

-

Bad debts written off

Interest income
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and

Net (gain)/loss on other investments

(193,588)

226,922

-

-

1,602,912

(353,398)

-

-

662,919

-

-

-

(1,284,533)

460,578

-

-

48,253,471

34,163,716

(1,065,404)

(1,208,200)

Contract assets
Inventories
Bill payables
Receivables

5,828,280
15,268,541
(14,370,430)
51,315,558

27,311,889
(17,277,466)
(38,501,291)
59,083,617

(5,918,716)

(549,476)

Payables

(84,187,183)

(63,016,493)

1,385,702

5,835

(505,000)

(3,141,000)

-

-

Retirement benefits
-

2018

Impairment losses

Net unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange
Total comprehensive income for the

2019

Adjustments for:-

Net (gain) on strike off of a subsidiary
27

2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

equipment
Transactions with owners:

Company

2019

Share of (profit)/loss of equity-accounted associate
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital
changes
Changes in working capital:-

Retirement benefits

21,603,237

(1,377,028)

(5,598,418)

(1,751,841)

Interest paid
Income tax paid, net of refund

(4,494,126)
(2,618,881)

(5,992,635)
(13,742,780)

(235,788)

(82,907)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

14,490,230

(21,112,443)

(5,834,206)

(1,834,748)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Group
Note

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Company

2019

2018

2019

2018

RM

RM

RM

RM

Group

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of an associate
Interest received
Compensation of investment in a subsidiary
Dividends received

(41,653,846)

-

-

-

589,950

1,624,919

1,592,611

1,082,350

3,917,657

-

3,917,657

-

47,482

41,618

-

13,393,410

(3,988,733)

(17,099,395)

-

-

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

A

Expenses incurred for strike off of a subsidiary
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

171,399

202,947

-

-

(122,281)

-

-

-

(41,038,372)

(15,229,911)

5,510,268

14,475,760

2018

2019

2018

RM

RM

RM

RM

Total purchase of property, plant and equipment
Total purchase of right-of-use assets

Less: Acquisition by means of lease liabilities/
finance lease liabilities
Total cash paid

3,988,733
680,890

19,308,183
-

-

-

4,669,623

19,308,183

-

-

(680,890)

(2,208,788)

-

-

3,988,733

17,099,395

-

-

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan to subsidiaries

-

-

(7,833,899)

(25,190,000)

Advances from subsidiaries

-

-

18,803,957

587,218

Advances (to)/from associate

(9,036,178)

304,017

-

-

Advances from related parties

11,962,593

26,451

-

-

Interest paid

(2,592,721)

(1,984,738)

(915,462)

(1,039,337)

Dividends paid

(4,726,577)

(7,089,865)

(4,726,577)

(7,089,865)

Drawdown of revolving credit

12,500,000

4,000,000

-

-

Repayment of revolving credit

(6,500,000)

-

(2,500,000)

-

Drawdown of term loans

28,910,000

-

-

-

Repayment of term loans

(382,569)

(428,242)

-

-

Fixed deposit (pledged)/discharged as collateral

(2,938,440)

15,586,909

-

-

Repayment of lease liabilities/finance lease liabilities

(1,149,935)

(1,110,281)

-

-

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

26,046,173

9,304,251

2,828,019

(32,731,984)

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise of the following amounts:Group

Deposits with financial institutions
Deposits with fund management corporations
Cash and bank balances

Less: Bank balances and deposits pledged
Less: Bank overdraft (Note 17)
Total cash and cash equivalents

Company

2019
RM

2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

18,871,202
494,051
45,999,793

17,998,931
464,923
42,162,512

93,178
2,585,848

90,143
84,802

65,365,046
(20,937,488)
(6,184,347)

60,626,366
(17,999,048)
(4,209,842)

2,679,026
-

174,945
-

38,243,211

38,417,476

2,679,026

174,945

C. CASH OUTFLOWS FOR LEASES AS A LESSEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net changes

(501,969)

(27,038,103)

2,504,081

(20,090,972)

Group

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on bank
balances
Brought forward
Carried forward

2019

A. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT,
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Company

B

327,704

(2,374,655)

-

-

38,417,476

67,830,234

174,945

20,265,917

38,243,211

38,417,476

2,679,026

174,945

Company

2019

2018

2019

2018

RM

RM

RM

RM

Included in net cash from operating activities:Payment relating to short-term leases

5,382,086

-

-

-

Included in net cash used in financing activities:Payment of lease liabilities

1,284,163

-

-

-

Total cash outflows from leases

6,666,249

-

-

-

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

1.

2.

31 December 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main
Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at 149A, Jalan
Aminuddin Baki, Taman Tun Dr Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur and the principal place of business of the Company is
located at 15th Floor, East Wing, Rohas PureCircle, No. 9, Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

31 December 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
2.2
		
		

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding whilst those of its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to
the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and its subsidiaries during
the financial year.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the
Directors on 13 May 2020.
2.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

2.3

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is Company’s functional currency
and all values are rounded to the nearest RM except when otherwise stated.

2.4
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.
2.2

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under historical cost convention,
unless otherwise indicated in the summary of significant accounting policies.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

		

MFRSs
2.4.1

Adoption of New Standards/Amendments/Improvements to MFRSs

The Group and the Company have consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the
financial statements to all periods presented in these financial statements.
At the beginning of current financial year, the Group and the Company adopted new standards/amendments/
improvements to MFRSs which are mandatory for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Initial application of the new standards/amendments/improvements to MFRSs did not have material impact
to the financial statements, except for:MFRS 16 Leases

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date and its measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

MFRS 16 supersedes MFRS 117 Leases, IC Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, IC Interpretation 115 Operating Leases-Incentives and IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the
statements of financial position.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured on the assumptions that market participants would act in
their economic best interest when pricing the asset or liability. A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

Lessor accounting under MFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from MFRS 117. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in MFRS 117. Therefore, MFRS
16 did not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
their fair value measurement as a whole:-

100

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and
the Company determine whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting year.

		

BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1

Basis of Measurement (cont’d)

(a)

Level 1

– Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b)

Level 2

–

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

(c)

Level 3

–

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair
value measurement is unobservable.

ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD | Annual Report 2019

The Group adopted MFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard is recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings and other component of equity. The Group elected to use the transition practical expedient to
not reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at 1 January 2019. Instead, the Group applied the
standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying MFRS 117 and IC Interpretation
4 at the date of initial application.
The Group has lease contracts for leasehold land, factory and buildings, plant and machineries, motor
vehicles, staff quarters and premises. Before the adoption of MFRS 16, the Group classified each of its
leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. Refer to Note 3.4 to
the financial statements for the accounting policy prior to 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.

2.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
2.4

MFRSs (cont’d)

		2.4.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
2.5

Adoption of New Standards/Amendments/Improvements to MFRSs (cont’d)

Amendments to Reference to Conceptual Framework on MFRS Standard (MFRS 2*#, 3, 6*#, 14*#,
101, 108, 134*#, 137, 138*# and IC Interpretation 12*#, 19*#, 20*#, 22* and 132*#).

Initial application of the new standards/amendments/improvements to MFRSs did not have material impact
to the financial statements, except for (cont’d) :-

MFRS effective 1 January 2021:-

MFRS 16 Leases (cont’d)

MFRS 17

Upon adoption of MFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Refer to Note 3.4 to the financial statements for
the accounting policy beginning 1 January 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and
practical expedients, which have been applied by the Group.

Amendments to MFRSs - effective date deferred indefinitely:-

•

Leases previously classified as finance leases

*
#

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the
date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities equal the lease assets and liabilities recognised under MFRS 117). The
requirements of MFRS 16 were applied to these leases from 1 January 2019.

The initial application of the above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to
have material financial impact to the financial statements.

•

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases
The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified
as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-ofuse assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard
had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal
to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously
recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
•
		
•
		

2.5

Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective (cont’d)

Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of
the date of initial application; and
Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Insurance Contracts*#

Amendments to MFRS 10 and
MFRS 128

2.6

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Not applicable to the Company.
Not applicable to the Group.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the
financial statements. They affect the application of the Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The actual results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions
made by management, and will seldom equal the estimated results.
2.6.1

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
Information about significant estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect
on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed
below.
Useful Lives of Depreciable Assets

Based on the above, as at 1 January 2019, the Group reclassified RM28,345,670 from property, plant and
equipment to right-of-use assets in which the leased assets were acquired under finance lease and long term
lease arrangement.

The management assesses that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to
the Group. The management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
to be within 3 to 98 years and reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting
year. The carrying amount is analysed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective

Actual results, however, may vary due to change in the expected level of usage and
technological developments, which may result in an adjustment to the Group’s assets.

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the
Company intend to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they
become effective.
Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretation effective 1 January 2020:Amendments to MFRS 3

Definition of a Business

Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108

Definition of Material

Retirement Benefits
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate and the staff turnover rate. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.
The discount rate is based on 4.3% (2018: 5.2%).
Further details about the assumptions used are given in Note 19 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.

2.

31 December 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
2.6		Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont’d)
2.6.1

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

31 December 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
2.6		Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont’d)
2.6.1
		
		

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable amount,
management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines
a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

		

Provision for Expected Credit Losses of Trade Receivables and Contract Assets
The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on the repayment pattern of the customers,
customers type and coverage by letters of credit.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical observed default
rates. The Group and the Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 13 to the
financial statements.
		

Significant judgment is required in determining the progress based on the certified work-to-date
corroborated by the level of completion of the construction and installation based on actual costs
incurred to-date over the estimated total construction and installation costs. The total estimated
costs are based on approved budgets, which require assessments and judgments to be made on
changes in, for example, work scope, changes in costs and costs to completion. In making these
judgments, management relies on past experience and the work of specialists. A change in the
estimates will directly affect the revenue to be recognised.

Deferred Tax Assets
The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can be
utilised is based on the Group’s latest approved budget or forecast, which is adjusted for significant
non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit.
The tax rules in which the Group operates are also carefully taken into consideration.
If a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a deferred tax assets, especially
when it can be utilised without a time limit, that deferred tax assets is usually recognised in full. The
recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties
is assessed individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to our customers and,
depending on the terms of the contract and the applicable laws governing the contract, control
of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. If control of the asset transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the progress, based on the
physical proportion of contract work-to-date certified by the Group and the customers.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s and the Company’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future.
		

Inventories
The Group writes down its obsolete or slow-moving inventories based on assessment of their
estimated net selling price. Inventories are written down when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The management specifically analyses
sales trend and current economic trends when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of
the write down for obsolete or slow-moving inventories. Where expectation differs from the original
estimates, the differences will impact the carrying amount of inventories.

Further details of the carrying amounts, key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of
goodwill are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements.
		

Income Tax
Significant judgement is required in determining the capital allowance and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group and the Company recognised tax liabilities based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management makes assumptions about
future operating results. The actual results may vary and may cause significant adjustments to the
Group’s and the Company’s assets within the next financial year.
In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate
adjustment to market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)

2.6.2

Significant Management Judgement
There is no significant management judgement in applying the accounting policies of the Group
and of the Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

The carrying value of the Group’s deferred tax assets at the end of the reporting year is disclosed
in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group and the Company apply the significant accounting policies, as summarised below, consistently throughout
all periods presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.
3.1		

Consolidation
3.1.1

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.1		

Consolidation (cont’d)
3.1.3

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, if any, is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Group or the Company.
Control exists when the Group or the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are
substantive. Besides, the Group or the Company considers it has de facto power over an investee
when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities
of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units.

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less any impairment losses in the Company’s financial
position, unless the investment is held for sale or distribution.
Upon the disposal of investment in a subsidiary, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and its carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.
3.1.2

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Basis of Consolidation
The Group’s financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries, which have been prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries are all drawn up to the same reporting period.

3.1.4

On 8 March 2017, the Company acquired 68,377,306 ordinary shares representing the entire
issued and paid-up shares capital of Rohas-Euco Industries Berhad (“REI”) and its subsidiaries
(“REI Group”) for a total purchase consideration of RM200,000,000 which were satisfied by the
issuance of 317,460,318 new ordinary shares in the Company, at an issue of price of RM0.63 per
share.
Upon completion of the acquisition of REI Group, the Company became the legal holding company
of REI Group whereas the former shareholders of REI Group to whom the 317,460,318 shares were
allotted became the majority shareholders of the Company, controlling about 100% of the issued
and paid-up share capital of the Company. Further, the Company’s key executive management are
those of REI Group. In accordance with MFRS 3 Business Combinations, the substance of such
business combination between the Company and REI Group constituted a reverse acquisition
whereby the acquirer and acquiree of the transaction for accounting purposes should be REI (that
is the legal subsidiary, accounting parent) and the Company (that is the legal holding company, the
accounting subsidiary) respectively.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases.
Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

106

However, REI obtained effective control over the Company that is not a business combination and
therefore is outside of the scope of MFRS 3. Although this is not a business combination under
MFRS 3, the accounting result is similar to reverse acquisition accounting.

Business Combination and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are
expensed and included in administrative expenses.
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Reserve Upon Consolidation
The Company is a non-operating public company in 2017.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in asset, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment) are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment
that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Temporary differences arising
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions will be treated in
accordance to Note 3.15 of the financial statements.

3.1.3

Business Combination and Goodwill (cont’d)

3.1.5

Loss of Control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of the equity related to the
subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss.
If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair
value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted
investee or as a financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.1		

Consolidation (cont’d)
3.1.6

Non-controlling Interests
Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting year, being the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position and statements of changes in equity within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the comprehensive income for the
financial year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.2		

Foreign Currency Translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in RM, which is also the Company’s functional
currency.
3.2.1

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rates prevailing at
the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary is allocated to the non-controlling
interests even if that results in a deficit balance.
3.1.7

All differences are taken to the profit or loss.

Associates

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising in translation of non-monetary items is recognised in
line with the gain or loss of the item that gave rise to the translation difference (translation differences
on items whose gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss respectively).

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but no control, over their
financial and operating policies.
The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is carried in the statements of financial position at cost plus
post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition
date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.
The share of the result of an associate is reflected in profit or loss. This is the profit attributable to
equity holders of the associate and therefore is the profit after tax and non-controlling interests
in the subsidiaries of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate, the carrying amount of that interest including any long-term investment is reduced to
zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.
Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of an associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statements of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.
The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same reporting period to the
Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies of the associate
companies in line with those of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group’s investments in its associates. The Group determines
at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments
in the associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associates and their carrying value, then
recognise the amount in the share of profit of an equity-accounted associate in profit or loss.
Upon loss of significant influence over an associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

3.2.2

Foreign Operations
The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from
business combination before 1 January 2011 (the date when the Group and the Company first
adopted MFRSs) which are treated as assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at exchange rates at the date of
the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the noncontrolling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the foreign currency translation reserve related to
that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When
the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a
foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a
net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are
presented in foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

Investment in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments,
the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or
loss.
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.3		

Property, Plant and Equipment

3.4		

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All property, plant and equipment are
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less any impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets and any other costs
directly attributable to bring the asset to working condition for its intended use, cost of replacing component
parts of the assets, and the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assets after
their use. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For
qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing
costs. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is recognised on the straight line method in order to write off the cost of each asset over
its estimated useful lives. Freehold land with an infinite life is not depreciated. Other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:Land on long term lease
Long term leasehold land, factory and buildings
Freehold buildings
Plant and machineries
Furnitures, fittings and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Over period of the lease
57 - 98 years
2%
10 - 20%
20 - 33 1/3%
20%

Capital work-in-progress consists of buildings under construction/installation for intended use as production
facilities. The amount is stated at cost and includes capitalisation of interest incurred on borrowings related
to property, plant and equipment under construction/installation until the property, plant and equipment are
ready for their intended use. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and
ready for their intended use.
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, or at least annually to ensure
that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and
are recognised in profit or loss in the financial year in which the asset is derecognised.
3.4		

Leases
As described in Note 2.4.1 to the financial statements, the Group has applied MFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and still reported
under MFRS 117 and IC Interpretation 4.
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Leases (cont’d)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (cont’d)
Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:
Land on long term lease
Long term leasehold land, factory and buildings
Leasehold buildings
Plant and machineries
Motor vehicles

Over period of the lease
57 - 98 years
2%
10 - 20%
20%

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.9 to the financial
statements.
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to their short-term leases of staff quarters,
premises, motor vehicles, machineries and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases is recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Accounting policy applied for 31 December 2018 and 2019
As a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.4		

Leases (cont’d)

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.5		

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Accounting policy applied until 31 December 2018

3.5.1

Financial Assets (cont’d)

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or asset) or the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

		

Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d)
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

As a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group and the Company is classified as
a finance lease.
Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the profit or loss.

The Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Group and the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance leases
Management applies judgement in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset. Key factors considered
include the length of the lease term in relation to the economic life of the asset, the present value of the
minimum lease payments in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the Group and the Company obtain
ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

3.5		

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments);
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
(debt instruments);
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments); or
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Operating leases

Financial assets at amortised cost

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Group and the Company are lessee, payments
on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance are expensed as incurred.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (“EIR”)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at
amortised cost includes trade and most of the other receivables and cash and bank balances,
deposits and short-term placements.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

3.5.1

Financial Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss.

		

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequent measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group and the Company have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the
Company initially measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group and the Company have applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.
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This category includes listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.
The Group’s debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes other investments.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:-
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.5

Financial Instruments (cont’d)
3.5.1

(a)
(b)

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.5

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial Assets (cont’d)

3.5.1

Financial Assets (cont’d)

Derecognition (cont’d)

		

Impairment (cont’d)

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
The Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group and the Company have
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and the Company
have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment for financial assets other than trade receivables and contract assets
The Group and the Company consider the probability of default upon initial recognition of the asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group and
the Company compare the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers available, reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

When the Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or have entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When they have neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group and the
Company continue to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group and the Company also recognise an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group and the Company have retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be
required to repay.
Impairment
The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group and the Company expect to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Credit impaired
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows. The Group and the Company consider a receivable as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated cash flows have occurred. These
instances include adverse changes in the financial capability of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments. However, in certain cases, the Group and the Company may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group and
the Company are unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group and the Company.
		3.5.2
		

To measure ECL, trade receivables and contract assets are grouped into categories. The
categories are differentiated by the different business risks and are subject to different credit
assessments. Contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
and the Company consider the expected credit loss rates for trade receivables as a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for contract assets with similar risk characteristics.
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Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

		

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or
(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group and the Company have established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial Liabilities

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, finance lease liabilities, trade
and other payables.
		

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
This is the category most relevant to the Group and the Company. After initial recognition, interestbearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing
borrowings.
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.5

		

Financial Instruments (cont’d)
3.5.2

Financial Liabilities (cont’d)

		

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

		

3.5.3

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.7

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/loss recognised on each contract is compared against the
progress billings up to the financial year end. Where costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings, the balance is shown as contract assets under current assets. Where
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses), the balance is shown
as contracts liabilities under current liabilities.
3.8

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Inventories
Inventories, comprising raw materials, packing materials and consumables, work-in-progress and finished/
trading goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”) after adequate specific write
down has been made by the Directors for deteriorated, obsolete and slow-moving inventories.
Cost of raw materials is determined using weighted average method and finished goods include direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads. Cost includes the original
purchase price plus direct cost of bringing these inventories to their present condition and location.
Net realisable value represents estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling and distribution costs and all other estimated costs to completion.
When inventories are sold and revenue is recognised, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised
as cost of goods sold. Write-down to NRV and inventory losses are recognised as expenses when it occurred
and any reversal is recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the reversal occurs

3.7

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities
Contract costs comprise costs related directly to the specific contract and those that are attributable to the
contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract and such other costs that are specifically
chargeable to the customers under the terms of the contract.
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract
costs are recognised over the period of contract as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to
the percentage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period. The Group uses
the percentage of completion method to determine the appropriate amount of revenue and costs to be
recognised in a period of the contract by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract cost.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with licensed bank, bank
overdrafts and highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
3.6

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities (cont’d)

Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities in the statements of financial position.
For the purpose of the financial position, cash and cash equivalents restricted to be settle a liability of 12
months or more after the end of the reporting period are classified as non-current assets.
3.9

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
and the Company estimate the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly trade subsidiaries or other available
fair value indicators.
The Group and the Company base their impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s and the Company’s cash-generating units to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of
five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.
Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable and contract costs are recognised
as expenses in the period in which they incurred.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Group and the Company estimate the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss has been recognised for asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at the end of each reporting period, and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probably that they will result in revenue and they
are capable of being reliably measured.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
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3.

3.

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.10

Equity, Reserves and Distribution to Owners

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.12

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
		
		

Employee Benefits (cont’d)
3.12.3

Retirement Benefit (cont’d)
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.
Net interest expense is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The calculation is performed once every three years by a
qualified actuary using the projected credit method.

Foreign currency translation differences arising on the translation of the Group’s foreign 			
entities are included in the exchange translation reserve.
Retained earnings include all current and prior periods’ accumulated profits.
Interim dividends are recognised in equity in the periods in which they are declared.

Remeasurement from defined benefit plan comprises of actuarial gains and losses. The Group
recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined
benefit plan in employee benefits are charged to profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are
changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss when the
plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are not accounted for in shareholder’s equity as an appropriation
of retained profits, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as liabilities.
All transactions with the owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity.
3.11

The Group recognises gain or losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when settlement
occurs. The gain or loss on settlement is the difference between the present value of the defined
benefit obligation being settled as determined on the date of settlement and the settlement price.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the Group and the Company expect some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.
If the effect of the time of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.12

Employee Benefits
3.12.1

Short Term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the
Group and of the Company have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.12.2

Defined Contribution Plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group and the
Company pay fixed contributions into independent entities of funds and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contribution if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years.
Such contributions are recongnised as expenses in the profit or loss as incurred. As required by
law, companies in Malaysia make such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). The
foreign subsidiary also make contributions to their country’s statutory pension schemes.

3.12.3

3.12.4

Employee Leave Entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to the
employees. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting year.

3.13

Revenue
Revenue is recognised when or as a performance obligation in the contract with customer is satisfied, i.e.
when the “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.
A performance obligation is a promise to transfer a distinct goods or service (or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer) to the customer that is
explicitly stated in the contract and implied in the Group’s customary business practices.
Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties such as sales taxes or goods and services taxes.
If the amount of consideration varies due to discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, incentives, penalties or
other similar items, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled based on the
expected value or the most likely outcome. If the contract with customer contains more than one performance
obligation, the amount of consideration is allocated to each performance obligation based on the relative
stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services promised in the contract.
The revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainly associated with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.
The control of the promised goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in time. Revenue for
performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recognised at the point in time at which the customer
obtains control of the promised goods or services.

Retirement Benefit
The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all eligible Malaysian Directors and
employees. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated separately for
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.13

Revenue (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
31 December 2019

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.13

The control over the goods or services is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time if:•
•
•

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue (cont’d)
3.13.6

Other Revenue Recognition (cont’d)

		

Dividend Income
Dividend income and other income from investments are recognised in the profit or loss when the
right to receive such payment is established.
Rental Income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs
of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

The Group recognises revenue from construction of engineering, procurement, construction and
commissioning (“EPCC”) over time if it creates an asset with no alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. Revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation (e.g. by reference to the contract
costs incurred to date as a percentage of the estimated total contract costs of the contract, i.e. the stage of
completion).
3.13.1

		3.13.2

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised in the profit or loss on time proportion basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined that
such income will accrue to the Group and the Company.

Contract Assets

Management Fee Income

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.
Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in Note 3.5.1.

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.
3.14

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Trade Receivables

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
		3.13.3

Contract Liabilities

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure
for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
		3.13.4

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Contract Costs
The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained (for
example, a sales commission). These costs are recognised in contract assets if the Group expects
to recover those costs.

		
3.13.5 Sales of Goods
Revenue relating to sale of goods is recognised net of sales returns and discount upon the transfer
of control of the goods to the customers. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods.

Borrowing Costs

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
3.15

Tax Expense
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.
3.15.1

Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the financial
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial years.
Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised in the statements of financial position as a
liability (or an asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.15

Tax Expense (cont’d)
3.15.2

31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.18

Deferred Tax

Contingent liabilities

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position and their tax
bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as
a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets
When an inflow of economic benefit of an asset is probable where it arises from past events and where
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position
but is being disclosed as a contingent asset. When the inflow of economic benefit is virtually certain, then the
related asset is recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.
3.16

3.19

Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Goods and Services Tax
Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) is a consumption tax based on the value-added concept. GST is imposed
on goods and services at every production and distribution stage in the supply chain including importation
of goods and services, at the applicable tax rate. Input tax that a company pays on business purchases is
offset against output tax.

3.20

Related Parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group and the Company that is preparing its
financial statements. A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
the reporting entity and its related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except:
where the GST incurred in a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and
receivables and payables that are stated with GST inclusive.

(a)

The net GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statements of financial position.

(b)

-

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person:(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(v)

The GST has been replaced with Sales and Services Tax effective from 1 September 2018. The rate for sales
tax is fixed at 5% or 10%, while the rate for services tax is fixed at 6%.

(vi)
(vii)

Sales Tax and Service Tax

(viii)
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:
-

When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item, as applicable; and
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of payable to the taxation authority is included as part of payables in the statements of
financial position.

3.21

Has control or joint control over the Group and the Company;
Has significant influence over the Group and the Company; or
Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Company.

An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

The Malaysian Government has zero rated the GST effective from 1 June 2018. This mean the GST rate on
the supplier of goods or services or on the importation of goods has been revised from 6% to 0%.

3.17

Contingencies

The entity and the Group or the Company are members of the same group;
The entity is an associate of the Group or the Company;
Both the Group or the Company and the entity are joint ventures of the same third party;
The Group or the Company is a joint venture of a third entity and the entity is an associate
of the same third entity
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of employees of either the
Group or the Company for an entity related to the Group or the Company;
The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person identified in (a) above;
A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the Group or the entity; or
The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Earnings per Ordinary Share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
over the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
over the weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the period.
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Freehold land and
buildings
RM

Land on
long term lease
RM

Buildings
RM

Long term
leasehold land,
factory and
buildings
RM

Plant and
machineries
RM

Furnitures,
fittings and office
equipment
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Capital-workin-progress
RM

Total
RM

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
Written off
Foreign exchange
difference

1,975,000
-

15,168,676
-

11,083,318
-

8,407,446
174,619
-

68,520,479
3,981,400
(94,391)
-

13,416,931
981,204
(237,298)
(114,343)

8,632,278
2,130,800
(729,438)
237,298
(128,340)

12,040,160
-

127,204,128
19,308,183
(823,829)
(242,683)

-

-

-

-

-

7,113

3,847

-

10,960

At 31 December 2018
Adjustment on initial application of MFRS 16

1,975,000
-

15,168,676
(14,197,465)

11,083,318
(11,083,318)

8,582,065
(7,702,567)

72,407,488
(405,460)

14,053,607
-

10,146,445
(5,350,086)

12,040,160
-

145,456,759
(38,738,896)

At 1 January 2019, restated

1,975,000

971,211

-

879,498

72,002,028

14,053,607

4,796,359

12,040,160

106,717,863

-

-

-

(879,498)
-

1,139,619
-

871,817
879,498
922,370
(1,520)

10,600
(597,501)
1,889,043
(4,512)

1,966,697
(922,370)
-

3,988,733
(597,501)
1,889,043
(6,032)

1,975,000

971,211

-

-

73,141,647

16,725,772

6,093,989

13,084,487

111,992,106

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Written off
Foreign exchange difference

130,350
23,700
-

4,605,342
304,148
-

2,774,332
222,978
-

1,620,834
158,681
-

48,968,319
4,446,568
(23,598)
-

10,448,872
929,201
(114,343)
1,010

6,054,644
1,149,295
(729,436)
(128,340)
2,839

-

74,602,693
7,234,571
(753,034)
(242,683)
3,849

At 31 December 2018
Adjustment on initial application of MFRS 16

154,050
-

4,909,490
(4,494,436)

2,997,310
(2,997,310)

1,779,515
(961,395)

53,391,289
(24,771)

11,264,740
-

6,349,002
(1,915,314)

-

80,845,396
(10,393,226)

At 1 January 2019, restated
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Reclassification
Transfer from right-of-use assets
Foreign exchange difference

154,050
23,700
-

415,054
19,827
-

-

818,120
(818,120)
-

53,366,518
4,106,853
-

11,264,740
1,290,396
818,120
(572)

4,433,688
132,537
(558,826)
1,393,785
(2,002)

-

70,452,170
5,573,313
(558,826)
1,393,785
(2,574)

At 31 December 2019

177,750

434,881

-

-

57,473,371

13,372,684

5,399,182

-

76,857,868

-

-

-

-

5,563,870

353,113

-

-

5,916,983

At 31 December 2019

1,797,250

536,330

-

-

10,104,406

2,999,975

694,807

13,084,487

29,217,255

At 31 December 2018

1,820,950

10,259,186

8,086,008

6,802,550

13,452,329

2,435,754

3,797,443

12,040,160

58,694,380

Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
Transfer from right-of-use assets
Transfer
Foreign exchange difference
At 31 December 2019

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January 2018/31 December 2018/31
December 2019
Net carrying amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

4.

5.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
Assets held under finance leases

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT’D)
As a lessee (cont’d)

The net carrying amounts of assets held under finance leases are:Group
2019
RM
Motor vehicles
Plant and machineries

2018
RM
-

3,434,772
380,689

-

3,815,461

Leased assets are pledged as securities for the related finance lease liabilities as disclosed in Note 18 to the
financial statements.
Assets pledged as securities to financial institutions
The net carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for bank borrowings are:Group

Land on long term lease
Freehold land and buildings
Long term leasehold land, factory and buildings

Group

Adjustment on initial
application of MFRS
16/At 1 January 2019,
restated
Additions
Charge for the financial
year
Transfer to property,
plant and equipment

Land on
long term
lease

Long term
leasehold
land,
factory and
buildings

Leasehold
buildings

Plant and
machineries

Motor
vehicles

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

8,086,008
-

6,741,172
-

9,703,029
-

380,689
680,890

3,434,772
-

28,345,670
680,890

(222,885)

(97,751)

(283,962)

(72,632)

(1,002,145)

(1,679,375)

-

-

-

-

(495,258)

(495,258)

7,863,123

6,643,421

9,419,067

988,947

1,937,369

26,851,927

2019
RM

2018
RM

At 31 December 2019

1,797,250
-

3,208,272
1,820,950
5,266,664

Assets held under lease liabilities

1,797,250

10,295,886

The net carrying amounts of assets held under lease liabilities are:Group
2019
RM

The details of assets pledged as securities for bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.
The cost and carrying amounts of the freehold land and buildings and long term leasehold land, factory and
buildings are not segregated from the buildings as required details are not available and unreasonable expenses
would be incurred.

Motor vehicles
Plant and machineries

1,937,369
988,947
2,926,316

5.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
As a lessee
The Group has a number of long term leasehold land, factory and buildings which are having leasehold period
between 50 to 98 years. In addition, the Group also lease a number of plant and machineries and motor vehicles
that run between 5 to 10 years.

Leased assets are pledged as securities for the related lease liabilities as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial
statements.
Assets pledged as securities to financial institutions
The net carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for bank borrowings are:Group
2019
RM

The leases related to staff quarters, premises, motor vehicles, machineries and equipment are having the lease
terms of 12 months or less. Therefore, the Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these
leases.
Land on long term lease
Long term leasehold land, factory and buildings

3,113,690
5,169,948
8,283,638

The details of assets pledged as securities for bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.
As a lessor
The Group has entered into operating leases on its buildings and land on long term leases. These lease have terms
of within 1 year. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year is RM220,670.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

6.

6.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows (cont’d):-

Company
2019
RM
Unquoted shares, at cost
- within Malaysia

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

2018
RM
291,660,000

295,224,675

Name of companies

Principal place
of business

Principal activities

2019

2018

(%)

(%)

Investment holding and
provision of management
services

99

99

Investment holding and
provision of management
services

1

1

100

100

100

100

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

Name of companies

Principal
place
of business

Principal activities

Effective
ownership interest and
voting interest
2019

2018

(%)

(%)

Direct subsidiaries of the Company
Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd.
[“REI”]

HG Power Transmission Sdn.
Bhd. [“HGPT”]

Subsidiary of REI International (HK) Ltd.
PT REI Abadi Indonesia
[“PTRAI”]*

Republic of
Indonesia

Held through of Hydro Haven Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia

Malaysia

Design and fabrication of steel structure
for high tension transmission towers,
microwave towers and substations
structures and provision of other
fabrication and installation works
Contractor for installing electrical
transmission lines and provision of other
related services

100

100

PT REI Abadi Indonesia
[“PTRAI”]*

Galvanising Engineering and
Services Sdn. Bhd. [“GES”]

Malaysia

RT Telecom Sdn. Bhd. [“RTT”]

Malaysia

RBC Water Sdn. Bhd. [“RBC”] @

Hydro Haven Sdn. Bhd. [“HH”]

Operation of a hot-dip galvanising plan

Republic of
Indonesia

Subsidiaries of HG Power Transmission Sdn. Bhd.
78

75
HG Power Transmission (PNG)
Ltd. [“PNG”] #

Subsidiaries of Rohas-Euco Industries Bhd.
100

100

Design, supply and construction of
telecommunication infrastructure

100

100

Malaysia

Contractor in the implementation of
potable and water treatment projects

100

100

Malaysia

Investment holding

100

100

IAC Electricals (M) Sdn. Bhd.
[“IAC”]

*
#
@

Papua New Guinea Contractor for installing
electrical transmission
lines and provision of other
related services
Malaysia

Design and manufacture of
hardware and accessories
for overhead electrical
transmission towers and
fittings

Audited by Grant Thornton International’s member firm.
Not audited by Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT.
Pledged as security for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary.

REI International (HK) Ltd.
[“REIHK”]#

Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of
management services

100

100

On 10 May 2019, the Company obtained an additional 200,472 (equivalent to RM3,564,675) ordinary shares of HGPT
from the non-controlling interests and received RM3,917,657 in cash as the final settlement under the claim of breach
of warranties as stated in the share sales agreement for acquisition of HGPT. As a result, the Company’s shareholding
in HGPT increased by 3%.

PT REI International [“PTREI”] #

Republic of Dormant
Indonesia

100

100

Strike off of a subsidiary

Rohas-Euco (Zhuhai)
People’s Dormant
Management Consulting Co. Ltd. Republic of
[“RZM”]#
China

128

Effective
ownership interest and
voting interest
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During the financial year, the Group struck off a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Rohas-Euco (Zhuhai) Management
Consulting Co. Ltd, with a gain on divestment on RM74,897 being recognised in profit or loss.
-

100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

6.

7.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
Group

Non-controlling interests in subsidiary

2019
RM

The Group’s subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) is as follows:HG Power Transmission Sdn. Bhd.
2019
Percentage of ownership interest and voting
interest (%)
Carrying amount of NCI (RM)
Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI (RM)

2018

22%
26,227,988

25%
28,721,449

1,071,214

(817,728)

The summary of financial information before intra-group elimination for the Group’s subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interests are as below:HG Power Transmission Sdn. Bhd.
2019

2018

RM

RM

Financial position as at 31 December
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets

20,432,489

23,579,557

212,448,532

281,134,117

(452,729)

(851,816)

(112,838,375)

(188,976,061)

119,589,917

114,885,797

Summary of financial performance for the financial year ended 31 December
Revenue

180,447,430

223,560,064

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year

4,573,459

(3,071,013)

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

4,704,120

(3,270,912)

Net cash flows used in operating activities

(17,160,920)

(49,818,208)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(650,945)

(2,128,018)

(5,338,473)

58,861,348

Principal place of
business

(23,150,338)

6,915,122
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46,114,009

3,190,606

Effective ownership
interest and voting
interest
2019
2018
(%)
(%)

Name of companies
PT Century Abadi Perkasa
[“PTCAP”] *
Phu My Vinh Construction
And Investment Corporation
[“PMV”] ^#

Republic of
Indonesia

Development and operation of
hydro power plant

Socialist Republic of
Operator of water treatment plants
Vietnam

49

49

40

-

* Audited by Grant Thornton International’s member firm.
Held through PTRAI.
# Held through RBC.
^ Audited by a firm other than Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT.


Included in the investment in associates is an amount of RM41,653,846 which is pledged as security for the banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary.
Summary of financial information of the associates, not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the
Group is as follows:PTCAP

PMV

Total

RM

RM

RM

Summary of financial position as at 31 December 2019
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

1,493,413

137,683,489

72,684,059

8,199,701

139,176,902
80,883,760

(40,479,747)
(23,699,923)

(108,996,106)
(26,704,219)

(149,475,853)
(50,404,142)

9,997,802

10,182,865

20,180,667

3,883,968

(1,546,527)

2,337,441

Summary of financial performance for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019
Profit/(Loss)/Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial
year
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4,266,920
(856,922)
(219,392)

Principal
activities

Net assets
Net cash (outflows)/inflows

45,920,766
427,611
(234,368)

Details of the associates are as follows:-

Non-current assets

Summary of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

Unquoted shares outside Malaysia, at cost
Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted associate, net of tax
Translation differences

2018
RM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

7.

7.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)
Summary of financial information of the associates, not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the
Group is as follows (cont’d):-

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)
Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
The associates have no contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount
as at 31 December 2019
Group’s share of net assets
Goodwill
Unadjusted foreign translation differences

PTCAP

PMV

Total

RM

RM

RM

The capital commitments as at the reporting date are as follow:Group

4,898,923

4,073,146

8,972,069

-

36,966,794

36,966,794

179,851

(4,705)

175,146

2019
RM
Approved but not contracted for:Capital expenditure on development of mini-hydro plant

Carrying amount in the statements of financial position

5,078,774

41,035,235

1,903,144

(618,611)

Fair value through profit or loss
Quoted investments, at fair value
- within Malaysia

RM
Summary of financial position as at 31 December 2018
Non-current assets

23,245,501

Current assets

14,976,039

Non-current liabilities

(6,583,856)

Net assets

(24,585,379)
7,052,305

9.

Group’s share of net assets
Unadjusted foreign translation differences

3,455,629
(265,023)

Carrying amount in the statements of financial position

3,190,606
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2018
RM

1,926,340

1,732,752

-

(1)
1
-

1,926,340

1,732,752

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

939,955
Brought forward
Recognised in profit and loss
- current financial year
- (over)/under provision in respect of prior financial year
Carried forward

2019

2018

RM

RM

9,506,402

3,643,919

(1,173,909)
(802,493)

4,113,352
1,749,131

7,530,000

9,506,402

7,776,000
(246,000)

9,649,049
(142,647)

7,530,000

9,506,402

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:-

Group’s share of results for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018

132

Group

Group

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount as at
31 December 2018

Group’s share of loss

2019
RM

Less: Accumulated impairment loss
Brought forward
Written off
Carried forward

Summary of financial performance for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018
		
Loss/Total comprehensive loss for the financial year

49,057,946

OTHER INVESTMENTS

1,284,533
PTCAP

Current liabilities

10,066,990

46,114,009
8.

Group’s share of results for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019
Group’s share of profit/(loss)

2018
RM

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
460,578

ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD | Annual Report 2019

133

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

9.

10.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT’D)
(a)

GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

The components and movement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities prior to offsetting are as
follows:-

Group
2019
RM

Deferred tax assets

7,544,540

Brought forward/Carried forward

Group

Property,
plant and
Unabsorbed
capital
equipment/
Accumulated
Right-of-use allowances
impairment
and tax losses
assets
loss
RM
RM
RM

Provisions
RM

(241,796)
(1,596,648)

7,846,306

1,272,937
394,250

2,824,760
(850,760)

3,855,901
5,793,148

At 31 December 2018
Recognised in profit and loss

(1,838,444)
(120,556)

7,846,306
(2,225,306)

1,667,187
(546,187)

1,974,000
1,019,000

9,649,049
(1,873,049)

At 31 December 2019

(1,959,000)

5,621,000

1,121,000

2,993,000

7,776,000

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by using value-in-use, involving cash flow projections calculations
derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management covering a five-years period.
Value-in-use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the CGU and
management’s assessment of future trends based on the following key assumptions:(i)
(ii)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property,
Unabsorbed
plant and
capital
equipment/
Right-of-use allowances
and tax losses
assets
RM

RM

Provisions

Others

Total

RM

RM

RM

(b)

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and
are based on external and internal sources. The management is not aware of any reasonably possible change in above
key assumptions that would cause the carrying amounts of the CGU to materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
11.

(591,848)
85,528

111,190

366,131
(127,260)

13,735
(123)

(506,320)
114,320

111,190
(111,190)

238,871
(100,871)

13,612
(5,612)

(142,647)
(103,353)

At 31 December 2019

(392,000)

-

138,000

8,000

(246,000)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items as it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the subsidiaries can utilise the benefits therefrom.
Group
2019
RM

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(211,982)
69,335

At 31 December 2018
Recognised in profit and loss

Unabsorbed capital allowances and tax losses
Other temporary differences

revenue is projected based on specific projects with growth rate of 3% (2018: 5%); and
projected profit margin of 8% (2018: 9%).

A pre-tax discount rate of 7% (2018: 4%) per annum was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the unit.
The discount rate was estimated based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Group
At 1 January 2018
Recognised in profit and loss

7,544,540

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition date, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that
is expected to benefit from the business combination.

Total
RM

At 1 January 2018
Recognised in profit and loss

2018
RM

2018
RM

10,867,000
4,127,513

8,107,000
4,232,990

14,994,513

12,339,990

Group
2019
RM
Non-current
Other receivables:Subsidiaries
Current
Trade receivables:Third parties
Related parties
Retention sum
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

-

-

28,233,827

-

95,392,319
88,767
71,240,416
166,721,502
(14,048,018)

142,110,938
14,060
60,937,771
203,062,769
(8,868,888)

-

-

152,673,484

194,193,881

-

-

The Group’s unabsorbed capital allowances and tax losses of RM34,287,833 (2018: RM41,263,233) can be
carried forward to offset against its subsidiaries’ future taxable profits.
Effective from year of assessment 2019 as announced in the Annual Budget 2019, the unabsorbed tax losses
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and thereafter will only be available for carry forward for a period of 7
consecutive years. Upon expiry of the 7 years, the unabsorbed tax losses will be disregarded.
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11.

11.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
Group
2019
RM

2018
RM

Company
2019
2018
RM
RM

Current (cont’d)
Other receivables:Third parties
Subsidiaries
Associate
Related parties
Deposits
Advances to supplier
Prepayments
GST receivable

21,314,260
15,191,553
183,949
13,933,238
265,991
1,965,602
1,501,912

36,115,240
6,155,375
135,922
12,766,988
4,017,144
2,066,887

506,507
9,870,000
4,383,500
209,185
-

34,530,578
21,000
529,476
-

Less: Accumulated impairment losses

54,356,505
(9,874,638)

61,257,556
(2,093,235)

14,969,192
-

35,081,054
-

44,481,867

59,164,321

14,969,192

35,081,054

197,155,351

253,358,202

43,203,019

35,081,054

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
The movement of accumulated impairment losses of other receivables is as follows:Group
2019
RM

2018
RM

Brought forward
Charge for the financial year
Reversal of impairment losses

2,093,235
7,902,597
(121,194)

2,317,485
134,641
(358,891)

Carried forward

9,874,638

2,093,235

7,713,627

667,982

2,161,011

1,425,253

9,874,638

2,093,235

Individually impaired
Collectively impaired
Total
The component of accumulated impairment losses of other receivables are as follows:-

The movement of accumulated impairment losses of trade receivables is as follows:Group
Group
2019
RM
Brought forward
Charge for the financial year
Reversal of impairment losses
Carried forward
Individually impaired
Collectively impaired
Total

2018
RM

8,868,888
6,176,231
(997,101)

7,190,992
3,002,151
(1,324,255)

14,048,018

8,868,888

9,726,620
4,321,398

7,286,550
1,582,338

14,048,018

8,868,888

The component of accumulated impairment losses of trade receivables is as follows:Group
2019
RM
Third parties

14,048,018

2018
RM
8,868,888

Third parties
Deposits
Associate
Related parties

2019
RM

2018
RM

3,168,939
6,705,648
51
-

1,965,394
121,118
49
6,674

9,874,638

2,093,235

Related parties refer to the companies in which Directors have interests.
Trade receivables
The trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent
their fair values on initial recognition. The normal credit terms granted to the customers ranged from cash terms to
180 days (2018: cash terms to 180 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved by the management on
case-by-case basis.
Other receivables
The amount due from subsidiaries, an associate and related parties represents the interest free unsecured cash
advances which are payable on demand except for an amount of RM35,323,899 (2018: RM27,490,000) which is due
from subsidiaries and subject to the interest rate ranged from 2.0% to 5.5% (2018: 2.0% to 5.5%) per annum.
Included in deposits is an amount of RM4,362,500 related to deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary.
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12.

14.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

CASH AND BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PLACEMENTS
Group
2019
RM
Non-current
Islamic type:
- Cash and bank balances
Current
Islamic type:
- Cash and bank balances
- Deposits with financial
institutions
- Deposits with fund
management corporations
Conventional type:
- Cash and bank balances
- Deposits with financial
institutions
- Deposits with fund
management corporations

2,066,174

CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

-

Group
2018
RM

-

2019
RM

-

13,128,666

21,079,291

2,500,938

7,627

13,431,717

12,706,020

-

-

491,894

463,212

93,178

90,143

30,804,953

21,083,221

84,910

77,175

5,439,485

5,292,911

-

-

2,157

1,711

-

-

Contract assets:
- Contract costs
- Construction contracts
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

Contract liabilities:
- Construction contracts
- Customers deposits
- Deferred income

2018
RM

84,799,624
(591,389)

882,384
150,483,466
(363,725)

84,208,235

151,002,125

(5,639,965)
(32,354,048)
(2,240,020)

(9,265,202)
(91,713,209)
-

(40,234,033)

(100,978,411)

The movement of the accumulated impairment losses of contract assets is as follow:-

63,298,872

60,626,366

2,679,026

174,945

65,365,046

60,626,366

2,679,026

174,945

Group
Collectively impaired

2019
RM

2018
RM

Brought forward
Charge for the financial year

363,725
227,664

363,725

Carried forward

591,389

363,725

The Group’s deposits amounting to RM18,871,202 (2018: RM17,998,931) are pledged to the banks to secure the
banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries.
Cash and bank balances pledged as securities for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary are RM2,066,286
(2018: RM117).
13.

INVENTORIES

2019
RM

Recognised in profit or loss:Inventories recognised in cost of sales
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Contract costs relate to the cost generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance
obligation in the future.
Construction contracts

Group

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Packing materials and consumables
Goods in transit

Contract costs

2018
RM

66,559,666
3,421,574
33,474,591
15,209,532
714,063

79,529,426
13,589,774
30,448,658
11,084,690
-

119,379,426

134,652,548

148,199,724

182,295,612

Contract assets primarily relate to the rights to consideration for work completed on construction contracts but not yet
billed as at the reporting date.
Contract liabilities consist of advance billings in excess of revenue recognised, typically resulting from the timing
differences in revenue recognition and the milestone billings. The milestone billings are structured and/or negotiated
with customers to reflect the physical completion of the contracts.
Customers deposits/Deferred income
Customers deposits relate to deposits made by customers for the construction projects which is partially performed
or have yet to perform by the Group as at the reporting date. The Group applies the practical expedient in MFRS 15
on not disclosing the aggregate amount of the revenue expected to be recognised in the future as the performance
obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of less than one year.
Deferred income represents the advance billing issued to customer for trading of steel tower.
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14.

17.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT’D)

BORROWINGS

Contract value yet to be recognised as revenue

Group

As at the reporting date, revenue expected to be recognised in the future relating to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) of the Group is RM283,722,142 (2018: RM599,822,010). The Group expects to
recognise this revenue over the next 12-36 months.
Significant changes to the contract assets and contract liabilities balances during the financial year are as follows:Group
2019
RM
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year recognised as revenue

69,394,638

(Decrease)/Increase in revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance
obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous period

15.

2018
RM
15,736,085

(1,343,767)

92,870,281

SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company
Issued and fully paid with no par value :At beginning/end of financial year

Number of ordinary shares
2019
2018
Unit
Unit
472,657,651

472,657,651

Amount
2019
RM

2018
RM

299,484,409

299,484,409

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary
shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
16.

2019
RM
Non-current
Secured:
Term loans
- Conventional type
Current
Secured:
Term loans
- Conventional type
Short term loans
- Conventional type
Revolving credit
- Islamic type
Bankers’ acceptances
- Islamic type
- Conventional type
Bank overdraft
- Conventional type
Trust receipts
- Conventional type
Unsecured:
Bankers’ acceptances
- Islamic type
- Conventional type
Short term loans
- Conventional type
Revolving credit
- Islamic type

OTHER RESERVES
Total

Group
2019
RM
Non-distributable:Reserve upon consolidation
Foreign currency translation reserve

2018
RM

(104,798,778) (104,798,778)
667,377
753,949)
(104,131,401) (104,044,829)

Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve is used to record foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s
presentation currency.

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

28,115,098

2,891,971

-

-

3,748,957

444,653

-

-

-

411,893

-

-

3,570,750

3,655,800

-

-

2,418,195
5,907,743

4,327,962
-

-

-

6,184,347

4,209,842

-

-

593,305

3,005,275

-

-

1,131,313
17,063,000

2,801,227
42,460,000

-

-

13,264,347

1,741,976

-

-

30,000,000

24,000,000

17,500,000

20,000,000

83,881,957

87,058,628

17,500,000

20,000,000

111,997,055

89,950,599

17,500,000

20,000,000

Group
Term loans
The term loans are secured by:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

Certain properties of subsidiaries as disclosed in Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements;
Joint and several guarantee of two ex-Directors of a subsidiary;
Corporate guarantee by the Company and a subsidiary (2018: a related party);
Charge over the shares on investment in an associate as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements;
Debenture over fixed and floating charge of all present and future assets of a subsidiary;
Charge over the shares on investment in a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements; and
Certain cash and bank balances of a subsidiary.

Group and Company
The borrowings except for term loans are secured by way of:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
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Joint and several guarantees of two ex-Directors of the Company;
Certain properties of the subsidiaries as disclosed in Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements;
Certain fixed deposits of the subsidiaries; and
Corporate guarantee by the Company.
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18.

19.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

LEASE LIABILITIES/FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Group
2019
RM
Non-current
Current

1,686,196
842,314
2,528,510

The lease liabilities (2018: finance lease liabilities) are secured by a charge over the leased assets as disclosed in Note
5 (2018: Note 4) to the financial statements and secured against the guarantee by:Group
2019
RM
Ex-director of the subsidiaries
A subsidiary

2018
RM

67,117
200,164

797,557
91,118

267,281

888,675

Comparative information under MFRS 117
Group
2018
RM
1,212,960
2,049,083

Less: Future finance charges on finance lease

3,262,043
(264,488)
2,997,555

19.

Defined benefit plan (cont’d)
The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk as explained below (cont’d):Inflation risk
A significant proportion of the defined benefit liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the inflation rate will increase
the Group’s liability.
Movement in defined benefit plan
The following is reconciliation of the Group’s defined benefit obligation presented in the statements of financial position
for each reporting year:Group
2019
RM

2018
RM

Defined benefit obligation brought forward
Current service costs
Net interests
Remeasurements effect recognised in OCI
Benefit paid

2,689,084
354,338
308,581
(39,716)
(505,000)

5,830,084
(3,141,000)

Defined benefit obligation carried forward

2,807,287

2,689,084

Actuarial assumptions

Minimum lease payments:
- Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Present value of finance lease liabilities:
- Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate on the
lump sum retirement benefit, the mortality, disability and withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on a reasonably possible changes of the discount rates occurring at the end of the reporting year,
while all other assumptions remained constant.
Group

Core assumption
%

Sensitivity analysis
%

Effect on defined benefit obligation
increase
RM
%

1,078,798
1,918,757

2019
Discount rate

4.30%

1.0% decrease

253,403

9%

2,997,555

2018
Discount rate

5.20%

1.0% decrease

259,204

10%

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined benefit plan
The defined benefit plan provided by the Group to all eligible Malaysian employees on a discretionary lump sum
payment basis upon their retirement with minimum of 10 years of service being attained. The defined benefit plan is
unfunded, as benefits may be payable directly by the Group to the active participants subject to final approval of the
Board of Directors being obtained.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation because it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some
of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year, which is
the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the statements of financial
position.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk as explained below:Interest rate risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market
yields of high quality corporate bonds. The estimated term of the bonds is consistent with the estimated term of the
defined benefit obligation. A decrease in market yield on high quality corporate bonds will increase the Group’s defined
benefit liability.
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19.

20.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)

Defined benefit plan (cont’d)

Trade payables

Defined benefit plan expenses

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted by the trade payables ranged from
7 to 90 days (2018: 7 to 90 days).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss related to the Group’s defined benefit plan are as follows:Group

2019
RM

Other payables
2018
RM

Current service costs
Net interests

354,338
308,581

-

Total expenses recognised in profit or loss

662,919

-

The amounts due to a subsidiary and related party represent unsecured and interest-free cash advances which are
repayable on demand except for an amount of RM12,017,294 (2018: RMNil) which is due to a related party is subject
to the interest of 7.5% (2018: Nil) per annum.
21.

REVENUE
Group

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income related to the Group’s defined benefit plan are as follows:Group

2019
RM
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments
Effect of changes in financial assumptions
Total income recognised in other comprehensive income

2019
RM
Primary geographical markets
Malaysia
Australia
Laos
Bangladesh
Indonesia
China
Myanmar

2018
RM

36,861
(250,761)
174,184

-

(39,716)

-

The net income summarised above were included within items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.
Other information on the defined benefit plan

Major product & services line
Fabrication of towers
Engineering, Procurement,
Construction and Commissioning
(“EPCC”)
Others

The weighted average durations of the benefit obligation is 40 years (2018: 37 years). The Group did not expect to
make any benefit payment in the next financial year.
20.

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

244,005,903
3,259,514
138,632,072
83,870,213
153,165
3,045,548
1,269,570

262,602,265
3,663,496
7,680,151
130,115,642
124,976
-

-

15,726,780
-

474,235,985

404,186,530

-

15,726,780

127,558,434

153,291,878

-

-

342,534,547
4,143,004

237,701,467
13,193,185

-

15,726,780

474,235,985

404,186,530

-

15,726,780

144,938,604
329,297,381

191,604,137
212,582,393

-

15,726,780
-

474,235,985

404,186,530

-

15,726,780

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group
Trade payables:Third parties
Related party
Other payables:Third parties
Related party
Subsidiary
Dividend payable
Advance received from
customers/Sundry
Accruals
Provision for liquidated and
ascertained damages
Deposits received
GST payable

2019
RM

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

44,683,730
301,035

126,565,906
301,035

-

-

44,984,765

126,866,941

-

-

2,558,337
12,017,294
2,363,288

3,478,993
-

14,543,307
2,363,288

3,508
-

117,293
8,059,493

291,761
8,596,543

67,210

48,000

4,509,618
494,753
794,000

4,137,180
497,847
960,098

-

-

30,914,076

17,962,422

16,973,805

51,508

75,898,841

144,829,363

16,973,805

51,508

Timing and recognition
At a point in time
Over time

22.

FINANCE INCOMES
Group
2019
RM
Interest incomes:
- Deposits with financial institutions
- Asset management
- Subsidiaries

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

586,915
3,035
-

1,381,658
243,261
-

282
3,035
1,589,294

7,692
243,261
831,397

589,950

1,624,919

1,592,611

1,082,350

Related party refers to the companies in which Directors have interests.
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23.

25.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCE COSTS
Group

Interest expenses:
- Bank overdraft
- Bankers’ acceptances
- Bankers’ guarantees
- Lease liabilities/Finance lease liabilities
- Short term loans
- Revolving credit
- Related party
- Others
- Term loans

2019
RM

TAX EXPENSE

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

437,229
3,599,854
101,323
134,228
355,720
1,519,383
517,294
142,123
279,693

254,219
5,555,281
27,938
119,971
155,197
1,378,838
269,823
216,106

915,462
-

1,039,337
-

7,086,847

7,977,373

915,462

1,039,337

Current tax:
- current year
- (over)/under provision in prior financial year

Deferred tax:
- origination and reversed at temporary
differences
- over/(under) recognised in prior financial year

Total tax expense

24.

Profit before tax has been determined after charging/(crediting), amongst other items, the following:Group

Crediting:Dividend income:
- Subsidiaries in Malaysia
- Quoted shares in Malaysia
Net gain on foreign exchange:
- Realised
- Unrealised
Lease/Rental incomes:
- Related parties
- Third parties
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2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

8,084,336
(140,630)
7,943,706

8,180,261
1,019,431
9,199,692

348,530
202,775
551,305

-

1,173,909
802,493
1,976,402

(4,113,352)
(1,749,131)
(5,862,483)

-

-

9,920,108

3,337,209

551,305

-

Malaysian income tax is calculated at statutory tax rate of 24% (2018: 24%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the financial year.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Charging:Auditors’ remuneration:
- Charge for the year
- Other auditors’ remuneration
- Under provision in prior year
- Other services
Directors’ fee
Net loss on foreign exchange:
- Realised
- Unrealised
Rental expenses:
- Premises
- Machineries and equipment
- Motor vehicles
- Staff quarters
Expenses relating to short term leases

Company

2019
RM

The numerical reconciliations between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate of the Group and of the Company
are as follows:-

Company

2019
RM

2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

267,800
9,648
59,600
317,500

238,932
15,700
5,000
73,400
411,000

65,000
3,500
317,500

60,000
5,000
8,000
411,000

1,602,912

341,772
-

-

-

5,382,086

2,420,249
262,423
419,267
122,180
-

-

-

Group
2019
RM
Profit before tax
Tax at Malaysian statutory rate of 24%
(2018: 24%)
Tax effect in respect of:Non-taxable incomes
Non-allowable expenses
Movement of deferred tax assets not recognised
(Over)/Under provision of income tax in prior
financial year
Over/(Under) recognised of deferred tax assets
in prior financial year
Effect of change in tax rate in other countries
Total tax expenses

Company
2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

28,240,165

18,598,988

7,094,077

14,561,593

6,777,640

4,463,758

1,702,578

3,494,783

(35,133,184)
43,406,474
637,086

(4,120,321)
5,431,181
1,398,456

(1,796,488)
442,440
-

(3,832,810)
338,027
-

(140,630)

1,019,431

202,775

-

802,493
(6,429,771)

(1,749,131)
(3,106,165)

-

-

9,920,108

3,337,209

551,305

-

Tax expense for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
47,482

41,618

-

15,726,780
-

919,406
-

353,398

-

-

170,670
50,000

163,761
51,713

-

-
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26.

28.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)

Basic

2019
RM

Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial
year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.
2019
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (RM)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)
(b)

Group

Salaries, wages and other emoluments
Retirement benefits
Defined contribution plans

2018

17,279,828

16,029,532

472,657,651

472,657,651

3.66

3.39

DIVIDENDS

In respect of financial year ended
31 December 2017:
- Final single tier dividend of
1.5 sen on 472,657,651 ordinary
shares, paid on 27 June
2018
In respect of financial year ended
31 December 2018:
- Final single tier dividend of
1 sen on 472,657,651 ordinary
shares, paid on 28 August
2019
In respect of financial year ended
31 December 2019:
- Interim single tier dividend of
0.5 sen on 472,657,651
ordinary shares, paid on 31
January 2020

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

7,089,865

-

2018
RM

7,089,865
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2018
RM

37,150,812
2,899,300

352,000
-

250,000
-

40,362,034

40,050,112

352,000

250,000

29.

Group

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018
RM

1,801,186
177,557

1,678,202
201,281

-

-

Total Executive Directors’
remuneration

1,978,743

1,879,483

-

-

Non-Executive Directors:- Salaries and other emoluments

352,000

574,000

352,000

250,000

Total Non-Executive
Directors’ remuneration

352,000

574,000

352,000

250,000

2,330,743

2,453,483

352,000

250,000

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Related party transactions
The significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are as follows:-

4,726,577

-

4,726,577

-

2,363,288

-

2,363,288

-

7,089,865

7,089,865

7,089,865

7,089,865

The Directors recommend a final single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share in respect of the current financial year for
the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The current financial statements does not
reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an
appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2020.
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Company

Executive Directors:Existing Directors:
- Salaries and other emoluments
- Defined contribution plan

Total
-

2019
RM

Included in the employee benefits expenses is the Directors’ remunerations as below:-

Diluted

Group

2018
RM

37,336,174
662,919
2,362,941

2019
RM

2019
RM

Group

Directors’ remunerations

Diluted earnings per ordinary share equals basic earnings per ordinary share as there are no dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
27.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Group
Related parties:
- sales
- purchases
- rental income
- rental expenses
- maintenance income
- loan from a related party
- interest expenses
Director of the Company:
- Retirement benefits paid to a Director

2019
RM

2018
RM

(636,661)
23,076
(170,670)
1,104,150
(2,979)
20,000,000
517,294

(202,418)
40,673
(163,761)
1,061,399
-

-

2,916,000
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29.

30.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D)
Related party transactions (cont’d)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into three business units based on their products and services,
which comprises the following:-

The significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are as follows (cont’d):-

Company
Subsidiaries:
- interest income
- dividend income
- loan from subsidiaries

2019
RM

2018
RM

(1,589,294)
17,593,899

(831,397)
(15,726,780)
26,360,000

Related party balances
Outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at the reporting date are disclosed in Notes 11 and
20 to the financial statements.

Key management personnel is defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group and of the Company either directly or indirectly and entity that provides key
management personnel services to the Group and the Company.
Key management includes all the Directors of the Company’s and its subsidiaries and certain members of senior
management of the Group and of the Company.
Group
2019
RM

Other key management personnel:Salaries and other emoluments
Defined contribution plan
Benefits-in-kind

Total
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Business segments

Business activities

Fabrication of towers
- Power Transmission
- Telecommunication

Involving the manufacture, design, fabrication and erection of power
transmission towers and telecommunication towers and design.

Engineering, Procurement,
Construction and
Commissioning (“EPCC”)

Mechanical and electrical engineering, procurement and construction
contractor for water and sewage treatment plant, operation of a hot-dip
galvanising plant and electrification and power plant refurbishment.

Others

Civil and infrastructure works, fabrication services for other steel work and
products, steel skids and accessories for water tank related products,
development of mini-hydro plant, fabrication of electrical substation
structures, investment holdings and management services.

The Group has aggregated certain operating segments to form a reportable segment due to the similar nature and
operational characteristics of the products.

Compensation of key management personnel

Directors’ remuneration

OPERATING SEGMENT

2,330,743

Company
2018
RM
2,453,483

2019
RM

2018
RM

352,000

250,000

1,925,195
225,195
14,200

2,345,236
280,620
41,586

-

-

2,164,590

2,667,442

-

-

4,495,333

5,120,925

352,000

250,000

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or
loss which, in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.
Group interest income and financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis
and are not allocated to operating segments except for those directly attributable to the business unit that can be
separately identifiable.
Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating segments
are presented under Others. Others comprise mainly investments and related income, loans and borrowings and
related expenses, corporate assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters) and head office expenses.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with
third parties.
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30.

Segment liabilities

Liabilities

Assets
Segment assets
Included in segment assets are:
Investment in an associate
Additions to non-current assets other than deferred tax assets

Results
Finance costs
Finance incomes
Depreciation
Other non-cash income/(expenses)
Share of results of an associate
Tax (expense)/income
Segment results

Total revenue

2018
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Group (cont’d)

Business segment (cont’d)

OPERATING SEGMENT (CONT’D)

31 December 2019

115,891,027

-

-

15,633,401
(e)

(f)

-

323,729,104

(1,439,535)
4,137,051

27,275,484

137,422,813

(1,804,070)
448,113
3,244,194
327,194
(7,252,846)
20,843,817

27,275,484
-

Telecommunication
RM

126,016,394
11,406,419

Power
Transmission
RM

Fabrication of towers

(d)

(c)

(b)

(a)

Note

(f)

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

-

-

3,650,790
(e)

71,786,462

-

318,365,030

(328,684)
1,328,707

22,736,849

127,576,719

(2,633,149)
1,167,142
2,872,811
906,378
(9,085,756)
(3,823,701)
7,455,391

12,124,750
10,612,099

Telecommunication
RM

115,433,684
12,143,035

Power
Transmission
RM

(d)

(c)

(b)

(a)

Note

Fabrication of towers

Assets
Segment assets
Included in segment assets are:
Investment in associates
Additions to non-current assets other than deferred tax assets

Results
Finance costs
Finance incomes
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Other non-cash income/(expenses)
Share of results of associates
Tax expense
Segment results

Total revenue

2019
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Group

Business segment

OPERATING SEGMENT (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

179,904,116

2,775,443

298,860,174

(4,723,774)
688,575
2,471,314
(1,820,441)
5,251,583
1,057,530

237,701,467

237,701,467
-

EPCC
RM

119,226,692

912,116

238,410,639

(4,154,358)
298,640
1,562,097
676,290
(6,080,524)
(4,439,128)
8,173,269

344,014,880

342,534,547
1,480,333

EPCC
RM

3,909,358

3,190,606
899,339

382,154,723

(2,280,926)
1,319,628
1,519,063
(65,941)
(460,578)
103,589
(3,132,190)

28,919,965

13,193,185
15,726,780

Others
RM

70,311,370

46,114,009
41,760,563

462,131,665

(2,838,511)
1,663,339
1,138,405
96,707
3,614,109
1,284,533
(1,328,595)
7,232,872

37,396,555

4,143,004
33,253,551

Others
RM

(51,207,643)

-

(341,487,022)

831,397
(831,397)
445
(831,397)

(27,133,199)

(27,133,199)

Group
adjustments
RM

(142,384,363)

-

(448,689,745)

2,539,171
(2,539,171)
38,778
(657,818)

(57,489,018)

(57,489,018)

Group
adjustments
RM

248,496,858

3,190,606
19,308,183

663,256,979

(7,977,373)
1,624,919)
7,234,571
(1,558,743)
(460,578)
(3,337,209)
22,074,811

404,186,530

404,186,530
-

Total
RM

118,940,161

46,114,009
46,323,469

570,217,589

(7,086,847)
589,950
5,573,313
1,679,375
(11,513,393)
1,284,533
(9,920,108)
23,532,421

474,235,985

474,235,985
-

Total
RM
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30.

30.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

OPERATING SEGMENT (CONT’D)

OPERATING SEGMENT (CONT’D)

Business segment (cont’d)

Business segment (cont’d)

Notes to the nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements:-

(f)

(a)

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

(b)

Other major non-cash income/(expenses) consist of the following items as presented in the respective
notes to the financial statements:2019
RM
Impairment loss
Impairment loss no longer required
Bad debts written off
Refund on cost of investment in a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Loss)/Gain on unrealised foreign exchange, net
Gain/(Loss) on other investments
Gain on strike off of a subsidiary
Retirement benefits

Group

(14,306,492)
1,118,295
(25,249)
3,564,675
132,724
(1,602,912)
193,588
74,897
(662,919)
(11,513,393)

(c)

(d)

Segment profit
Finance incomes
Finance costs
Share of result of associates

23,532,421
589,950
(7,086,847)
1,284,533

22,074,811
1,624,919
(7,977,373)
(460,578)

Profit after tax

18,320,057

15,261,779

The following items are added to segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated statements
of financial position:Group
2019
2018
RM
RM

Total assets
(e)

(1,558,743)

The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment profit to arrive at “profit after tax” presented in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss:Group
2019
2018
RM
RM

Segment assets
Goodwill on consolidation
Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable

570,217,589
7,544,540
7,776,000
3,388,202
588,926,331

663,256,979
7,544,540
9,649,049
8,567,995

2019
RM
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment in associates

2018
RM

3,988,733
680,890
41,653,846

19,308,183
-

46,323,469

19,308,183

Group

2018
RM

Segment liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities/Finance lease liabilities
Borrowings
Tax payable

118,940,161
246,000
2,528,510
111,997,055
937,589

248,496,858
142,647
2,997,555
89,950,599
803,534

Total liabilities

234,649,315

342,391,193

Major Customers
The following are major customers with revenue equal or more than 10 percent of the Group’s revenue:RM

Group
2019
Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

2018
Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

%

Operating Segment

138,632,072
95,277,660
83,870,213

29
20
18

EPCC
EPCC
EPCC

317,779,945

67

88,107,182
74,362,784
65,575,229

22
18
16

228,045,195

56

EPCC
EPCC
Fabrication of towers

Geographical Information
Revenue and non-current assets information based on the geographical location of the customers and assets
respectively are as follows:2019

689,018,563

Additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets consist of:Group

2019
RM

2018
RM
(3,500,517)
1,683,146
132,152
353,398
(226,922)
-

The following items are added to segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position:-

Malaysia*
Australia
Bangladesh
Laos
China
Indonesia
Myanmar
Vietnam

Group

2018

Revenue
RM

Non-current
assets
RM

Revenue
RM

Non-current
assets
RM

244,005,903
3,259,514
83,870,213
138,632,072
3,045,548
153,165
1,269,570
-

63,613,722
5,078,774
41,035,235

262,602,265
3,663,496
130,115,642
7,680,151
124,976
-

66,238,920
3,190,606
-

474,235,985

109,727,731

404,186,530

69,429,526

The amount of non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment in
associates and goodwill on consolidation.
*The Company’s home country.
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31.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Group
2019
RM

Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
2018
RM

32.

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows (cont’d):(a)
(b)

Capital expenditure
Authorised and contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

1,355,384

Fair value through profit or loss designated upon initial recognition (“FVTPL”); and
Amortised cost (“AC”).

1,291,541
2019 (cont’d)
Company
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term placements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:(a)
(b)

Fair value through profit or loss designated upon initial recognition (“FVTPL”); and
Amortised cost (“AC”).

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

FVTPL
RM

AC
RM

2019
Group
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Other investments
Cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term placements

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

1,926,340
-

193,687,837
65,365,046

1,926,340

259,052,883

-

75,104,841
111,997,055

-

187,101,896

Group
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Other investments
Cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term placements

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities
Borrowings

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
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AC
RM

-

42,993,834
2,679,026

-

45,672,860

-

16,973,805
17,500,000

-

34,473,805

1,732,752
-

247,274,171
60,626,366

1,732,752

307,900,537

-

143,869,265
2,997,555
89,950,599

-

236,817,419

-

34,551,578
174,945

-

34,726,523

-

51,508
20,000,000

-

20,051,508

2018

Company
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term placements
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32.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Risk management objectives and policies

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial
instruments. They have established policies and procedures to ensure effective management of credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk.

32.1

The following sections explain key risks faced by the Group, the Company and their management. Financial assets and
liabilities of the Group and of the Company are summarised in Note 3.5 to financial statements.
32.1
Credit risk
		
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default in its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company adopt the policy of dealing with customers
of appropriate standing to mitigate credit risk and customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit evaluation. Receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis to mitigate risk of bad debts. For other
financial assets, the Group and the Company adopt the policy of dealing with reputable institutions.
(a)

Credit risk (cont’d)
(a)

Trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets (cont’d)

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group manages their debtors and takes appropriate actions
(including but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue balances. The Group’s debt recovery
process are as follows:(i)

Above 30 days past due after credit term, the Group will start to initiate together with treasury
team a structured debt recovery process which is monitored by the sales management team; and

(ii)

The Group will commence a legal proceeding against the customers who does not adhere to the
restructure of the repayment scheme.

Trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets

Exposure to credit risk

The Group uses provision matrix to measure ECLs for all the past due debts. Credit term which are past due
more than 365 days will be considered as credit impaired.

Maximum exposure of the Group and of the Company to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
financial assets recognised at reporting date summarised below:-

The Group assessed the risk of loss based on the following factors:-

Group

Company

2019
RM

2018
RM

2019
RM

2018
RM

Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

193,687,837
84,208,235

247,274,171
151,002,125

42,993,834
-

34,551,578
-

Carrying amount

277,896,072

398,276,296

42,993,834

34,551,578

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

None of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.
The Group and the Company use three categories to reflect its credit risk and how the loss allowance is
determined for each of those categories for financial assets other than trade receivables. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s and the Company’s expected credit loss model is as follows:-

Credit risk concentration

Category

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has significant exposure to several customers and as
such a concentration of credit risks who are of high credit worthiness and of international repute.
Group
2019
Malaysia
Top 2 customers (2018: 1)
Bangladesh
Top 1 customer (2018: 1)

overall past trend payments of customers;
financial performances of each individual customers; and
cost of borrowings and interest income rate.

%

RM

%

41,278,337

25

66,714,206

33

41,465,097

25

53,865,940

Receivables have a low risk of default and a strong capacity 12 months expected
to meet contractual cash flows.
credit loss

Underperforming

Receivables for which there is a significant increase in credit Lifetime expected
risk due to actual or expected significant adverse changes in credit loss
business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligations.

Non-performing

Receivables which are credit-impaired when one or more Lifetime expected
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future credit loss
cash flows have occurred.

26

The Group and the Company continuously monitor credit standing of customers and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. Where
available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties
are obtained and used.

Basis of recognising
expected credit loss

Performing

2018

RM

Definition of categories

Based on the above, loss allowance is derived as follows:(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the likelihood that the debtor would not be able to repay during the contractual period;
the percentage of contractual cash flows that will not be collected if default happens; and
the outstanding amount that is exposed to default risk.

(b)

Cash & cash equivalents and deposits with license banks

Deposits with banks and investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or
entered into with reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings and have no history of default.
Therefore, credit risk is negligence.
158
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32.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

32.1

32.2

Credit risk (cont’d)
(c)

Financial guarantee/Corporate guarantee

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity period (cont’d)

The Group provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. The maximum exposure to credit risk is as disclosed in Note 32.2 as at the reporting date. The
Group monitors on an ongoing basis the results of the subsidiaries and repayments made by the subsidiaries.
As at the end of the reporting year, there was no indication that the subsidiaries would default on repayment.
32.2

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following is a summary of the financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company according to maturity
period (cont’d):Contractual cash flow

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its
obligations as they fall due. The Group and the Company are exposed to liquidity risk arising from payables,
lease liabilities/finance lease liabilities and borrowings and they maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents
and bank credit facilities deemed adequate by management to ensure it has sufficient liquidity to meet their
obligations when they fall due.

Total

Current
Within 1 year

RM

RM

Company (cont’d)
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

20,000,000
51,508

20,000,000
51,508

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity period

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

20,051,508

20,051,508

The following is a summary of the financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company according to maturity
period:Contractual cash flow
Current
Non-current

Financial guarantee*

65,294,769

65,294,769

Group
2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total undiscounted financial liabilities
Financial guarantee*
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total undiscounted financial liabilities
Financial guarantee*

Total
RM

Within 1 year
RM

2 to 5 years
RM

* This exposure is included in liquidity risk for illustration only. No financial guarantee was called upon by the
holders as at the end of the reporting year.

More than 5
years
RM

The above amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
32.3

Interest rate risk

112,215,754
2,779,287
75,104,841
190,099,882

83,964,002
949,682
75,104,841
160,018,525

27,945,772
1,829,605
29,775,377

305,980
305,980

Interest rate risk is caused by changes in market interest rate resulting in fluctuation in fair value or future cash
flow of financial instruments of the Group and of the Company. The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate
management objective is to manage interest expenses consistent with maintaining an acceptable level of
exposure to interest rate fluctuation.

9,032,075

9,032,075

-

-

The Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at variable interest rates are exposed to the risk of change in
cash flow due to changes in interest rate. Investment in equity securities and short term receivables and
payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

90,560,041
3,262,043
143,869,265
237,691,349

87,239,007
1,212,960
143,869,265
232,321,232

2,717,170
2,049,083
4,766,253

603,864
603,864

8,793,846

8,793,846

-

-

Contractual cash flow

Company

160

Total

Current
Within 1 year

RM

RM

2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

17,500,000
16,973,805

17,500,000
16,973,805

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

34,473,805

34,473,805

Financial guarantee*

51,071,717

51,071,717
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32.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

32.3

32.3

Interest rate risk (cont’d)
The following tables set out the carrying amounts, the weighted average effective interest rates [“WAEIR”]
of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial instruments as at the reporting date and the periods in which
they reprice or mature, whichever is earlier:WAEIR
%

Within
1 year
RM

2-5
years
RM

More than
5 years
RM

2.78

18,871,202

-

-

18,871,202

Financial liabilities
Fixed rate:Lease liabilities
Bankers’ acceptances
Trust receipts
Trade and other payables

5.24
5.80
8.57
7.50

842,314
26,520,251
593,305
12,017,294

1,686,196
-

-

2,528,510
26,520,251
593,305
12,017,294

2018
Financial assets
Fixed rate:Deposits with financial
institutions
Financial liabilities
Fixed rate:Finance lease liabilities
Bankers’ acceptances
Trust receipts
Floating rate:Term loans
Short term loans
Revolving credit
Bank overdraft

The following tables set out the carrying amounts, the weighted average effective interest rates [“WAEIR”]
of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial instruments as at the reporting date and the periods in which
they reprice or mature, whichever is earlier (cont’d):-

Total
RM

Group
2019
Financial assets
Fixed rate:Deposits with financial
institutions

Floating rate:Term loans
Short term loans
Revolving credit
Bank overdraft

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Company
2019
Financial assets
Fixed rate:Other receivables

WAEIR

Within
1 year

2-5
years

More than
5 years

Total

%

RM

RM

RM

RM

5.17

7,090,072

28,233,827

-

35,323,899

5.05

17,500,000

-

-

17,500,000

5.00

27,490,000

-

-

27,490,000

5.30

20,000,000

-

-

20,000,000

Financial liabilities
Floating rate:Revolving credit
2018

6.68
6.18
5.54
8.07

3,748,957
13,264,347
33,570,750
6,184,347

27,829,713
-

285,385
-

31,864,055
13,264,347
33,570,750
6,184,347

Financial assets
Fixed rate:Other receivables
Financial liabilities
Floating rate:Revolving credit

3.08

17,998,931

-

-

17,998,931

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

5.54
5.87
9.20

1,078,798
49,589,189
3,005,275

1,918,757
-

-

2,997,555
49,589,189
3,005,275

Cashflows sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments
Group

6.40
6.34
5.98
8.76

444,653
2,153,869
27,655,800
4,209,842

2,298,211
-

593,760
-

3,336,624
2,153,869
27,655,800
4,209,842

Company

2019

2018

2019

2018

RM

RM

RM

RM

Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities:Borrowings
Net financial liabilities

162
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84,883,499

37,356,135

17,500,000

20,000,000

(84,883,499)

(37,356,135)

(17,500,000)

(20,000,000)
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32.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

32.3

32.4

Interest rate risk (cont’d)
The following illustrates the sensitivity of profit to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/-25
(2018: +/-25) basis points (“bp”). These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average market
interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

RM
2019 (+/-25bp)
2018 (+/-25bp)

32.4

Effect on profit/equity for the year
Increase/(Decrease)
Group
Company
RM
RM
RM

(212,209)
(93,390)

212,209
93,390

(43,750)
(50,000)

43,750
50,000

Foreign currency risk
The Group is expected to foreign currency risk as a result of its normal operating activities, where the
currency denomination differs from the local currency, Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”). The Group’s policy is to keep
the foreign exchange exposure to an acceptable level.
The Group is exposed to transactional currency risk primarily through sales and costs of sales that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency to which they related. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily United States Dollar [“USD”], Indonesian Rupiah [“IDR”], Indian Rupee [“INR”],
Philippine Peso [“PHP”], Euro [“EUR”], Australia Dollar [“AUD”], Bangladesh Taka [“BDT”] and Papua New
Guinea Kina [“PGK”].
The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that is not denominated in the
functional currency other than those disclosed in the notes above, are as follows:Financial assets and liabilities held in non-functional currency:Group
2019
RM
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2018
RM

Trade and other receivables
USD
IDR
EUR
AUD
PGK

40,220,938
15,601,093
4,471,595
1,453,273
323,806

67,485,535
6,435,921
8,035,076
380,312
328,868

Cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term placements
USD
IDR
PHP
EUR
AUD
BDT
PGK

27,026,521
69,738
69
5,503
4,472
45,549

1,263,608
100,763
67
15,215,350
573
348,257
106,661
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Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that is not denominated in the functional
currency other than those disclosed in the notes above, are as follows (cont’d):Financial assets and liabilities held in non-functional currency (cont’d):Group

Trade and other payables
USD
IDR
INR
EUR
PGK
Borrowings
USD
Contract liabilities
USD
EUR
Net exposure
USD
IDR
INR
PHP
EUR
AUD
BDT
PGK

2019
RM

2018
RM

(23,630,774)
(341,457)
(218,186)
(2,494,444)
(170,881)

(24,692,097)
(134,383)
(10,751,121)
(86,542)

(5,988,946)

(7,203,374)

(285,996)
(192,624)

(72,929,907)
-

37,341,743
15,329,374
(218,186)
69
1,790,030
1,457,745
198,474

(36,076,235)
6,402,301
67
12,499,305
380,885
348,257
348,987

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit or loss with regards to the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities and the RM/USD exchange rate, RM/IDR exchange rate, RM/INR exchange rate, RM/PHP
exchange rate, RM/EUR exchange rate, RM/AUD exchange rate, RM/BDT exchange rate and RM/PGK
exchange rate assuming all other things being equal.
A +/-1% and +/-2% (2018: +/-1% and +/-3%) change in the RM/USD, RM/IDR, RM/INR, RM/PHP, RM/
EUR, RM/AUD, RM/BDT and RM/PGK exchange rates at the reporting period is deemed possible. Both
of these percentages have been determined based on average market volatility in exchange rates in the
previous 12 months. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s foreign currency financial instruments
held at each reporting date and also takes into account forward exchange contracts that offset effects from
changes in currency exchange rates.
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32.

32.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

32.4

32.5

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market price of quoted securities held by the Group.

If the RM had strengthened/weakened against the USD, IDR, INR, PHP, EUR, AUD, BDT and PGK, then the
impact would be as follows:Effect on profit/equity for the
years
Increase/(Decrease)

A 5% (2018: 5%) increase in share price of each counter at the reporting date would have increase the
Group’s profit for the financial year by RM96,317 (2018: RM86,638). A 5% (2018: 5%) weakening in the
share price of each counter would have equal but opposite effect on the Group’s profit for the financial year.
32.6

Group
2019
RM

32.7
373,417
(373,417)

(1,082,287)
1,082,287

RM/IDR
- Strengthened 1% (2018: 2%)
- Weakened 1% (2018: 2%)

153,294
(153,294)

128,046
(128,046)

(4,364)
4,364

1
(1)

2
(2)

RM/EUR
- Strengthened 2% (2018: 2%)
- Weakened 2% (2018: 2%)

35,801
(35,801)

249,986
(249,986)

RM/BDT
- Strengthened 2% (2018: 1%)
- Weakened 2% (2018: 1%)
RM/PGK
- Strengthened 1% (2018: 2%)
- Weakened 1% (2018: 2%)

Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:-

-

RM/PHP
- Strengthened 1% (2018: 3%)
- Weakened 1% (2018: 3%)

RM/AUD
- Strengthened 2% (2018: 2%)
- Weakened 2% (2018: 2%)

Fair value on financial instruments
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company at reporting date
approximate their fair values because they are re-priced to market rates on or near reporting date or they
have a short maturity period.

2018
RM

RM/USD
- Strengthened 1% (2018: 3%)
- Weakened 1% (2018: 3%)

RM/INR
- Strengthened 2% (2018: Nil)
- Weakened 2% (2018: Nil)

Equity price risk

Group

Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

2019
Financial asset
Non-derivative financial assets at
FVTPL

1,926,340

-

-

1,926,340

2018
Financial asset
Non-derivative financial assets at
FVTPL

1,732,752

-

-

1,732,752

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 in 2019 and 2018.

29,155
(29,155)

-

1,985
(1,985)

7,618
(7,618)

3,483
(3,483)

6,980
(6,980)

32.8

Net gain or losses arising from financial instruments

Net (loss)/gain on:Financial assets at FVTPL
- recognised in profit or loss

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

193,588

(226,922)

Financial assets at AC
- recognised in profit or loss

(12,960,533)

(1,453,646)

Contract assets
- recognised in profit or loss

(227,664)

(363,725)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Group’s exposure to currency risk.
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33.

34.

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group

1 January
2019
RM

Impairment
losses
RM

Cash flows
RM

Purchase
of property,
plant and
equipment/
right-of-use
assets
RM

Unrealised
foreign
exchange
RM

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. The Group’s policy is to maintain
an adequate capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future business
developments. The Group funds its operations and growth through a mix of equity and debts. This includes the
maintenance of adequate lines of credit and assessing the need to raise additional equity when required.

Other
payables
RM

31 December
2019
RM

Associate
Related parties
Revolving credit
Term loans
Lease liabilities
Dividend

(6,155,326)
(129,248)
27,655,800
3,336,624
2,997,555
-

(9,036,178)
11,962,593
6,000,000
28,527,431
(1,149,935)
(4,726,557)

2
-

680,890
-

(85,050)
-

(2,363,288)

(15,191,502)
11,833,345
33,570,750
31,864,055
2,528,510
(7,089,865)

Total

27,705,405

31,577,334

2

680,890

(85,050)

(2,363,288)

57,515,293

In the management of capital risk, management takes into consideration the net debt equity ratio as well as the
Group’s working capital requirement. The net debt equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total liabilities less total income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and cash and bank balances.
Total capital comprises share capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Group.
Group
2018
RM

2019
RM

Net debt

168,100,680

280,818,646

31,794,779

19,876,563

Total capital

328,049,028

317,905,921

306,411,177

306,958,270

0.51

0.88

0.10

0.06

Total debt against equity ratio
Company

1 January
2019
RM

Other payables
RM

31 December
2019
RM

Dividend
Subsidiaries
Revolving credit

(34,530,578)
20,000,000

(4,726,577)
18,803,957
(2,500,000)

(7,833,899)
-

(2,363,288)
-

(7,089,865)
(23,560,520)
17,500,000

Total

(14,530,578)

11,577,380

(7,833,899)

(2,363,288)

(13,150,385)

1 January
2018
RM

Group

Cash flows
RM

Impairment
losses
RM

Purchase
of property,
plant and
equipment
RM

31 December
2018
RM

Associate
Related parties
Revolving credit
Term loans
Finance lease liabilities
Dividend

(6,459,392)
(162,373)
23,655,800)
3,764,866)
1,899,048)
-)

304,017
26,451
4,000,000
(428,242)
(1,110,281)
(7,089,865)

49
6,674
-

2,208,788
-

(6,155,326)
(129,248)
27,655,800
3,336,624
2,997,555
(7,089,865)

Total

22,697,949

(4,297,920)

6,723

2,208,788

20,615,540

Company

168

Cash flows
RM

Loan to
subsidiaries
RM

1 January
2018
RM

Cash flows
RM

Loan to
subsidiaries
RM

Dividend
income
RM

Dividend
received
RM

31 December
2018
RM

Dividend
Subsidiaries

(7,594,426)

(7,089,865)
587,218

(25,190,000)

(15,726,780)

13,393,410

(7,089,865)
(34,530,578)

Total

(7,594,426)

(6,502,647)

(25,190,000)

(15,726,780)

13,393,410

(41,620,443)
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Company

2019
RM

2018
RM

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
35.

SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Acquisition of an associate
Its wholly-owned subsidiary, RBC Water Sdn Bhd (“RBC”) had on 20 May 2019 completed the acquisition of 8,000,000
shares in Phu My Vinh Construction and Investment Corporation (“PMV”), representing 40% of the total shares in PMV,
for a total purchase consideration of VND232,000,000,000 (RM41,653,846).
Proposed acquisition of a subsidiary
The Company had on 21 June 2019 entered into a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (“SSPA”) with shareholders
of Global Tower Corporation (Cambodia) Pty. Ltd. (“GTC”), in respect of a proposed acquisition of 750 shares,
representing 75% of the total shares in GTC for a total purchase consideration of USD1,050,000 (approximately
RM4,368,050)
The acquisition is yet to be completed as at the reporting date.
Coronavirus Disease 2019
The recent outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) since end of 2019 has seen significant cases
increased worldwide which prompted the World Health Organisation to declare it as a pandemic on 11 March 2020.
A series of precautionary and control measures have been and continued to be implemented across the world. The
Malaysian Government imposed the Movement Control Order (“MCO”) from 18 March 2020 to 3 May 2020 and
Conditional Movement Control Order (“CMCO”) from 4 May 2020 to 9 June 2020. Consequently, these restrictions
are expected to have material adverse effects on Malaysia’s economy for 2020. The deterioration of world economy
has also prompted additional uncertainties to the business of the Group in 2020.
As at the date of this report, the management of the Group has assessed the overall impact of the situation on the
Group’s operations and financial position, and it is concluded that there are no material effects on the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The current situation is still fluid and the
management is unable to reliably estimate the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial results for the
year ending 31 December 2020. The Directors shall continually assess the impact of COVID-19 on its operations as
well as the financial position for the year ending 31 December 2020.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING
As at 20 May 2020

Total number of issued shares : 472,657,651 ordinary shares
Voting rights : One vote per ordinary share
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Size of
Shareholdings

No. of
Shareholders

less than 100 shares
100 to 1,000 shares

34

% of
Shareholders
0.87

Total
Shareholdings

% of
Shareholdings

1,068

0.00

359

9.18

215,974

0.05

1,001 to 10,000 shares

2,097

53.60

11,106,696

2.35

10,001 to 100,000 shares

1,240

31.70

41,214,108

8.72

178

4.55

165,976,297

35.12

4

0.10

254,143,508

53.77

3,912

100.00

472,657,651

100.00

100,001 to less than 5% of
issued shares
5% and above of issued shares
Total

30 LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS PER RECORD OF DEPOSITORS
(Without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same Depositor)

No.

170
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Name of Shareholders

1

Kenanga Capital Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: Pledged securities account for Nik Anida Binti Nik
Manshor (Halfmoon Bay)

2

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: Pledged Securities Account - Ambank (M) Berhad for
Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah

No. of Shares

Percentage (%)

125,000,000

26.45

59,743,531

12.64

3

Chan Liew Hoon

39,260,968

8.31

4

Sia Bun Chun

30,139,009

6.38

5

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account for Nik Awang @ Wan
Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah (E-KPG/JRL)

16,600,000

3.51

6

DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Beneficiary: Deutsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad for Eastspring
Investments Small-Cap Fund

14,072,100

2.98

7

Tokio Marine Life Insurance Malaysia Bhd
Beneficiary: As Beneficial Owner (PF)

13,439,385

2.84

8

Gan Kim Huat

8,695,949

1.84

9

Graceful Assessment Sdn. Bhd.

8,035,000

1.70

10

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) (Nomura)

5,050,000

1.07

11

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)(ESPG IV
SC E)

4,872,200

1.03

12

Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : CBNY for Norges Bank (FI 17)

4,747,300

1.00
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING (CONT’D)

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING (CONT’D)

As at 20 May 2020

As at 20 May 2020

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS PER THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

30 LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS PER RECORD OF DEPOSITORS (CONT’D)
(Without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same Depositor)

Direct Interest

Name of Substantial Shareholders
No.

172

Name of Shareholders

No. of Shares

Percentage (%)

13

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad for Principal
Islamic Small Cap Opportunities Fund

4,275,800

0.90

14

Zenith Highlight Sdn Bhd

4,136,257

0.88

15

Tokio Marine Life Insurance Malaysia Bhd
Beneficiary: As Beneficial Owner (TMEF)

3,944,000

0.83

16

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account for Leong Wai Yuan

3,500,000

0.74

17

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Maybank Trustees Berhad for CIMB-Principal Small
Cap Fund (240218)

3,422,300

0.72

18

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: Pledged Securities Account for Abdul Aziz Bin Abu
Bakar

2,736,700

0.58

19

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: MTrustee Berhad for Tenaga Nasional Berhad Retirement Benefit Trust Fund
(RB-TNB-NOMUR)(419513)
Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary: Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
(LEEF)

2,553,900

0.54

21

Inter-Pacific Equity Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account for Yu Ah Sing @ Yeo Ah Sing

2,266,900

0.48

22

Zenith Highlight Sdn Bhd

2,166,100

0.46

23

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account for
Mohammed Rashdan Bin Mohd Yusof

2,101,600

0.44

24

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan)Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Etiqa Family Takaful Berhad (Dana Ekuiti)

2,004,300

0.42

25

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Etiqa Life Insurance Berhad (Life Par)

2,001,600

0.42

26

Pacific & Orient Insurance Co Berhad

2,000,000

0.42

27

Chin Fook Lai

1,920,000

0.41

28

Kenanga Capital Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account for
Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah

1,705,710

0.36

29

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd Beneficiary : CIMB for
Chow Chong Chek (PB)

1,427,000

0.30

30

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Beneficiary : Mtrustee Berhad for Pacific Pearl Fund (UT-PM-PPF)
(419471)

1,397,200

0.30

%

No. of Shares

%

125,000,000

26.45

78,049,241

16.51

78,049,241

16.51

125,000,000

26.45

Chan Liew Hoon

39,260,968

8.31

30,139,009

6.38

Sia Bun Chun

30,139,009

6.38

39,260,968

8.31

Nik Anida Binti Nik Manshor
Nik Awang @ Wan Azmi Bin Wan Hamzah

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)

(3)

Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by their spouse.
Including shares held under Kenanga Capital Sdn Bhd.
Including shares held under Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd, Kenanga Capital Sdn Bhd and Public
Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS PER THE REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
Direct Interest
No. of Shares

0.57

20
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No. of Shares
(2)

Name of Substantial Shareholders
2,689,200

Indirect Interest (1)

Indirect Interest
%

Sia Bun Chun

30,139,009

6.38

Leong Wai Yuan

(2)

3,500,000

0.74

Notes:
(1)
(2)

No. of Shares

%

39,260,968

8.31

-

-

(1)

Deemed interested by virtue of shares held by his spouse.
Including shares held under Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
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PROXY FORM

LIST OF PROPERTIES

ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD
(Registration No. 199401016997 (302675-A))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

I/We,		

No

1

2

Address

Description/
Existing Use

Lot 12-14, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Factory
and office

Lot 5D, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Warehouse
and store

Land/
Built up
Area
(sq ft)
76,055 /
36,194

224,029 /
71,005

Tenure/
Date of
Expiry of
Lease

Age of
Building

Net Book
Value
@31/12/19

Revaluation,
if any

NRIC No./Passport No./Company No.

Address :
Contact No :
being a member/members of ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD, hereby appoint
Full Name

66 years
expiring on
08.04.2059

12 years

66 years
expiring on
22.03.2053

29 years

3,412,390

NRIC No./Passport No

-

-

(%)

Address

E-mail Address

3,036,368

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

Contact No.

*and/*or failing him/her (*delete as appropriate)
Full Name

NRIC No./Passport No

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

(%)

Address

3

4

5

6

7

No 20, Bemban Industrial
Estate, Jalan Bemban,
31000 Batu Gajah, Perak

Lot 11, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Lot 5C, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Factory

Warehouse
and store

Vacant land

Office
Unit 3A33,3A35,3A37 &
3A39 Block A, Kelana
Centre Point, Jalan SS7/19,
47301 Petaling Jaya

Lot 18, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Factory

20,234 /
N/A

335,700 /
36,000

133,074 /
N/A

6,297

219,909 /
38,182

60 years
expiring on
28.03.2055

66 years
expiring on
08.04.2059

66 years
expiring on
22.03.2053

23.01.2094

66 years
expiring on
16.09.2053

18 years

28 years

2,370,866

2,300,413

-

-

E-mail Address

or failing him/her/them, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Twenty-Sixth Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on a fully virtual basis at the broadcast venue at Board Room, 15th Floor, East Wing, Rohas PureCircle,
9, Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, on Thursday, 9 July 2020 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof and *my/our proxy is to vote
as indicated below: No

N/A

1,160,313

-

2.
4.

17 years

2,109,800

2,032,824

-

-

AGENDA

RESOLUTION

Ordinary Resolutions
1.
Payment of a ﬁnal single-tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share
3.

N/A

Contact No.

Re-election of Sia Bun Chun as Director

**FOR

**AGAINST

1
2
3

Re-election of Wong Mun Keong as Director

4

Re-election of Leong Wai Yuan as Director

5.

Re-election of Wan Afzal-Aris Bin Wan Azmi as Director

5

6.

Approval of Directors’ fees and beneﬁts payable to the Non-Executive
Directors up to RM650,000.00 from the conclusion of this meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company

6

7.

Re-appointment of Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT as Auditors and
authorise the Directors to ﬁx their remuneration.

7

8.

Authority to issue shares pursuant to the Companies Act 2016

8

**(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided and to show how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is
given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his/her discretion).
Dated on this

day of

2020
CDS Account No.

8

66 years
expiring on
25.01.2060

25 years

217,800 /
48,420

66 years
expiring on
22.03.2053

32 years

3,199

Freehold

44 years
(reg. April
1977)

Lot 20D, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Factory,
warehouse
and office

130,680 /
45,200

Lot 10, Kawasan
Perindustrian Bentong,
28700 Bentong, Pahang

Factory,
warehouse
and office

Jalan SS 3/60,
Petaling Jaya

Workers
housing

1,744,451

-

No. of shares held

Signature(s) / Common Seal of Shareholder(s)
* Strike out whichever is inapplicable
Notes:-

9

10

1,378,963

-

(1)
(2)

1,164,800

-

(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)
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In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 2 July 2020 shall be eligible to attend (virtually) and vote at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) or appoint a proxy to attend
(virtually) and vote on his behalf. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
A member who is an authorised nominee may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account he holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account. A member
other than an authorised nominee shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend (virtually) and vote at the same meeting. A member who is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the
Company for multiple beneﬁcial owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
As guided by the Securities Commission’s Guidance and FAQs on the Conduct of General Meetings for Listed Issuers that was issued on 18 April 2020 and subsequently revised on 14 May 2020, the right to speak is not limited to
verbal communication only but includes other modes of expression. Therefore, all shareholders and proxies shall communicate with the main venue of the Meeting via real time submission of typed texts through a text box within
Securities Services e-Portal’s platform during the live streaming of the Meeting as the primary mode of communication. In the event of any technical glitch in this primary mode of communication, shareholders and proxies may email
their questions to eservices@sshsb.com.my during the Meeting. The questions and/or remarks submitted by the shareholders and/or proxies will be broadcasted and responded by the Chairman/Board/relevant advisers during the
Meeting. In the event of any unattended questions and/or remarks submitted, the Company will respond to the said unattended questions and/or remarks after the Meeting via email.
Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless the member speciﬁes the proportions of the member’s shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointor is a corporation either under Common Seal or under the hand of an ofﬁcer or attorney
duly authorised.
Appointment of proxy and registration for remote participation and voting
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certiﬁed copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at SS E Solutions Sdn Bhd of Level 7, Menara
Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. The proxy
appointment may also be lodged electronically via Securities Services e-Portal at https://www.sshsb.net.my/. All resolutions set out in this notice of meeting are to be voted by poll.
Should you wish to personally participate at the Meeting remotely, please register electronically via Securities Services e-Portal at https://www.sshsb.net.my/ by the registration cut-off date and time. Please refer to the Administrative
Guide on the Conduct of a Fully Virtual General Meeting for further details.
The Administrative Guide on the Conduct of a Fully Virtual General Meeting is available for download at rohastecnic.com
The Board wishes to highlight that the Meeting may be re-scheduled and/or postponed in view of the current COVID-19 outbreak and Malaysia Government’s announcements or guidelines made from time to time. Please rest assured
that all members/proxies including attendees shall be kept informed in the event of any unexpected changes.

FOLD HERE

FOLD HERE

PROXY FORM
Rohas Tecnic Berhad 199401016997

(302675-A)

The Poll Administrator
ROHAS TECNIC BERHAD 199401016997 (302675-A)
c/o SS E Solutions Sdn Bhd
Level 7, Menara Milenium,
Jalan Damanlela,
Pusat Bandar Damansara,
Damansara Heights,
50490 Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan

STAMP

